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Minutes of the Joint Audit Committee 


Tuesday 23rd June 2015 @ 10:00 am 


SCC, Police Headquarters 


 


Present: Mr Alasdair Kenwright, Chair )      


  Mrs Ann Williams   ) Members of the Joint Audit Committee 


  Mr Gawain Evans   ) 


  Mr Malcolm MacDonald  ) 


 


In attendance:  


Carl Langley – Deputy Chief Constable (DCC) 


Adrian Williams – Director of Resources (DoR) 


Helen Morgan-Howard – Chief of Staff, OPCC (HMH) 


Jayne Woods – Chief Finance Officer, OPCC (CFO) 


Edwin Harries – Director of Finance (DoF) 


John Herniman – Engagement Director, WAO (JH) 


Jonathan Maddock – Client Manager TIAA (JM) 


Liz Frizi – Procurement & Contracts Manager (LF)(agenda item 4 only) 


   


Before commencement of business the Chair asked that the Committee’s congratulations and 


best wishes be forwarded to Carys Morgans Chief of Staff on the recent birth of twins. 


 


A50 Apologies for absence 


Apologies for absence were received from Christopher Salmon Police & Crime 


Commissioner, Tim Burton Deputy Police & Crime Commissioner, Simon Prince Chief 


Constable, Vicky Davies TIAA and Anne Williams Support Officer. 


 


A51 Declarations of interest 


 There were no declarations of interest. 


 


A52 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 17th March 2015  


 


The minutes were agreed as an accurate record of the meeting subject to a minor 


amendment under A36 – the letter on Audit Fees Scheme had already been circulated 


hence the decision was not required. 


 


A53 Procurement in Dyfed-Powys Police 


 


The Chair welcomed Liz Frizi who provided Members with a presentation on 


arrangements in place in Dyfed-Powys Police to ensure the Procurement of Goods, 


Services and Works is managed in a compliant manner to deliver value for money.  LF 


provided an overview of procurement, focussing on: compliance with legislation and 


the corporate governance framework; collaboration; the local agenda; achieved 


outcomes, value for money and savings. 


 


In response to Members’ questions LF confirmed that European directives formed part 


of Public Contracts Regulations 2015. With regard to procurement much work had been 


done with Police Forces nationally on standardisation of police vehicles which had 
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delivered significant savings.  Work was ongoing nationally on uniform and forensic 


services.  Dyfed-Powys formed part of the initial regional project board that worked on 


the first contracts which at the time delivered savings of around 25%.  Significant 


progress had been made since the introduction of a national specification. 


 


The Chair thanked LF for the presentation and for the assurance provided. 


 


A54 Matters arising 


    


Under A35 legal advice on discretionary payments, the CFO informed Members that the 


matter had prolonged for a considerable time and the most appropriate and cost 


effective options available to the organisation were being considered in order to draw 


the matter to a conclusion.  Members endorsed the decision and looked forward to a 


resolution. 


 


The CFO confirmed that as from 19th June 2015 the Commissioner had taken ownership 


of Ammanford Police Station from its commercial owners resulting in the termination of 


the Private Finance Initiative contract. 


 


Matters for scrutiny: 


 


A55 The Chief Finance Officer and Director of Finance’s annual governance 


statements for 2014/15 


  


 The CFO drew attention to an amendment within the report’s recommendation.  


Members were asked to approve rather than consider the draft 2014/15 annual 


governance statements for the Commissioner and Chief Constable.  There was a 


requirement to produce two annual governance statements to reflect arrangements in 


place for the Commissioner and for the Chief Constable.  The Commissioner’s annual 


governance statement will be contained within the Group accounts.   


 


The Commissioner’s annual governance statement was a statutory document which 


explained the processes and procedures in place to enable the Commissioner to carry 


out his functions effectively.  The Commissioner was responsible for performing his 


functions as set out in the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and must 


hold the Chief Constable to account for the exercise of his functions.  It ensures that a 


sound system of internal control is maintained through the year and that arrangements 


are in place for the management of risk. 


 


 A joint Code of Corporate Governance was adopted on 1st April 2014 and is included 


within the Corporate Governance Framework.  The CFO briefly explained arrangements 


for governance within the organisation undertaken by the Corporate Governance Group 


which is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance 


framework.  The group meets quarterly and considers the internal and external factors 


and influences which may affect the organisation.  It considers whether the governance 


structures in place are suitable to meet the new and ever changing needs of the 


organisation.   At the end of each financial year the corporate governance group carries 


out a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of 
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internal control.  The review looks at the work carried out during the year and external 


opinion provided.  It was important to note that for 2014/15 the Head of Audit’s Annual 


Opinion concluded that there were adequate and effective management, control and 


governance processes to manage the achievement of its objectives.  Also reviews of 


HMIC are taken into account to identify sufficient governance structure in place.  The 


review for 2014/15 financial year concluded that governance arrangements in place 


were fit for purpose in accordance with guidelines with no major issues or weaknesses 


being identified.  Certain significant issues being closely monitored and issues identified 


in last year’s governance statement and still ongoing were noted within the report. 


 


The Chair invited questions from Members on the Commissioner’s Annual Governance 


Statement. 


 


MM highlighted some typing errors and suggested some amendments and additions to 


provide further clarification.  These were noted and agreed.  


 


GE highlighted the outstanding Business Continuity Plan and asked for an addition 


within the report to look at a resolution.  The Chair agreed. 


 


The DoF briefly outlined the Chief Constable’s Annual Governance Statement.  The CC 


is responsible for maintaining the Queen’s Peace and has direction and control over the 


Force’s officers and staff.  The CC holds office under the Crown, but is appointed by the 


PCC.  He is accountable to the law for the exercise of police powers, and to the PCC for 


the delivery of efficient and effective policing, management of resources and 


expenditure by the Police Force.  The CC delivers operational policing in the Dyfed-


Powys area in accordance with the law and to proper standards.  He has a duty to 


ensure that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used 


economically, efficiently and effectively. 


 


The DoF outlined the Financial Governance Arrangements and highlighted each of the 


six core principles of good governance included within the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance.  


The review of effectiveness concluded that the governance framework was fit for 


purpose over the course of the year as the result of the work of the Corporate 


Governance Group, managers within the organisation who had responsibility for the 


development and maintenance of the governance environment, the head of internal 


audit’s annual report and comments from external audit and other review agencies and 


inspectorates.  An increase in HMIC Inspection activity focussed on high risk 


operational areas providing the committee and the CC with further assurance in terms 


of corporate governance.  


 


As reported within the PCC’s annual governance statement, there were a number of 


issues which needed further work.   One area in particular was the embedding of the 


Code of Ethics where a great deal of work was ongoing within the Force. 


 


The Chair invited questions from Members on the Chief Constable’s draft Annual 


Governance Statement. 
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MM drew attention to an omission.   The CC was a corporation sole and MM requested 


for this to be added under Scope of Responsibility, as reported within the PCC’s 


statement. As mentioned in discussions on the PCC’s statement, reference to the 


Business Continuity Plan was requested to be added.  These additions were agreed. 


 


As the Committee was asked to approve both Statements the Chair questioned 


whether sufficient time was available for amendments and additions to be re-


distributed and approved to meet deadlines.  


 


The CFO agreed to make subsequent amendments and additions and re-circulate 


electronically for Members’ confirmation. 


 


In view of good governance JH made an observation with regard to the amendments 


and stressed a requirement for the statements to be signed in readiness of the signing 


of the draft statement of accounts at the end of June. 


 


Decision: Members approved the draft 2014/15 Annual Governance 


Statements for the Commissioner and Chief Constable 


subject to the amendments and additions being made and 


electronically circulated to Members for confirmation of 


approval. 


 


A56 To consider the Annual Accounting Policies for 2014/15 


 


 Members were asked to consider the draft 2014/15 Accounting Policies. 


 


The draft Accounting Policies are presented in advance of the 2014/15 Statement of 


Accounts presented at the September Audit Committee meeting to allow Members the 


opportunity to review and consider this element of the Statement of Accounts at an 


earlier stage.  The CFO had carried out a significant review of the Accounting Policies 


over the last year accounting for a small amount of changes in comparison.  Changes 


in relation to leases had been made following a comparison with 2013/14 Statement of 


Accounts in other Welsh forces. Work was ongoing within the Accounting Policies to 


account for collaboration.  


 


GE made an observation in relation to reducing the size of the accounts.  With the 


agreement of WAO GE questioned whether the Accounting Policies could be referred to 


under a link within the accounts. 


 


A discussion ensued on the need to provide certain information within the accounts in 


order to enable WAO to form an opinion.  JH suggested using the foreword to the 


accounts in order to provide users of the accounts with a more easily digestible 


summary of the financial statements.  MM questioned the value of a glossary of terms. 


 


For consistency purposes within the document, minor additions within sections were 


requested and agreed.  
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The CFO provided clarification on the different Statement of Accounts and confirmed 


the content incorporated within the Group Statement of Accounts. 


 


Decision: The Committee noted the Annual Accounting Policies for  


                           2014/15. 


 


A57 To consider the 2014/15 annual report of the Internal Auditors 


 


JM introduced the Annual Report which sets out the outcomes of reviews carried out on 


the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.  The Head 


of Audit’s annual opinion concluded that the OPCC and the Force had adequate and 


effective management, control and governance processes to manage the achievement 


of its objectives.  All set reviews within the Plan had been carried out except for the 


Risk Management review which had been deferred until 2015/16.  Twelve reviews had 


been undertaken in 2014/15 and the overall assurance assessments awarded as part of 


those reviews was summarised.   JM drew Members’ attention to a new addition to the 


report which addressed and summarised the recommendations in terms of four key risk 


areas.  The 2014/15 Annual Audit Plan had approved 158 days of internal audit 


coverage in the year, and a summary of actual against planned Internal Audit Work 


214/15 showed 146 days; the difference being the Risk Management review mentioned 


above and the Fleet Management review being undertaken in less days than quoted in 


the Plan.  


 


The Chair remarked on the table on Assurance Assessments as being clear and 


beneficial. 


 


Decision:  The Committee noted the Annual Report of the Internal    


                             Auditors. 


 


A58 To consider the Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report (SICA) to June 


2015 


 


The summary report provided an update on the Controls Assurance framework and the 


SICA was based on the internal audit work carried out by TIAA. 


 


The audits carried out and finalised since the previous meeting of the JAC were listed 


and it was proposed that four days from the ten contingency days were to be used for 


a joint review with Gwent and South Wales Police of the Joint Firearms Unit. 


 


Progress against the Annual Plan for 2014/15 showed that all the reviews had been 


completed and all the reports had been finalised.  Progress against the Annual Plan for 


2015/16 was highlighted with plans to book in all the reviews for the year whilst some 


dates could change due to operational or departmental needs. 


 


Attention was drawn to the position regarding three outstanding Priority 1 


recommendations made in previous Audit Reports.   The original completion date of 


June 2013 for Business Continuity Planning had been revised to end of June 2015 and 


following discussions it was noted that the date had again slipped to end of September 
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2015.  The IT systems date had also been revised to 31st August 2015 for completion.  


The review of Debtors originally given a completion date of 31st July 2015 had slipped 


to 31st August 2015 due to the training element of the recommendation. 


 


The Chair expressed concerns at the length of time elapsed since the original agreed 


implementation dates of Business Continuity and IT Systems.  


The DCC stressed the amount of work carried out in drawing the Business Continuity 


Plan prior to Public First restructure.  The structures post Public First programme were 


very different and it was a priority area of work for completion during the year. 


MM expressed his concern and referred to two examples of instances where business 


continuity plans had proven vital to organisations. 


GE stated that if assurance could be provided to show that underlying elements of the 


Plan were in place it would provide the Committee with confidence.  He stressed that 


matters had not progressed as quickly as expected. 


A lot of work had been carried out on Business Continuity Planning and DoF confirmed 


plans built into the 2015/16 programme.   


MM requested a summary of documents currently in place prior to the completion of a 


formalised force wide Business Continuity Plan. 


The CFO sought clarification with regard to placing both Business Continuity Planning 


and IT systems as two Priority 1 items with extended dates on the Annual Governance 


Statement.  Following discussion it was agreed to refer only to Business Continuity 


Planning. 


In response to a question on the review of Debtors the DoR confirmed ongoing work to 


improve performance. 


Decision: To provide Members with a summary of documents in place 


with regard to Business Continuity and to place the matter 


on the September meeting agenda. 


 


The Committee agreed that 4 days from the 10 contingency 


days be used for a joint review with Gwent and South Wales 


Police of the Joint Firearms Unit. 


 


A59 To consider the reports of the Internal Auditors: 


 


 a) Governance – Performance Management 


 


The review of Governance Performance Management considered arrangements for 


providing assurance to the Police and Crime Panel and senior management through the 


use of key performance indicators and the systems used to track and manage the 


attainment of targets.  Key findings of the review highlighted that Dyfed-Powys Police 


had reasonable performance management arrangements in place with meaningful 


performance indicators for the phone system and victims yet to be identified.  The two 


priority 2 recommendations had been accepted by management.    The DoF and DoR 
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confirmed the Force’s acceptance of the two Priority 2 recommendations with work 


underway on findings. 


 


 b) HR Training 


 


The review appraised the arrangements for identifying training needs in Police staff and 


Officers, the procurement and monitoring of the training delivered and the assessment 


of the effectiveness of training received.   The review was awarded reasonable 


assurance with six Priority 2 recommendations and key findings highlighted. 


 


The Chair commented on the volume of work expected from personnel and questioned 


timely implementation deadlines.   


 


GE asked appropriate questions in relation to the recommendations.  The DoR 


emphasised the review had been valuable in terms of future learning and development 


arrangements.   


 


 c)  Governance – Transformation Projects 


 


The review considered the arrangements for the governance of the Mobile Data/Digital 


Policing Project and assessed the effectiveness of the Project Management 


arrangements including the reporting and monitoring of planned and actual outcomes. 


 


The review was awarded reasonable assurance with three priority two 


recommendations all of which had been agreed. 


 


d) 2014/15 follow-up 


 


The follow up review by TIAA established the management action taken in respect of 


the Priority 1, 2 and 3 recommendations which arose from the internal audit reviews 


listed in the report.  The overall outcome was summarised with 21 recommendations 


being implemented, 7 recommendations in the process of being completed with 12 


recommendations given a revised target date, with two out of the twelve being Priority 


1 recommendations.  In turn 53% of the recommendations were implemented with a 


further 17% in the process of being implemented, and 30% of the recommendations 


given revised target dates.  Two of the sixteen recommendations given a revised target 


date were priority 1 recommendations. 


 


The DoF provided clarification in response to a question by GE on asset tracking and 


where applicable, the granting of an unique asset number in accordance with 


procedures and good practice. 


 


 Decision:  That the Committee note the reports of the Internal Auditors. 


 


A60 To receive the Minutes of the Corporate Governance Group 9th June 2015 


 


The minutes were circulated at the meeting and the DoF drew attention to the Group’s 


business within.   
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AW questioned procedures in place for supporting and protecting whistleblowers.  The 


DCC provided reassurance through the learning and training of supervisors and 


managers on whistleblowing reporting. 


 


Decision: That the Committee note the minutes of the Corporate 


Governance Group 9th June 2015. 


 


A61 Update on HMIC activity 


  


The HMIC inspection regime had continued to be active with several inspections being 


undertaken to date.  None of the inspections had formally reported back to the Force.  


No formal action plans or recommendations were noted. 


 


The DoR summarised the main inspections within the report.  The Firearms Licensing 


inspection formed a significant part of business for the Force and whilst the report was 


awaited general feedback received had been encouraging.  The Force had significantly 


changed processes to be more risk based and changed a number of structures to 


deliver those changes. 


 


The Peel Inspection 2015 – phase 1, Efficiency, Leadership and Legitimacy audit looked 


at how the Force carried out its business.  It was noted that officers and staff felt that 


this inspection was one of the most intrusive inspections that the Force had received.  


The report was awaited. 


 


The PEEL Vulnerability inspection concentrated on how effective forces were at 


protecting those vulnerable from harm and supporting victims.  The inspection covered 


a broad range of vulnerability but focussed on three areas - missing and absent 


children, domestic abuse and child sexual exploitation.  The final report was due to be 


published in early 2016. 


 


The DCC confirmed no expected diminution in the level of inspections for the 


immediate future. 


 


The Chair questioned the impact of HMIC inspections on day to day business. 


 


The DCC confirmed the impact on delivery of policing of officers and staff being taken 


away from operational duties to cover inspections but stressed it was an issue the 


Government felt necessary to gain the public’s confidence in policing and processes.   


 


MM reiterated the Committee’s concerns as previously expressed and a discussion 


ensued on the vulnerability of Welsh forces as one in four is marked for inspection 


whilst it is one in eight in England. 


   


Decision: That the Committee note the report on HMIC activity. 
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Matters for decision 


 


A62 To consider the 2014/15 annual report of the Joint Audit Committee 


 


This was the second annual report of the Joint Audit Committee and the Chair sought 


comments on its content. 


 


HMH noted the Committee’s concern on the volume of HMIC inspections and the 


demand placed on the Force in key areas of focus during the year. 


 


MM commented on the Committee’s self-assessment of their effectiveness and 


highlighted areas of priority for the ensuing year. 


 


GE highlighted the implementation of a Business Continuity Plan as a main priority. 


 


JH pointed out areas of business which received limited assurance. 


 


MM asked for an addition pointing out that Daphne Evans had resigned to take up 


another role within the police service in Wales. 


 


The Chair congratulated all Members on a 100% attendance record. 


 


Following the agreed amendments and additions being made the report would be 


reformatted and published on the website. 


 


MM remarked on the difficulty in locating areas relating to JAC on the new OPCC 


website.  The CFO agreed to discuss this matter with the Public Affairs Advisor. 


 


Decision: To approve the Annual Report of the Joint Audit Committee 


pending minor amendments and additions. 


 


A63 To appoint a new Chair to the Joint Audit Committee 


 


 The Chair clarified that in previous years the Chair of the JAC was appointed at the 


September meeting.  The Chair was only eligible to serve for two years.  The Chair had 


completed his two year term of office and was consequently not eligible to re-stand. 


The Chair listed other responsibilities which take place in-between meetings i.e. the 


Corporate Governance Group which meets in advance of each JAC meeting and the JAC 


pre-meeting, where it would be beneficial to have an appointed Chair.  The Chair 


invited nominations.  


 


MM on behalf of the Committee congratulated Mr Kenwright for his work as Chair over 


the last two years. 


 


A role profile for the position of Chair had been circulated to remind members of the 


role requirements but HMH highlighted an amendment which had not been clarified 


previously.  This amendment included a small special responsibility allowance paid to 


the Chair.  
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GE agreed to stand as Chair if Members did not express any concern over the fact that 


he lived outside of Wales.  Members felt this was a positive factor in providing for an 


independent judgement.  


 


Decision:  That Gawain Evans be appointed Chair of the Joint Audit  


                   Committee as from 1st August 2015. 


       


To circulate the revised Chair Role Profile to Members. 


 


A64 Any other business 


  


MM made reference to a report on the ‘Financial Sustainability of Police Forces in 


England and Wales’ produced by National Audit Office.    This was a vital consultation 


document and MM requested sight of any comments Dyfed-Powys were making on the 


report.  JH related to some useful areas within the report and the CFO decided it 


worthwhile to add to the September meeting agenda. 


 


 


 


                        Next meeting 23rd September 2015 


 


The meeting closed at 11.50 am. 
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Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu Dyfed-Powys, 
Blwch Post 99, Llangynnwr, Caerfyrddin, SA31 2PF 


Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner, 
PO Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen, SA31 2PF 


    
Ffôn: Tel: 01267 226440 
Ffacs: Fax: 01267 226448 
E-bost: Email: opcc@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk   


 


web   www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk   twitter   DPOPCC   facebook   dyfedpowyspoliceandcrimecommissioner 


Auditor General for Wales  
Wales Audit Office  
24 Cathedral Road  


Cardiff  
CF11 9LJ  


23rd September 2015 
 
 


Representations regarding the 2014-15 financial statements  


 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the 


Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2015 for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness.  


 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 
consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you.  


 


Management representations  
 
Responsibilities  


 
We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 


accordance with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance therewith.  


 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and 


review of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.  
 


Information provided  
 
We have provided you with:  


 
•  full access to:  


 
- all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 


financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, 


minutes of meetings and other matters;  
 


- additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 
audit; and  


 


- unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence.  


 
 







 


 


•  the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud;  


 


•  our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and involves:  


 
- management;  


 
- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or  


 


- others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 


•  our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators 
or others;  


 
•  our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-


compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 
preparing the financial statements; and  


 


•  the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and 
transactions of which we are aware.  


 


Financial statement representations  


 
All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and 
are reflected in the financial statements.  


 
Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 


at fair value, are reasonable.  
 
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed.  
 


Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration note and the 
Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  


 
All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or 
disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed.  


 
All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 


when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
framework.  


 
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The 


effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  


 







 


 


Representations by the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys  
 
We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 
discussed with us.  


 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial 


statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial 
statements were recommended for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 16 
September 2015.  


 
We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to 


make ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 


communicated to you.  We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant 


audit information of which you are unaware. 


Signed by:  


 


Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief 


Executive 


 


Date:


Signed by: 


 


Police & Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-


Powys 


 


Date: 
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Auditor General for Wales  
Wales Audit Office  
24 Cathedral Road  


Cardiff  
CF11 9LJ  


23rd September 2015 
 


Representations regarding the 2014-15 financial statements  
 


This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Chief 
Constable for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2015 for the purpose of expressing an 


opinion on their truth and fairness.  
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we consider 


sufficient, we can make the following representations to you.  


 
Management representations  
 


Responsibilities  


 
We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 


with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting; in 
particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith.  
 


We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.  


 


Information provided  


 
We have provided you with:  
 


•  full access to:  


 


- all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial 
statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, minutes of 


meetings and other matters;  
 


- additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and  


 


 


 


Mr. Simon Prince 


Prif Gwnstabl / Chief Constable 
 
Pencadlys Heddlu Dyfed-Powys, Blwch Post 99, Llangynnwr, Caerfyrddin, SA31 2PF. 
Dyfed-Powys Police Headquarters, PO Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen, SA31 2PF.
  
• Ffôn/Tel: 01267 226308 
• Ffacs/Fax:  01267 226310 


• E-bostE-mail: carol.price@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk 
• DX:   Dyfed-Powys Police DX 120325 Carmarthen 4 
 







 


- unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit 
evidence.  


 
•  the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 


misstated as a result of fraud;  


 


•  our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Chief 
Constable for Dyfed Powys and involves:  


 


- management;  


 


- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or  


 


- others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  


 


•  our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others;  


 


•  our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with 


laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial 
statements; and  


 


•  the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of 


which we are aware.  
 


Financial statement representations 
  
All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are 


reflected in the financial statements.  
 
Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair 


value, are reasonable.  
 


Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  
 


Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration note and the 
Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  
 


All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure have 
been adjusted for or disclosed.  


 
All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when 
preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and 


disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.  







 


    
          


 
 


 


         


  The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects of 
uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the 


aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 


Representations by the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys  
 
We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been discussed with 
us.  


 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 


accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were 
recommended for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 16 September 2015. 
 


We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 
ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been communicated 


to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 
you are unaware.  
 


 
 


Signed by:        Signed by: 
 
 


Assistant Chief Officer-Resources   Chief Constable for Dyfed-Powys 
 


 
Date:        Date:     
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Mr Edwin Harries and Mrs Jayne Woods 


Director of Finance and Chief Finance Officer, Office for the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 


Dyfed Powys Police 


Police Headquarters,  


PO BOX 99 


Llangunnor,  


Carmarthen  


SA31 2PF 


 


Dear Ed and Jayne 


Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys Police 2014/15 


Audit enquiries to those charged with governance and management 


 


As you will be aware I am required to conduct my financial audit in accordance with the 
requirements set out in International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  As part of the requirements 
of the ISAs I am writing to you to formally seek your documented consideration and 
understanding on a number of governance areas that impact on my audit of your financial 
statements. These considerations are relevant to both management and ‘those charged with 
governance’ (the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable). 
I have set out below the areas of governance on which I am seeking your views. 
 
1. Management processes in relation to: 


 


 undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated due to fraud; 


 identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the organisation; 


 communication to employees of views on business practice and ethical behaviour; 
and  


 communication to those charged with governance of the processes for identifying 
and responding to fraud. 


Reference  


Date  
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2. Management’s awareness of any actual or alleged instances of fraud. 


 
3. How management gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 


complied with. 
 
4. Whether there is any potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial statements. 


 
5. Management processes to identify, authorise, approve, account for and disclose related 


party transactions and relationships. 
 


 
The information you provide will inform our understanding of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable’s arrangements and business processes and support our 
work in providing an audit opinion on their 2014-15 financial statements. 
 
I would be grateful if you could complete the attached table in Appendix 1, which should be 
formally considered and communicated to us on behalf of both management and those charged 
with governance by 31st August 2015. In the meantime, if you have queries, please contact me 
on 07854 022649. 


Yours sincerely 


 


 


Jason Garcia 


Audit Manager 







 


Appendix A 


 
International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 240 – The auditor’s responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit 
of financial statements  
 


Background 
 


Under the ISA, the primary responsibility for preventing and detecting fraud rests with both management and ‘those charged 
with governance’, being the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. This includes fraud that could impact on 
the accuracy of the annual accounts. The ISA requires us, as external auditors, to obtain an understanding of how the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable exercise oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding 
to the risks of fraud and the internal controls established to mitigate them. 
 
What is ‘fraud’ in the context of the ISA? 
 


The ISA views fraud as either: 


 the intentional misappropriation of assets (cash, property, etc); or 


 the intentional manipulation or misstatement of the financial statements. 
 
What are we required to do? 


 


We have to obtain evidence of how management and those charged with governance are discharging their responsibilities if 
we are to properly discharge our responsibilities under ISA240. We are therefore making requests from both management 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable: 
 


Enquiries of management 


Question Response 


1) What is management’s assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated due to fraud and what are 
the principle reasons? 


Management’s assessment of the risk of 


material misstatement of the Financial 


Statements due to Fraud would be low. The 


principle reasons are: 


 Corporate Governance Framework 


controls 


 Chief Officer Group  







 


   


 


 Policing Board 


 Comprehensive staff vetting arrangements 


 High materiality limits 


 Computerised Purchase ordering 


 Regular budget monitoring to COG and 


locally 


 Joint Internal Audit - Targeted Audit 


(Assurance over Treasury Management 


and Seizures) 


 Transparency – publication of expenditure 


over £5K 


 HMIC work on integrity in policing 


 Independent professional procurement 


support 


 Separation of duties / input / Authorising 


 Professional Standards / Integrity work 


However recognise added risk from: 


 Public First e.g. people leaving / new 


processes / feelings of disillusionment  


 Greater discretion / freedoms to make 


local decisions 


2) How can management assure the Police and Crime Commissioner 
and Chief Constable that it has not been inappropriately influenced 
by external pressures? 


 Business Interest Processes 


 Integrity Unit Proactive Work 


 Whistle blowing arrangements / “Safecall” 


3) Are management aware of any organisational pressure to meet 
revenue and capital budgets or other financial constraints? 


Yes – there were dual pressures both to make 


significant savings e.g. during “Public First” and 


other initiatives – but also to minimise 


contributions to reserves and to spend capital 


and revenue budgets 







 


   


 


4) What processes are employed to identify and respond to the risks 
of fraud more generally and specific risks of misstatement in the 
financial statements? 


As above 


5) How has management communicated expectations of ethical 
governance and standards of conduct and behaviour to all relevant 
parties, and when? 


Some considerable work has been undertaken 


on integrity and ethics in policing over the year 


as evidenced in the Annual Governance 


documents. The College of Policing guidance is 


being rolled out to officers and the importance of 


staff “doing the right thing” for victims and 


customers has been a key and consistent 


theme.  


6) What arrangements are in place to report about fraud to those 
charged with governance? 


 Professional Standards processes 


 New Triage service with OPCC 


 Monthly COG Reporting / Policing Board 


operational updates 


 “Safecall” / Whistle blowing arrangements 


Enquiries of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 


1) How does the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable, exercise oversight of management's processes for 
identifying and responding to the risks of fraud within the Force 
and the internal control that management has established to 
mitigate those risks? 


 Through regular reporting in COG / 


Policing Board 


 Corporate Governance Group 


 Professional Standards Updates / COG 


 Integrity Department 


 Internal Audit Planning processes 


 Joint Audit Committee 


2) Has the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud since 1 April 
2014? 


No. 


3) Has the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable any 
suspicion that fraud may be occurring within the organisation? No. 


4) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable Yes – Comprehensive Corporate Governance 







 


   


 


satisfied that internal controls, including segregation of duties, 
exist and work effectively? If ‘yes’, please provide details. If ‘no’ 
what are the risk areas? 


Framework and Internal Audit assurances.  


Corporate Governance Group assurances and 


quarterly Review of Governance arrangements 


5) How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about fraud 
and what concerns about fraud are staff expected to report? 


Focus on integrity and ethics with all staff and 


officers. “Safecall “ and “Bad Apple” reporting 


arrangements 


6) From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are considered by 
the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable to be 
high risk posts within the organisation and how are the risks 
relating to these posts identified, assessed and managed? 


Business Interests / Procurement / Budget 


Responsibility / Chief Officers / Press / Media / 


Treasury Management / Finance / payroll / 


income / officers seizing assets / financial 


investigators. 


 


Integrity Unit work / targeted audit / Corporate 


Governance Framework. 


7) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could 
give rise to instances of fraud and how does they mitigate the risks 
associated with fraud related to related party relationships and 
transactions? 


No. 


8) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
aware of any entries made in the accounting records of the 
organisation that it believes or suspects are false or intentionally 
misleading?· 


No. 


9) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
aware of any organisational, or management pressure to meet 
revenue and capital budgets or other financial constraints? 


Yes – there were dual pressures both to make 


significant savings e.g. during “Public First” and 


other initiatives – but also to minimise 


contributions to reserves and to spend capital 


and revenue budgets 







 


   


 


International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 250 – Consideration of laws and regulations in an audit of 


financial statements  


Background 


 
Under the ISA, in the UK and Ireland, the primary responsibility for ensuring that the entity's operations are conducted in 
accordance with laws and regulations and the responsibility for the prevention and detection of non compliance rests with 
both management and ‘those charged with governance’, being the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. 
The ISA requires us, as external auditors, to obtain an understanding of how they gain assurance that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with. 
 
What are we required to do? 
 
We have to obtain evidence of how management and those charged with governance are discharging their responsibilities, if 
we are to properly discharge our responsibilities under ISA 250. We are therefore making requests from both management 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. 
 


Enquiries of management 


 


Question Response 


1) How have you gained assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with? 


 Monitoring Officer Role  


 Director of Legal and Compliance role 


 Legal Advice when required 


 Staff Training 


 CFO role for PCC and CC re unlawful expenditure 


 Through Policing Board / COG 


2) Are there any potential litigations or claims that would 
affect the financial statements? 


Litigation claims are compiled by the Director of Legal and 
Compliance on behalf of the Force and by the Monitoring 
Officer in the PCC 
 


 A list of all litigation claims received is maintained and 







 


   


 


an estimate of liability is included in the accounts as a 
provision / or reserve. 


The following legal issues / areas are included in the 
accounts: 


 Milne Vs GAD - historic commutation Factors 


 Bear Scotland – holiday pay claim 


 Deduction of ESA from injury benefits 


 Assessment of litigation claims 


Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable response 


1) How do the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable, exercise oversight of management's 
processes to ensure that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with?  


 Through COG and the Policing Board 


 Monitoring Officer Role (PCC) 


 Director of Legal and Compliance Role (CC) 


 CFO role for PCC and CC 


2) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable aware of any non-compliance with relevant 
laws and regulations? 


No. 


3) If there have been instances of non-compliance what are 
they, and what oversight has the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable Board had to ensure 
that action taken by management to address and gaps in 
control? 


N/A 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


   


 


International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 550 – Related parties  
 
Background 
 
The nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some circumstances, give rise to higher risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements than transactions with unrelated parties. For example: 
 


 Related parties may operate through an extensive and complex range of relationships and structures, with a 
corresponding increase in the complexity of related party transactions. 


 Information systems may be ineffective at identifying or summarising transactions and outstanding balances between 
an entity and its related parties. 


 Related party transactions may not be conducted under normal market terms and conditions; for example, some 
related party transactions may be conducted with no exchange of consideration. 


 
Because related parties are not independent of each other, many financial reporting frameworks establish specific 
accounting and disclosure requirements for related party relationships, transactions and balances to enable users of the 
financial statements to understand their nature and actual or potential effects on the financial statements.  An understanding 
of the entity's related party relationships and transactions is relevant to the auditor's evaluation of whether one or more fraud 
risk factors are present as required by ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, because fraud may be more easily committed through 
related parties. 
 
What are we required to do? 
 
Where the applicable financial reporting framework establishes requirements for related parties, the auditor has a 
responsibility to perform audit procedures to identify, assess and respond to the risks of material misstatement arising from 
the entity's failure to appropriately account for or disclose related party relationships, transactions or balances in accordance 
with the requirements of the framework. We are therefore making requests from both management and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable: 
 
 
 
 
 







 


   


 


Enquiries of management 


 


Question Response 


1) What controls are in place to identify, authorise, approve, 
account for and disclose related party transactions and 
relationships? 


 


Individual returns by officers identifying any related party 
transactions annually 


2) Confirm that you have: 


 disclosed to the auditor the identity of the entity's 
related parties and all the related party relationships 
and transactions of which you are aware; and 


 appropriately accounted for and disclosed such 
relationships and transactions in accordance with the 
requirements of the framework. 


 


Confirmed – these are stated in the Financial Statements 


Enquiries of the Police and Crime Commissioner and 


Chief Constable 


 


1) How do the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable, exercise oversight of management's 
processes to identify, authorise, approve, account for and 
disclose related party transaction sand relationships? 


 As above.  


 Business Interest Monitoring. 


 Professional Standards work 
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Audit of Financial Statements Report 


Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed 
Powys  


Audit year: 2014-15 


Issued: September 2015 


Document reference: 488A2015 


 







Status of report 


This document has been prepared for the internal use of Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys as part of work performed in accordance 


with statutory functions. 


No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General or the staff of the Wales Audit Office in 
relation to any member, director, officer or other employee in their individual capacity, or to 


any third party. 


In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, 
attention is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of 


Information Act 2000. The section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests 
that is expected of public authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In 
relation to this document, the Auditor General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are 


relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should 
be sent to the Wales Audit Office at infoofficer@wao.gov.uk. 


The team who delivered the work comprised: John Herniman, Jason Garcia and  
Julie Owens.  
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Summary report  


Introduction 
1. The Auditor General for Wales is responsible for providing an opinion on whether the 


financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and of 
the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys give a true and fair view of their financial position 
at 31 March 2015 and of their income and expenditure for the year then ended. 


2. We do not try to obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are correctly 
stated, but adopt the concept of materiality. In planning and conducting the audits, we 
seek to identify material misstatements in your financial statements, namely, those that 
might result in a reader of the accounts being misled. 


3. The quantitative levels at which we judge such misstatements to be material are: 


 Police and 
Crime 


Commissioner 
£ 


Chief Constable 
£ 


Pension Fund 
£ 


Income and expenditure items 
and other balances 


£1.58 million £1.534 million £0.305 million 


Whether an item is judged to be material can also be affected by certain qualitative 
issues such as legal and regulatory requirements and political sensitivity.  


4. International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 requires us to report certain matters 
arising from the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance of 
a body in sufficient time to enable appropriate action. 


5. This report sets out for consideration the matters arising from the audit of the 2014-15 
financial statements of both the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and 
the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys, that require reporting under ISA 260. We will 
also issue a separate letter to management later in the year outlining the less 
significant issues arising from the audit.  


Status of the audit 
6. We received the draft financial statements for both the Police and Crime 


Commissioner and Chief Constable for the year ended 31 March 2015 on  
30 June 2015, which is in line with the agreed deadline.  


7. We have now completed the majority of the audit work. We are reporting to you the 
more significant issues arising from the audits, which we believe you must consider 
prior to approval of the financial statements. The audit team has already discussed 
these issues with the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer and the 
Director of Finance. 
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Proposed audit report 
8. It is the Auditor General’s intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the financial 


statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner and of the Chief Constable once 
you have provided us with the Letters of Representation based on those set out in 
Appendices 1 and 2.  


9. The proposed audit reports are set out in Appendices 3 and 4.  


Significant issues arising from the audit 


Uncorrected misstatements  
10. There are no misstatements identified in the financial statements, which remain 


uncorrected. 


Corrected misstatements 
11. There are misstatements that have been corrected by management, but which we 


consider should be drawn to your attention due to their relevance to your 
responsibilities over the financial reporting process. They are set out with explanations 
in Appendices 5 and 6. 


Other significant issues arising from the audit 
12. In the course of the audit, we consider a number of matters both qualitative and 


quantitative relating to the accounts and report any significant issues arising to you. 
There were some issues arising in these areas this year: 
• We have no concerns about the qualitative aspects of your accounting 


practices and financial reporting although there is one matter to report to 
you.  
We found the information provided to be relevant, reliable, comparable, material 
and easy to understand. We concluded that accounting policies and estimates 
are appropriate and financial statement disclosures unbiased, fair and clear. 
We have the following observation to make regarding the recognition of a 
provision in the accounts for backdated lump sum payments to pensioners. This 
liability on the Police Pension Fund arises from updates to the calculation of 
lump sum payments to pensioners retiring between 2001 and 2006 for historic 
commutation factors. Management made an early assessment of the likely 
impact and the draft accounts at 30 June 2015 included an estimated provision 
of £4.709 million for these payments. Significant further work by management 
subsequently reduced the provision to £3.238 million based on information 
received from the Government Actuary Department in July 2015. Our review of 
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the calculation based on the latest information and guidance, confirms that the 
provision is a reasonable estimate of the potential liabilities.  


• We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit. 
There were no significant difficulties during the audit. We received the majority of 
information in a timely and helpful manner and were not restricted in our work. 
However some of the working papers requested in our audit deliverables 
document were not available at the start of the audit. These included a detailed 
payroll analytical review and some information to support senior officer 
remuneration disclosures. Once the audit is completed we will hold a post project 
learning event with Finance department staff to consider ways accounts 
compilation and audit processes can be improved.  


• There was one matter discussed and corresponded upon with 
management which we need to report to you.  
2014-15 is the first year that the accounts have been required to disclose the 
ratio of the Chief Executive’s and the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the 
median remuneration of offices and staff. However, the accounting regulations 
are not completely clear on the method for calculating the ratios, for example in 
relation to part-time officers and staff. Our discussions with management on this 
issue have identified a need for refinement to the calculation of the ratios for 
2015-16.  
There are no other significant matters discussed and corresponded upon with 
management during the financial statements audit.  


• There is one other matter significant to the oversight of the financial 
reporting process that we need to report to you. 
Changes to the definition of jointly controlled operations within the Code of Audit 
Practice and audit regulations means that additional activities need to be 
included in disclosures relating to collaboration. These changes affected all local 
government bodies in England and Wales. In a workshop in March 2015 the four 
Welsh police forces agreed a set of principles, based primarily on force area 
population, for accounting for the jointly controlled operations they undertake 
across Wales.  
Unfortunately, when completing the draft accounts, information relating to a 
number of these projects had not been provided by South Wales Police. Despite 
this lack of information, the draft accounts at 30 June 2015 did include an 
estimate of the Force’s share of income and expenditure relating to these jointly 
controlled operations in 2014-15. 
This information was provided by South Wales Police in July 2015 and 
amendments have been made to both income and expenditure figures to reflect 
this information. Whilst we are satisfied with the amendments made to the 2014-
15 financial statements, we recommend that this information is obtained earlier in 
future and reflected in the 2015-16 draft accounts. 


• We did not identify any material weaknesses in your internal controls that we have 
not reported to you already.  
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• There are not any other matters specifically required by auditing standards 
to be communicated to those charged with governance.  


Independence and objectivity 
13. As part of the finalisation process, we are required to provide you with representations 


concerning our independence. 
14. We have complied with ethical standards and in our professional judgment, we are 


independent and our objectivity is not compromised. There are no relationships 
between the Wales Audit Office and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys or the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys, other than those already 
communicated to you in the 2015 Audit Plan, that we consider to bear on our 
objectivity and independence. 
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Appendix 1 


Final Letter of Representation - Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 
(Audited body’s letterhead) 
 
Auditor General for Wales 
Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff 
CF11 9LJ 
[Date] 


Representations regarding the 2014-15 financial 
statements 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2015 for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness. 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 
consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 
We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 
therewith.  
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review 
of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 
We have provided you with: 
• full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, 
minutes of meetings and other matters;
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‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 
audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 


• the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud; 


• our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and involves: 
‒ management; 
‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


• our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others; 


• our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
financial statements; and 


• the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions 
of which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 
All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements. 
Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at 
fair value, are reasonable. 
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed. 
Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration note and the 
Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  
All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure 
have been adjusted for or disclosed. 
All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when 
preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects 
of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Representations by the Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys 
We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 
discussed with us. 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were 
recommended for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 16 September 2015. 
We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 
ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 
communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which you are unaware. 
 
 
 
 


Signed by: Signed by: 


Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief 
Executive 


Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 
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Final Letter of Representation – Chief Constable for 
Dyfed Powys 
(Audited body’s letterhead) 
 
Auditor General for Wales 
Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff 
CF11 9LJ 
[Date] 


Representations regarding the 2014-15 financial 
statements 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Chief 
Constable for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2015 for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on their truth and fairness. 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 
consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 
We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 
therewith.  
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review 
of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 
We have provided you with: 
• full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, 
minutes of meetings and other matters;
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‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 
audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 


• the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud; 


• our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the 
Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and involves: 
‒ management; 
‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


• our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others; 


• our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
financial statements; and 


• the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions 
of which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 
All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements. 
Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at 
fair value, are reasonable. 
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed. 
Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration note and the 
Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  
All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure 
have been adjusted for or disclosed. 
All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when 
preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects 
of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Representations by the Chief Constable for Dyfed 
Powys 
We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 
discussed with us. 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were 
recommended for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 16 September 2015. 
We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 
ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 
communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which you are unaware. 
 
 
 
 


Signed by: Signed by: 


Assistant Chief Officer - Resources Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 
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Proposed audit report of the Auditor General for Wales 
to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 
• Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys; and 
• Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group; and  
• Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund.  
for the year ended 31 March 2015 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’s accounting statements comprise the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
the Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and related notes.  
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group accounting statements 
comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group Cash Flow Statement 
and related notes.  
The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account 
and the Net Assets Statement and related notes.  
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15 
based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for Wales 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 
set out on page XX, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the 
statement of accounts, including the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 
Group accounting statements and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting 
statements, which gives a true and fair view.     
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting 
statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting 
statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 
or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys, the Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys Police Group and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s circumstances 
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of 
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significant accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer; and the overall 
presentation of the accounting statements and related notes.  
In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Explanatory Foreword 
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes 
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the 
implications for my report.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys as at 31 March 2015 and of his income and expenditure for the year then 
ended; and 


• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police 
Group  


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner 


for Dyfed Powys Police Group as at 31 March 2015 and of its income and expenditure 
for the year then ended; and 


• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  
• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions for Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31 March 2015 and of the amount and disposition of the 
fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, and 


• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Explanatory Foreword is consistent with the 
accounting statements and related notes. 
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Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 


• adequate accounting records have not been kept; 
• the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns; or 
• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; and 
• the Annual Governance Statement contains material misstatements of fact or is 


inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit.  


Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys, Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group and Dyfed Powys 
Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 
2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 
 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of 
Huw Vaughan Thomas 
Auditor General for Wales 
Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 
28th September 2015 
 
 
 
 


Page 16 of 24 - Audit of Financial Statements Report - Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 







Appendix 4 


Proposed audit report of the Auditor General for Wales 
to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys  
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 
• Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys; and 
• Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  
The Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’s accounting statements comprises the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, and related notes.  
Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account, the 
Net Assets Statement and related notes. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15 
based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for 
Wales 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 
set out on page XX, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the 
statement of accounts and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements, 
which gives a true and fair view. 
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting 
statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting 
statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 
or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’s circumstances and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension 
Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer; 
and the overall presentation of the accounting statements and related notes.   
In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Explanatory Foreword 
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes 
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the 
implications for my report. 
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Opinion on the accounting statements of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable for Dyfed 


Powys as at 31 March 2015 and of his income and expenditure for the year then 
ended; and 


• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  
• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions for Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31 March 2015 and of the amount and disposition of the 
fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, and 


• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15.  


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Explanatory Foreword is consistent with the 
accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 


• adequate accounting records have not been kept; 
• the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns; or 
• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; and 
• the Annual Governance Statement contains material misstatements of fact or is 


inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit.  
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Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 
and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements of the Public 
Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 
 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of 
Huw Vaughan Thomas 
Auditor General for Wales 
Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 
28th September 2015 
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Summary of corrections made to the draft financial 
statements which should be drawn to the attention of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 
During our audit we identified the following misstatements that have been corrected by 
management, but which we consider should be drawn to your attention due to their 
relevance to your responsibilities over the financial reporting process. 


Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 


Various A number of narrative, 
presentational and minor 
amendments were made to the 
accounts.  


To ensure consistency between the 
statement of accounts and the 
supporting notes and to ensure 
presentational accuracy in line with 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards.  


Property, Plant and 
Equipment  
Decrease in the net 
book value of property 
plant and equipment  


To correct an error in the prior period’s valuation exercise as the valuer had 
included finance costs in contravention to the Code guidance.  Finance 
department staff are currently recalculating the impact of this error on the 
financial statements in order to make the required amendment. 


Income / Debtors 
Decrease in debtor 
balance of 
£1.471 million 


Decrease in debtors balance for 
amounts due with Home Office 
£1,471 million. 


Decrease in income due from Home 
Office for ‘pensions top-up grant’ in line 
with the corresponding reduction in the 
provision in the accounts for the 
revised calculation of backdated lump 
sum payments due to pensioners. 


Expenditure / 
Provisions 
Decrease in PCC’s 
provisions of 
£4.709 million 
 
 
 
 
Expenditure / 
Creditors  
Increase in PCC’s 
creditor balance with 
Pension Fund of 
£3.238 million 


Decrease in PCC’s provisions of 
£4.709 million. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Increase in creditor balance 
£3.238 million. 
 
 
 
The above adjustments result in a 
decrease in PCC’s liabilities 
£1.471 million.  


To remove the original provision 
included in the PCC’s accounts for the 
original calculation of backdated lump 
sum payments due to pensioners.  
 
 
 
 
To include an amount for the revised 
calculation as a creditor with the 
Pension Fund accounts.  
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Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 


Capital 
Commitments 
Reduction in the 
capital commitment 
disclosure of 
£0.190 million 


Decrease in the disclosure for 
capital commitments of 
£0.190 million.  


To correct an over-statement in the 
disclosure for capital commitments.  


Remuneration ratio 
Decrease in the ratio 
of remuneration of the 
Chief of staff to the 
median of OPCC staff 
from 3.22 to 1.97  


Decrease in the ratio of 
remuneration of the Chief of Staff 
to the median of OPCC staff from 
3.22 to 1.97. 


To correct the remuneration ratio in 
line with Guidance.  


Audit fees 
Increase in the audit 
fee disclosure by 
£9,000 to £41,000.   


Increase in audit fee disclosure 
£9,000 to £41,000.   


To reflect actual fee charged for the 
audit of the 2014-15 accounts.  
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Summary of corrections made to the draft financial 
statements which should be drawn to the attention of the 
Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 
During our audit we identified the following misstatements that have been corrected by 
management, but which we consider should be drawn to your attention due to their 
relevance to your responsibilities over the financial reporting process. 
 


Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 


Various A number of narrative, 
presentational and minor 
amendments were made to the 
accounts.  


To ensure consistency between the 
statement of accounts and the 
supporting notes and to ensure 
presentational accuracy in line with 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards.  


Expenditure / 
Creditors 
Increase in creditor 
balance £35,000 


Under-accrual of expenditure 
£35,000.  


Under-estimate of liability due for 
rental of premises 2014-15.  


Remuneration ratio 
Decrease in the ratio 
of remuneration of the 
Chief Constable to the 
median of his 
employees from 4.01 
to 3.72.  


Decrease in the ratio of 
remuneration of the Chief 
Constable to the median of his 
employees from 4.01 to 3.72. 


To correct the remuneration ratio in 
line with Guidance.  


Audit fees 
Increase in the audit 
fee disclosure by 
£8,000 to £41,000.   


Increase in audit fee disclosure 
£8,000 to £41,000.   


To reflect actual fee charged for the 
audit of the 2014-15 accounts.  
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To:  Members of the Joint Audit Committee 


 
 


18 September 2015 
 


 


Joint Audit Committee Cover Note   


Agenda item 8 - Draft Annual Statement of Accounts for 2014-15 


The draft accounts incorporate audit adjustments agreed with Wales Audit Office, 


however they have not yet been subject to final checks by them. Therefore they are still 


a draft version and could be subject to further amendment. 


 


                                             Yours faithfully 


 


 


 


                                          Helen Morgan-Howard 


                                        Temporary Chief of Staff 
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Explanatory Foreword  
 
Introduction 
This Statement of Accounts provides information on the financial position and financial 
performance of the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys for the financial year 2014/15.   


The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act (PRSRA) 2011 established each Chief 
Constable as a legal entity or ‘corporation sole’ in their own right on 21


st
 November 2012. This 


is the third Statement of Accounts to be produced by the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys 
Police under these arrangements. 


The financial position of the consolidated Group of the Commissioner and Chief Constable for 
Dyfed Powys are set out in a separate Statement of Accounts document produced by the 
Police and Crime Commissioner. 


The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 require local government bodies to prepare 
a Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices. The Code is identified as 
representing proper practices.  


Statement of Accounts 


The Accounts that follow this foreword provide further detail of the financial affairs of the Chief 
Constable and are comprised of:- 


•  Independent Auditor’s Report; this sets out the opinion of the external auditor, the 
Wales Audit Office, on whether the Chief Constable accounts presented give a ‘true and 
fair view’ of the financial position and operations of the Chief Constable for 2014/15; 


•  Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts; this statement sets out 
the responsibilities of the Chief Constable and the Chief Constable’s Chief Finance 
Officer; 


•  Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; this statement summarises the 
resources that have been generated and consumed in providing policing and crime 
reduction services during the year. It includes all day to day expenses and related income 
on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually 
consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the 
year; 


•  Balance Sheet; this shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and 
liabilities recognised by the Chief Constable.  As under the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act, the Chief Constable is unable to hold cash, the Chief Constable’s 
current assets and liabilities are balanced to nil via intra-group transfers between the 
Commissioner and Chief Constable which are eliminated from the Group accounts; 


•  Notes to the financial statements, are also included that set out the Statement of the 
Accounting Policies used as the basis of preparing the financial statements and provide 
further information which is required by the Code of Practice. 


The Movement in Reserves Statement 


The Statement is required as part of the Code and would show the movement in the year on 
reserves held by the Chief Constable; as the Chief Constable does not hold reserves however 
this statement is not required; 
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The Police Pension Fund 


The Police Pension Fund Account appears in consolidated Group of the Commissioner 
and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and is also included in the Chief Constable’s 
Accounts.  It is the Chief Constable that is responsible for administering pension 
schemes and the appropriate maintenance and provision of the relevant accounts.  The 
role of the Police and Crime Commissioner in the pension schemes is limited to specific 
decisions and discretions concerning the pension and retirement of the Chief 
Constable, and discretion on the application of pension forfeiture for all police officers.  
The Chief Constable is responsible for ensuring that accurate and up to date 
information is provided to the Home Office on the force’s pension account and future 
forecasts for police pension income and expenditure.   


Annual Governance Statement 


The Annual Governance Statement is included within this Statement of Accounts. The 
statement is a statutory document which explains how the body of the Chief Constable 
has complied with its own Code of Corporate Governance, and also provides 
assurance on the systems of internal control that the Chief Constable maintains and on 
the way the Chief Constable conducts his affairs. 


Police and Crime Plan Priorities 


The Police and Crime Commissioner has published a Police and Crime Plan which 
builds on the priorities of those organisations that currently deliver crime and policing 
services in Dyfed Powys. It sets the Commissioner’s priorities for his current term of 
Office:  


 Preventing and dealing with incidents and crime  
 Protecting vulnerable people  
 Bringing people to justice  
 Enhancing access to policing services    
 Ensuring high standards of professionalism  
 Spending wisely  


The Chief Constable is accountable to the law for the exercise of police powers, and to 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for the delivery of efficient and effective policing, 
management of resources and expenditure by the police force. At all times the Chief 
Constable his officers and staff, remain operationally independent in the service of the 
communities that they serve. The Chief Constable is responsible to the public and 
accountable to the Police and Crime Commissioner for supporting the Police and Crime 
Commissioner in the delivery of the strategy and objectives set out in the Plan. 


The Commissioner set out a number of commitments within the Police and Crime Plan 
with regards to making data available to the public allowing them to judge progress 
made against the Plan.  The Reports published by the Commissioner are available at 
the following address:  


http://www.dyfed-powys.pcc.police.uk/en/Priorities-and-Policies/Performance-
Data/Performance-Data.aspx 


Financial Performance in 2014/15 against the Chief Constable’s Revenue budget 


This was a year of transition in many ways for the Force. All police staff under the 
direction and control of the Chief Constable transferred into the employment of the 
Force on 1


st
 April 2014. All police staff were previously under the employment of the 


Police and Crime Commissioner. Alongside this, the Force implemented the “Public 
First” programme which sought to realign and make minimally efficient the structures 
supporting operational policing. 



http://www.dyfed-powys.pcc.police.uk/en/Priorities-and-Policies/Performance-Data/Performance-Data.aspx

http://www.dyfed-powys.pcc.police.uk/en/Priorities-and-Policies/Performance-Data/Performance-Data.aspx
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In February 2014, the Police and Crime Commissioner set a budget for the Chief 
Constable of £95.6 million for the financial year 2014/15. This was some £1.8 million or 
1.6% less in cash terms than the budget of £97.4 million made available for the 
previous financial year. Taking account of inflationary and other cost pressures 
affecting the budget for 2014/15, the Chief Constable was required to deliver recurring 
budget savings of £3.747 million in order to deliver a balanced budget position. 


The Table below sets out the final out-turn position for 2014/15 compared with the 
original and revised budget for the Chief Constable.  Overall the Chief Constable has 
delivered policing services well within the budget limits set for 2014/15 and indeed will 
be contributing a net £1.850 million to reserves. 


  
Original 
Budget 


Revised 
Budget 


Actual 


Variance 
(Negative 


for 
Saving) 


  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Expenditure         


Employee Costs - Officers 63,329 63,025 66,006 2,981  


Employee Costs – Police Staff Costs 24,653 24,619 22,614 -2,005  


Indirect Staff Costs 2,235 2,213 1,440 -773 


Premises Costs 3,259 3,660 3,533 -127  


Transport Costs 3,021 2,895 2,383 -512  


Supplies & Services 8,802 8,875 7,703 -1,172  


Agency & Contracted Services 2,511 2,523 1,949 -574  


Total operating expenses 107,810 107,810 105,628 -2,182  


Add: Financing Costs 793 1,069  2,448  1,379  


 Total Expenditure 108,603 108,879 108,076 -803  


Income         


Government grants (Revenue & Capital) -6,844 -6,294 -9,494 -3,200  


Fees, charges & other service income -3,803 -4,443 -4,826 -383  


Total Income -10,647 -10,737 -14,320 -3,583  


Net Expenditure Funded by PCC 97,956 98,142 93,756 -4,386  


Contribution from Reserves -2,183 -2,536 1,850  4,386  


  95,773 95,606 95,606 0 


This report is in a subjective analysis format which is used by internal management for reporting purposes 
against the budget. The format differs to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, and 
reconciliation between the two formats is shown in Note 11. 


A brief explanation of the main variances is provided below: 


a) Police Officer costs and grant income: Police Officer costs are above the original budget 
by £2.981 million. The Force has provided a sum of £3.238 million as an estimate of 
costs arising as a result of the Pension Ombudsman’s decision, following the end of the 
financial year, to uphold an appeal against the Government Actuaries Department which 
could have implications in terms of commutation factors used for police officer 
retirements between 2001 and 2006. The Force has included an assessment of the 
commutation cost implications of the decision in the Revenue Account and an income 
reimbursement which is expected from the Government to cover the full costs against 
the Government Grant income line. 
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Aside from this adjustment, police officer numbers and budgets were slightly below the 
budgeted figures early in the financial year. Although recruitment to the full budgeted 
establishment was accelerated during the year a small saving of £257K remained 
against this heading at year end.  


b) Savings Attributable to Public First: 


i. Police Community Support Officer (PCSOs): These cost headings were affected 
by the “Public First” programme with some vacancies being held open during the 
early part of the year to offer redeployment opportunities for police staff post 
holders. 


ii. Police Staff Costs: This cost heading was particularly affected by the 
implementation of new operational and business support structures as a result 
of “Public First”. In total, reductions affecting police staff budgets were aimed at 
saving £3.6 million in a full year with £1.4 million of this arising as part year 
consequences in 2014/15.  


The primary consideration in relation to police staff was to minimise compulsory 
redundancies arising from “Public First” and to this end a number of positions 
were kept vacant to maximise potential redeployment opportunities for those 
post holders adversely affected. This had a consequential impact on the savings 
position experienced during the year as illustrated in the Tables below.  


The delay in implementing the pay award for police staff in 2014/15 also 
contributed to significant savings experienced against this heading for the year.  


Month / Position 


Target 
(Budget) 
Position 


(FTE) 


Actual 
Position 


(FTE) 
Difference 


(FTE) 


Monthly 
Difference 


(£'000) 


Pre Public First 656 0 0  0  


April 2014 629 591 -38  -108  


May 2014 628 590 -38  -107  


June 2014 632 586 -46  -133  


July 2014 632 566 -66  -186  


August 2014 632 539 -93  -262  


September 2014 632 539 -93  -263  


October 2014 570 538 -32  -90  


November 2014 570 542 -28  -77  


December 2014 569 544 -25  -69  


January 2015 569 538 -31  -87  


February 2015 569 540 -29  -82  


March 2015 569 535 -34  -96  


Variance Due to Staff Movements -1,562  


Impact of Pay Awards / Other factors -102  


Police Community Support Officers -341  


Final Variation in Police Staff Headings -2,005  
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c) Indirect Staff Costs: The approach taken to maximise potential redeployment 
opportunities within the Force also had a substantial impact in terms of reducing the 
one-off costs associated with the implementation of the “Public First” Programme. The 
budget for “Public First” included a worst case scenario of £1.7 million in respect of one 
off spending including redundancy and early retirement costs. The total costs incurred 
totalled £0.7 million a saving against the budget of some £1.0 million. Some additional 
savings also arose as a result of suspending the employment of agency workers during 
the “Public First” programme. 


Thus savings that were required to be delivered during the year have occurred 
considerably sooner and have cost considerably less than anticipated at the time of 
setting the budget. “Public First” has contributed an extra £2.6 million towards the 
overall savings position in 2014/15 on a non-recurring basis over and above the 
amounts derived from the agreed high level delivery plan in place at budget setting 
time. 


d) Financing Cost: The Commissioner has utilised reserves in order to finance some 
capital finance spending during the year rather than borrowing. This has resulted in an 
over spend against the Force budget for capital financed from revenue along with a 
corresponding reduction in borrowing and reserves. 


e) Other non-pay headings: The Force has made fortuitous budget savings against some 
significant non-pay headings including fuel and transport headings, forensics costs, 
operational equipment, air support, agency costs and from income received through 
providing support to other Forces in connection with a number of national events. A 
small underspend arose in relation to premises costs with some planned revenue 
maintenance improvements not being fully completed by the end of the financial year.  


The savings also reflect the sense of financial restraint being exercised by budget 
holders which persisted through the financial year as a result of the implementation of 
“Public First” along with procurement and other saving which were delivered during 
2014/15 in anticipation of a challenging budget position in 2015/16. 


The Commissioner has utilised reserves in order to finance some capital finance 
spending during the year rather than borrowing. This has resulted in an over spend 
against the budget for capital financing from revenue along with a corresponding 
reduction in borrowing and reserves. 


Pensions Liability 


The Pension Liability which is disclosed on the Balance Sheet reflects the underlying 
commitments that the Chief Constable has in the long run to pay retirement benefits as 
required under proper practice. In 2014/15 this amounts to £1,046,972 million 
compared to £883,923 million in 2013/14. This has a substantial impact on net worth as 
recorded in the Balance Sheet. Statutory arrangements to finance the liability include 
an employer pension contribution of 24.2% for police officers and 11.6% for police staff, 
with the actual pensions and commuted lump sum costs being met directly by the 
Police Pension Fund Account, which is funded by the Home Office via the 
Commissioner. 


Police Staff - Budgeted 2014/15  net leavers compared to Actual (FTE) 
APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 2015/16 Total 


Budgeted Monthly Reductions 


-27  -1  4 0 0 0 -62  0 -1  0 0 0 -19  -106  
Actual Reductions -65  -1  -4  -20  -27  -0  -1  4 2 -6  2 -5  0 -121  
Ahead of Schedule -38  0 -8  -20  -27  -0  61 4 3 -6  2 -5  19 -15  
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Exceptional items of Income and Expense 


Exceptional items are disclosed and described separately in the Statement of Accounts 
where it is necessary to do so to clearly explain the financial performance of the Chief 
Constable. Items reported as exceptional are material items of income and expense 
that have been shown separately due to the significance of their nature or amount. No 
exceptional items of income and expense have been identified in 2014/15. 


Significant Changes in Accounting Policies 


The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added new 
requirements in terms of declarations of remuneration which have been complied with 
in full. New accounting requirements have also been followed for the first year in 
relation to accounting for collaboration. This has required a Prior Year Adjustment 
which has affected 2013/14 comparatives. More information this can be found in the 
Notes to the Accounts.  


Major Changes in Statutory Functions 


The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act provided for the transfer of staff from 
the employment of the Police and Crime Commissioner to the employment of the Chief 
Constable on 1


st
 April 2014. A new Corporate Governance Framework was agreed 


during the year that reflected these changes. Force police staff and officers were 
already under the direction and control of the Chief Constable therefore this transfer 
has had no impact in relation to the Statement of Accounts in 2014/15. 


Material Events after the Reporting Date 


The Force has provided for the potential financial implications of the Pension 
Ombudsman’s decision following the end of the financial year, to uphold an appeal 
against the Government Actuaries Department which could have implications in terms 
of commutation factors used for Police Pensions paid between 2001 and 2006. 
Although guidance is awaited which will enable an exact costing to be undertaken, the 
Force has undertaken a calculation to estimate the potential liability against the 
Pension Account at this stage. Interest has been charged against Chief Constable’s 
Accounts. The Force has also included an income reimbursement which is expected 
from the Government to cover this cost in full. 


Discretionary Payments 


A matter had arisen nationally during 2013/14 which raises concerns about the legality 
of some discretionary allowances paid to a small number of chief officers at forces 
throughout England and Wales which includes Dyfed Powys Police.  A press release 
issued by the Police and Crime Commissioner, highlighted that national media 
coverage raised concerns about the lawfulness of such discretionary payments. This is 
due to the payments not being referred to under the specific provisions of the 2003 
Police Regulations.  


Further legal advice obtained by the Commissioner appears to confirm that the 
discretionary payments could be unlawful. Prompt action has been taken to stop any 
further discretionary allowances being paid until such time as the legal position is fully 
clarified. Some of these payments related to amounts paid in 2013/14 and these are 
highlighted in Note 14, Officers’ remuneration.  This matter is currently on going. 


Pensions Reform 


In March 2011 Lord Hutton was commissioned by the government to conduct an 
independent review into the future of public service pensions. As the cost of pensions 
has increased by a third in the last 10 years, he concluded that the existing scheme 
designs were not sufficiently robust to be sustainable. 
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Therefore, the government introduced a new Local Government Pension Scheme from 
April 2014 and a new Police Pension Scheme was implemented from April 2015. The 
key changes are: 


 A move from final salary to a Career Average Revalued Earnings scheme 


 The normal pension age will be 60 for police officers, whilst for police staff the 
normal pension age will be linked to the State Pension Age 


 The average member contribution will increase, with higher earners paying 
higher contributions than currently  


The reforms outlined above will shift the burden of cost from the employer (ultimately 
the taxpayer) to the employee, ensuring that pensions will be fairer and more 
sustainable in the future.    


The Chief Constable will, during 2015/16 determine the financial consequences of the above 
in his Medium Term Financial outlook.  


Impact of the current economic climate on the Chief Constable 


Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act the Police and Crime Commissioner of 
Dyfed Powys is responsible for allocating a budget to the Chief Constable and the Dyfed 
Powys Police Force. He is also responsible for allocating assets and funds to the Chief 
Constable and for setting the precept for the Force area. Home Office Police Grant and Welsh 
Government funding are all received by the Police and Crime Commissioner. 


The grant settlement for the 2015/16 financial year was particularly challenging with a 
reduction in funding of 5.1% being applied to central grants. The Police and Crime 
Commissioner applied a reduction in council tax level at band D of -5% for the year with a 
recurring shortfall in budget of £3.0 million being funded from the application of reserves. 


The Medium Term Financial Plan covering the period 2015/16 to 2018/19 was published 
alongside the budget for 2015/16 and this highlights a significant degree of uncertainty 
pertaining to the amount of funding which will be available to the Force over this period.  


The financial position beyond the 2015/16 financial year will be further affected by Home 
Office Ministerial decisions around formula funding methodology, the outcome of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review as well as local decisions made by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner on precept and policing priorities. In addition some significant cost increases 
could arise from April 2016 as a result of changes to National Insurance planned as part of 
wider Government Pensions Reforms. This could add around £1.3 million to the Chief 
Constable’s Budget requirement in 2016/17. 


A savings requirement of £13.315 million was identified in the forward budget position despite 
the inclusion of a 5% precept increase assumption in 2017/18 and 2018/19 with approximately 
£4.8 million of this being required by 2016/17.  


The Force is expecting some significant further financial challenge over the coming years with 
many of the options being considered for addressing this shortfall having potentially significant 
implications for staff and officers and / or services as highlighted in the chart below: 
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Given the significant uncertainty in the future funding position the Commissioner and 
Chief Constable have engaged discussions around planning for further cost reductions 
for the future through a range of measures. 


At the time of setting the 2015/16 budget, there was a cost reduction requirement of at 
least £13.3 million for the period 2016/17 to 2018/19.  The Force had firm plans in place 
at the time of setting the budget for 2015/16 to deliver £6.2 million through the work 
being undertaken by the Commissioner and Force leaving a shortfall of £7,1 million 
over the period. 


An exercise is being undertaken led by the Force’s senior leaders to update the Cost 
Reduction Plan to take account of the further cost reduction activities and opportunities 
that have been developed in recent months. The cost reductions sought for 2016/17 
and 2017/18 years are particularly challenging.  


It is apparent that current plans have been implemented successfully which will enable 
the Force to balance budgets for 2015/16 however further significant cost reductions 
will be required post April 2016 should funding assumptions prove correct. Increasingly 
it is feared that these will need to focus on difficult operational vs operational spending 
reduction decisions since support structures will have been optimised to be minimally 
efficient under the “Public First” and through further collaboration proposals. 


Beyond the challenges of Public First, the Force continues a busy programme of 
change and improvement. These include a continuous improvement programme to lean 
out and provide further improvements and cost savings to our processes, together with 
a comprehensive ICT, Estates and mobile data capital investment programme, which is 
digitising many of our current paper-based operational policing procedures. These 
programmes of work are progressing well and are bringing real benefits to the way we 
work. Full details of capital spending and financing in the year are included in the Police 
and Crime Commissioner’s Financial Statements. 
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Statement of Responsibilities 


The purpose of this statement is to set out the responsibilities of the Chief Constable 
and the Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts. 


The Chief Constable’s responsibilities 


The Chief Constable is required to: 


 make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to 
secure that one of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 
affairs, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer; 


 manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; and 


 approve the Statement of Accounts. 


I approve the Statement of Accounts for financial year 2014/15. 


   
    
  


Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys   Date 


 


 


The Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities 


The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts 
in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 


In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 


 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 


 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 


 complied with the Local Authority Code. 


The Chief Financial Officer has also: 


 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 


 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 


I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Chief Constable at the reporting date and of its expenditure and income for 
the year ended 31


st
 March 2015. 


 


 


      30.06.15 
           


Chief Financial Officer to the Chief Constable Date 
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Annual Governance Statement 


 


Scope of responsibility  
The Chief Constable (CC) is responsible for maintaining the Queen‘s Peace, and has 
direction and control over the force‘s officers and staff. The CC holds office under the 
Crown, but is appointed by the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC). He is 
accountable to the law for the exercise of police powers, and to the PCC for the 
delivery of efficient and effective policing, management of resources and expenditure 
by the Police Force. At all times the CC, his constables and staff, remain operationally 
independent in the service of the communities that they serve.  


The CC delivers operational policing in the Dyfed Powys area in accordance with the 
law and to proper standards. He has a duty to ensure that public money is 
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.   


Overview of Police Governance 


The CC is established under legislation as a legal entity or corporation sole in his own 
right. He has in place a governance framework that supports the effective exercise of 
his functions and for the management of risk. An overview of the Governance 
arrangements in being for the CC is shown in the chart below:  
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The governance framework has been in place at the Force throughout the year and up 
to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 


This Annual Governance Statement includes a summary of the governance 
arrangements in place for the CC for each of the six core principles of good governance 
as identified in the revised “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:  
Guidance Note for Police 2012”. 


Core principle 1 – Focusing on the purpose of the PCC and the Force, and on 
outcomes for the community, and creating and implementing a vision for the 
local area. 


The purpose, vision and outcomes sought by the Force are encapsulated by the phrase 
“Safeguarding our Community”. This is a well-established vision for Dyfed Powys Police 
that is very well understood by staff and encapsulates the collective purpose and 
mission of the Force.  


During the year the Force has been working to refresh its vision, mission and values in 
the context of seeking to embed the “Code of Ethics” into the Force. This work is being 
led by a small group of staff and officers.  


It has been recognised that cultural change needs to be implemented alongside this 
work to ensure that officers and staff feel empowered to “do the right thing” in their 
dealings with the public and victims. A programme of leadership training is being 
progressed to embed these important developments during the 2015/16 financial year.  


The priorities for policing in the local area are detailed in the Police and Crime Plan 
(PCP). This document is compiled by the PCC in consultation with the CC and 
published. The priorities take account of the views of local people and partners as well 
as the PCC’s priorities as the elected representative. The PCC and CC also take 
account of Strategic Policing Requirements issued by the Home Secretary. The PCP is 
an important document that sets out six priorities for the PCC namely: 


1. Preventing and dealing with incidents and crime 


2. Protecting vulnerable people 


3. Bringing people to justice 


4. Enhancing access to policing services 


5. Ensuring high standards of professionalism 


6. Spending wisely 


The CC is responsible for supporting the PCC in the delivery of the priorities set out in 
the Police and Crime plan. His operational delivery, performance monitoring 
frameworks and financing decisions focus on these priorities.  


The Policing Board sits at the heart of the governance arrangements in Dyfed Powys 
Police. The Policing Board meets weekly and the papers focus on the above PCP 
Priorities. A Police Accountability Board meets on a monthly basis and focusses in 
more depth on one particular priority. This is a public meeting. The papers from this 
meeting flow through to the Police and Crime Panel meeting which scrutinises the 
performance of the PCC. 


The CC exercises governance over the Force predominantly through the Chief Officer 
Group.  This group enables the CC to maintain oversight of operational policing 
matters, risks, projects, operational performance and financial/ VFM outcomes.  


Chief Officers receive a formal briefing once a week on key operational matters from 
senior police officers and an operations meeting is held quarterly with Chief Officers, 
senior officers and police staff.  
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The CC has his own Force Performance events which also focus on PCP priorities. The 
PCC and CC have media strategies to ensure that priorities are communicated to the 
Public. 


Neighbourhood Policing Teams regularly interact with the Public to consider and 
respond to their local concerns and emerging policing issues. Force Tasking Meetings 
focus resources operationally using the National Intelligence Model Based upon the 
Strategic Assessment and PCP priorities.  


There is a thorough focus on VFM through the analysis of financial data e.g. HMIC 
VFM profiles to identify areas of high spend and resource to consider the extent to 
which resources are efficiently channelled towards delivering against PCP priorities. 
The Force has completed the implementation of the “Public First” programme which 
has reduced business support costs dramatically. The focus throughout “Public First” 
has been to maintain delivery against the Force vision and PCP priorities whilst 
responding to the significant financial challenges facing the Country. 


Core principle 2 - Leaders, officers and partners working together to achieve a 
common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles.  


The legal powers and duties of the CC are set out in the Policing Protocol Order 2011.  
The CC is responsible for maintaining the Queen’s peace and has direction and control 
over the officers and staff operating within the Dyfed Powys Police force.  The Policing 
Protocol Order 2011 sets out how his functions will be exercised in relation to the PCC. 


There are legislative requirements upon the CC to appoint a suitably qualified Chief 
Finance Officer (CFO) and this has been in place throughout the year. 


The Financial Management Code of Practice builds on the Policing Protocol and sets 
out the working relationship between the PCC and the CC and their CFO(s), having 
regard to the role performed by the PCC’s Chief of Staff.  The roles and responsibilities 
of the CFO are set out in the Financial Management Code of Practice. 


The Corporate Governance Framework provides further details the key roles of the 
PCC, Chief of Staff, CC and the CFO(s) and this has been in operation through the 
2014/15 financial year. 


Job description, role requirements and person specifications exist for all roles within the 
Force.  A Performance Development Framework applies to all staff and officers working 
for the CC. This sets specific objectives for each position holder in the Force. 
Employees are appraised against these objectives and performance throughout the 
year. 


The CC ensures that, when working in partnership, all employees are clear about their 
roles and responsibilities both individually and collectively, and in relation to the 
partnership and the force. Decision making in relation to such matters are made at the 
Chief Officer Group and Policing Board.   


The Professional Standards Anti-Corruption Unit (ACU) is responsible for oversight of 
gifts and hospitality within the Force including the gifts and hospitality guidance and the 
online Gifts and Hospitality Register.  The ACU actively monitors any gifts and 
hospitality received and provides advice to officers on the realms of acceptability.  
Professional Standards, via its Marking Plan, raises awareness of gifts and hospitality 
recording requirements. 


The Professional Standards Department has responsibility for the Business Interests 
and Secondary Employment Policy.  This Policy aims to ensure that no police officer or 
staff member has a business interest or secondary employment that adversely affects 
or acts as a conflict of interest with their role in the Force. 
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Force officers and staff are to adopt the “Code of Ethics” that has been devised by the 
College of Policing and a working group has been established to take forward this work 
in Force. Further work has been undertaken to assess the cultural changes that are 
necessary to be implemented alongside this work to ensure that officers and staff are 
empowered to “do the right thing” in their dealings with the public and victims. 


Internal Audit focusses on compliance with procedures and processes including 
compliance with the Corporate Governance Framework. Reporting arrangements exist 
via the Joint Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance Group.  


Programme management arrangements are established for all major projects in 
accordance with best practice and any significant risks or issues are reported via a 
Programme Board. 


Core principle 3 - Promoting values for the PCC and demonstrating the values of 
good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. 


The Policing Protocol 2011 requires all parties to abide by the seven Nolan principles 
and these will be central to the conduct and behaviour of all. The PCC handles 
complaints and conduct matters in relation to the CC and monitors complaints against 
officers and staff. All police officers, including Chief Officers, are subject to the Police 
Conduct and Performance Regulations – Police (Conduct) Regulations 2008, Police 
(Performance) Regulations 2008, Police (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 208 
and the relevant provisions of the Police (Amendment) Regulations 2008 


The Force has a published a Code of Conduct for Police Staff which defines the 
standards of behaviour expected of staff and the disciplinary procedure which would be 
adopted should the standards not be adhered to.  Staff are made aware during their 
induction of how they are expected to conduct themselves in a professional capacity 
and the disciplinary process that they would be subjected to if these Codes were 
breached. 


Force officers and staff are to adopt the “Code of Ethics” that has been devised by the 
College of Policing and a working group has been established to take forward this work. 
Further work has been undertaken to assess the cultural changes that are necessary to 
be implemented alongside this work to ensure that officers and staff are empowered to 
“do the right thing” in their dealings with the public and victims. This includes refreshing 
the Force’s vision, mission and value statements. 


The Professional Standards department records and investigates complaints made by 
members of the public about police officers and police staff.  It also investigates internal 
misconduct matters relating to police officers and coordinates investigation of on-duty 
criminal offences relating to police officers and police staff. A review of the Professional 
Standards Department was undertaken in 2014/15 and some considerable 
improvements in the timeliness and completion of reviews can be evidenced.  The force 
maintains a strong working relationship with the IPCC which has a wider remit than 
previously in terms of investigation and complaints. 


Dyfed Powys was one of the first Forces to introduce a bespoke online system – the 
Dissatisfaction System (dis-sat) for the recording of low level dissatisfaction.  It gives 
responsibility to local policing areas to record and deal with low level dissatisfaction at 
source – this is in line with the ethos of the IPCC Statutory Guidance of ”getting things 
right first time” and it prevents matters being unnecessarily introduced into the formal 
legislative complaints process.  


The Force has a multi-departmental Learning the Lessons Working Group this is 
coordinated by the Legal Service Department and chaired by the Deputy CC.  The 
forum allows for all departments, and in particular the Professional Standards 
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Department, to bring issues where learning has been identified (e.g. through public 
complaints or conduct investigations) and whereby lessons can be promulgated to the 
Force as is necessary. 


The Force has a “Safecall” confidential reporting line which sets out the whistle blowing 
process for receiving and investigating complaints. Having whistleblowing and 
complaints procedures in place encourages staff and the public to feel confident in 
raising concerns and to question and act upon concerns about practice.  It provides 
avenues for concerns to be raised in confidence and receive feedback on any action 
taken. 


Core principle 4 – Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject 
to effective scrutiny and managing risk. 


The CC is committed to a clear, effective and robust accountability framework through 
the Chief Officer Group and Policing Board.  The Policing Board allows the CC to 
exercise his role in a transparent manner, providing a forum for accountability and 
decision making about issues central to the efficient functioning of the force.  


The CC receives independent legal advice from the Head of Legal Services, who is an 
employee of the Force and heads up the Legal Services team. 


All decisions made by Chief Officer Group and Policing Board are properly documented 
and available for inspection at any time.  Such a process ensures that relevant legal, 
financial and other considerations are properly recorded and considered prior to a 
decision being taken.  The Publication Scheme establishes the means by which 
information relating to decisions is made available to local people, with those of greater 
interest receiving the highest level of prominence, except where operational and legal 
constrains exist. 


The Corporate Governance Framework identifies the parameters for decisions-making, 
including the delegations, financial limits for specific matters and standing order for 
contracts. These limits are embedded into the main financial system so that purchase 
orders are appropriately budgeted and approved at the appropriate level of Authority. 
The Force publishes details of all contracts over £25K and transactions over £500 on-
line and all payments made to senior staff and officers are published in the Annual 
Statement of Accounts and online on a quarterly basis. The Force employs 3 
professionally qualified procurement staff to ensure compliance with lawful and 
transparent procurement processes. 


The decision making protocol sets out principles behind how decisions are taken by, 
and on behalf of the CC and the standards to be adopted.  This ensures that those 
making decisions are provided with information that is fit for the purpose – relevant, 
timely and accurate and gives clear explanations of technical issues and their 
implications. 


The National Decision Model is applied to spontaneous incidents or planned 
operations, by officers or staff within the force as individuals or teams, and to both 
operational and non-operational situations. 


The risk management strategy establishes how risk is embedded throughout the 
organisation, with the CC and his staff and officers all recognising that risk 
management is an integral part of their job.  Communication and engagement 
strategies demonstrate how the CC ensures that local people are involved in decision 
making.  The risk register is a standing agenda item on the Chief Officer Group 
meetings and this has been strengthened and improved as a result of the Internal Audit 
Review of risk management. 
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The CC observes all specific legislative requirements placed upon him, as well as the 
requirements of general law, and in particular to integrate the key principles of good 
administrative law – rationality, legality and natural justice into this procedures and 
decision making processes. 


Core principle 5 – Developing the capacity and capability of the PCC, officers of 
the PCC and the Force to be effective. 


A Performance Development Review system ensures that objectives are set, 
performance is reviewed and action plans include any training or development needs. A 
Senior Leadership Forum exists to develop leaders within the organisation and to 
consider and discuss emerging issues and approaches to Strategic opportunities and 
challenges. 


The CC ensures that his officers and staff receive appropriate induction and that 
training and development programmes are tailored to individual needs and 
opportunism, linked to the Performance Development Review system. 


This training plan ensures that skills are developed on a continuing basis to improve 
performance including the ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when 
outside expert advice is needed.  


The public are regularly consulted with and individuals are encouraged from all sections 
of the community to engage with, contribute to and participate in the work of the force. 


Core principle 6 – Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure 
robust public accountability 


Locally administered victim satisfaction surveys are undertaken by interviewing a 
randomly selected sample of members of the public that have had contact with the 
Force.  The survey provides the force with valuable feedback about the experiences, 
perceptions and views of victims of crime and anti-social behaviour, which is invaluable 
in shaping the services provided. 


Crime Survey for England and Wales confidence data is published quarterly by the 
PCC.  This provides an independent assessment of public perception and is 
contextualised to be comparable to other parts of the country. The results of these 
surveys are reported to the public via quarterly reporting of progress of the Police and 
Crime Plan. 


This is complemented by communication and engagement strategies which set out how 
local people will be involved by the CC to ensure that they are engaged as part of key 
decision making processes affecting the operational delivery of policing.  This involves 
being engaged during consideration of strategic annual planning arrangements but also 
having a voice over issues of interest to local people as they emerge. 


The Wales Audit Office presented their findings from their review of the effectiveness of 
public engagement to the Audit Committee meeting in December 2013.  They study 
concluded that there was a strong commitment to community engagement and an 
opportunity to build on this to enable citizens help shape the police service. 


During the year the IT Strategy recognised the potential that social media has to 
receive feedback from and provide information to the public. The Force has been 
developing a range of tools and is to encouraging officers and staff to engage with the 
public on social media such as through Twitter and Facebook regarding key events, to 
provide specific information or regarding operational incidents particularly where the 
help of the public is sought. The public can also rate and comment upon the services 
provided by Dyfed Powys Police online and any comments or issues are followed up 
and considered by staff and officers. 
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Review of effectiveness 


The CC has responsibility for conducting at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 
of the governance framework, including the system of internal control.   The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Corporate Governance Group, managers 
within the organisation who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of 
the governance environment, the head of internal audit’s annual report and also by 
comments made by the external auditor and other review agencies and inspectorates. 


Corporate Governance Group 


The Corporate Governance Group has been delegated responsibility for undertaking 
the process of maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance 
framework. The Corporate Governance Group has met four times in the last year to 
collate evidence and assess developments that could be considered to strengthen 
further corporate governance arrangements in the form of a Corporate Government 
Matrix, which is structured around the six core principles.  This matrix forms the 
evidence base for the Annual Governance Statement. 


The Group last met on the 9
th
 of June 2015 to undertake an annual Review of the 


Corporate Governance arrangements and concluded that good progress had been 
made in taking forward the governance framework during 2014/15 particularly in 
relation to the following areas: 


 Update of the Corporate Governance Framework following Stage 2 transfer and 


subsequently during the year following changes in procurement legislation 


 Progress had been made in relation to risk management arrangements which 


needed to be further progressed and embedded 


 The Governance arrangements around the “Public First” programme had 


delivered the project to a successful conclusion however a post implementation 


exercise should be undertaken to ensure learning is captured 


 It was recognised that governance arrangements over collaborative working 


may need to be strengthened further following the work being undertaken by 


Capita on collaborative opportunities 


Joint Audit Committee 


Joint Audit Committee members received training on their roles and responsibilities 
during 2014/15.  Under the terms of reference, the Joint Audit Committee is responsible 
for conducting, at least annually, a review of the governance framework, including the 
system of internal audit and the system of internal control. 


These reviews are completed and informed by the work of the Corporate Governance 
Group, internal auditors and also officers and staff within the Force, who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment.  In 
addition comments made by external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates inform this review. 


The Joint Audit Committee met on the 23
rd


 of June 2015 to consider the Corporate 
Governance Framework and Annual Governance Statement. Committee Members 
expressed concern that one historic priority one recommendation in relation to 
formalising the force wide Business Continuity plan remained outstanding. It was 
agreed that this would be prioritised and that additional information and assurance on 
this matter would be provided at the next meeting. 
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Internal audit 


The primary role of internal audit is to give an assurance to the CC on the effectiveness 
of the controls in place to manage risks.  To this end the Internal Auditor delivers an 
annual opinion of the effectiveness of the controls reviewed by the internal audit team 
during the year.  This annual opinion, set out in the annual report on the Internal 
Auditor, is one of the key sources of evidence in support of the Annual Governance 
Statement.  With reference to 2014/15 the internal auditor, TIAA Ltd expressed the 
following opinion; 


“I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow me to 
draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Dyfed Powys 
Police's risk management, control and governance processes. In my opinion, the 
OPCC and the Force has adequate and effective management, control and governance 
processes to manage the achievement of its objectives.” 


Two audits namely Estates Management (Responsive Repairs) and Debtors received 
an overall limited assurance rating during the year however the highest priority agreed 
actions have been implemented during the year. Progress with implementing Audit 
recommendations is monitored by the Joint Audit Committee. 


External Audit 


The external auditor, the Wales Audit Office audits the financial statements of the CC 
and also reviews this Annual Governance Statement.  External audit plans and reports, 
including the Annual Audit letter, are considered by the Joint Audit Committee at 
appropriate times in the annul cycle of meetings.  


Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) 


The role of the HMIC is to promote the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of 
policing in England, Wales and Northern Ireland through inspection of police 
organisations and functions to ensure agreed standards are achieved and maintained; 
good practice is spread and performance is improved.  HMIC also provides advice and 
support to the tripartite partners (Home Secretary, PCC and forces) and plays an 
important role in the development of future leaders.  


During 2014/15, the force has experienced a significant increase in HMIC inspection 
activity which does provide an additional level of governance and assurance over the 
management of the Force. The following inspections were undertaken in the year: 
 


 Police effectiveness, efficiency and legitimacy - ‘Peel Inspection’ – September 


18-19th 2014, report published 27th November 2014 


 Police Integrity and Corruption Inspection 23rd – 25th July – report received 


November 2014 


 Crime Data Integrity inspection June 23rd – July 2nd 2014 – report received 


18th November 2014 


 Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA) – January 2015 


 Digital crime and policing – January 2015 


 National Child protection inspection – February 2015 


 Firearms licensing – March 2015 


 Honour based violence – March 2015 


 Peel 2015 phase 1 – April-June 2015 


 Financial and resource establishment returns 


 Leadership 
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 Vulnerability in police prosecution case files (ViCF) – April 2015 


 Welfare of vulnerable people in custody – March 2015 


HMIC reports are sent to the CC for consideration and appropriate action.  HMIC, 
working, alongside the Wales Audit Office play a key role in informing the PCC and the 
public on the operational efficiency and effectiveness of the Force and, in so doing, 
facilitate the accountability of the CC to the public. Updates and significant actions 
undertaken as a result of the HMIC activities are reported and monitored through the 
Chief Officer’s Group and the Joint Audit Committee.  


Significant governance issues and actions 


The Review has found that considerable progress has been made in establishing and 


strengthening the governance framework over the year 2014/15.  The CC has 


concluded that the governance framework is fit for purpose. 


During the previous year the Force dealt appropriately with difficult issues following the   
debate reported in the media around the legality of a small number of discretionary 
payments and stopped such payments and took legal advice once it became apparent 
that there were questions over their legality. This matter is currently on-going. 


The Force has implemented a major change programme called “Public First“ during 
2014/15 which tested the robustness of corporate governance arrangements fully.  
This change programme was successfully completed ahead of schedule.   


Beyond the challenges of Public First, the Force continues a busy programme of 
change and improvement, which brings its own governance related challenges. These 
include a continuous improvement programme to lean out and provide further 
improvements and cost savings to our processes, together with our comprehensive 
mobile data programme, which is digitising many of our current paper based 
operational Policing working procedures. Both programmes of work are progressing 
well and are bringing real benefits to the way we work, but the heart of this success lies 
in the additional governance measures we have introduced to manage delivery and 
ensure the changes and plans remain coherent with wider Force strategies. These 
additional measures include dedicated programme and project boards for key 
initiatives, together with regular scrutiny of progress by the Chief Officer Group. 


The PCC and CC have made considerable progress in addressing Stage 2 transfer 
issues, appointment of their own CFOs and in establishing a comprehensive Corporate 
Governance Framework implemented from 1st April 2014.  


The Force has been advised on the implications of the results of the review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework by the Corporate Governance Group, the 
Joint Audit Committee and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for 
purpose. The areas already addressed during the year and those to be specifically 
addressed with new actions planned are outlined below. 


 


 


Governance area Action 


Risk Management Arrangements 
The Force has adopted new Risk 
Management arrangements based around 
the completion of a Dynamic and Corporate 
Risk Management reporting and monitoring.   


 
To embed the new risk management 
framework over the course of the next 
year and fully implement the 
processes across all areas of activity. 


Public First  
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The “Public First” programme had been 
delivered successfully and concluded, 
however some learning needs to be 
captured.  


To undertake a high level post 
implementation assessment of 
“Public First”. 


Code of ethics, leadership and culture 
To progress the work on-going around 
ethics, leadership and culture.   


 
To progress further the work that is 
being undertaken to embed the 
“Code of Ethics” document into the 
Force and to complete the work on 
mission, vision and values and 
leadership development in this 
context. 


Governance of Collaboration and 
Partnerships 
To reconsider corporate governance 
arrangements appropriate for collaboration 
following the publication of the findings of 
the Capita Review into further collaboration. 
To monitor and consider potential 
governance issues that could result from 
local government restructuring in Wales. 


 
 
For Corporate Governance Group to 
monitor developments and consider 
the adequacy of corporate 
Governance arrangements over 
collaboration and partnerships and 
collaboration. 


Business Continuity 
The outstanding recommendation in relation 
to Business Continuity needs to be 
addressed during 2015/16.  


 
That the Force put in place a 
formalised force wide business 
continuity plan that reflects the staff 
systems and accommodation 
changes made during the Public First 
Programme. 


 
Declaration 


We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address 
the need for improvements that were identified in our reviews of effectiveness over the 
year and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual 
review. 
 


Signed:      Signed   


          


Simon Prince     Edwin Harries 


Chief Constable     Chief Finance Officer 


 


Signed:  


 


Alasdair Kenwright 


Chair of the Joint Audit Committee 
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Audit General for Wales’ report to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


 
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 


 Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys; and 


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


for the year ended 31
st
 March 2015 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’s accounting statements comprises the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, and related 
notes.  
Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund 
Account, the Net Assets Statement and related notes. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2014-15 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor 
General for Wales 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 
Accounts set out on page 11, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the statement of accounts and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s 
accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical 
Standards for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that 
the accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’s 
circumstances and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer; and the overall 
presentation of the accounting statements and related notes.   
In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Explanatory 
Foreword to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements 
and related notes and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course 
of performing the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies, I consider the implications for my report.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable for Dyfed 


Powys as at 31 March 2015 and of his income and expenditure for the year then 


ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 







       Single Entity Statement of Accounts 2014/15 
    


 


23 


 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions for Dyfed Powys Police 


Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2015 and of the amount and 


disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15.  


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Explanatory Foreword is consistent with 
the accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in 
my opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns; or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 


 the Annual Governance Statement contains material misstatements of fact or is 
inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit.  


Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Chief Constable for Dyfed 
Powys and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements of 
the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit 
Practice. 
 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of 
Huw Vaughan Thomas 
Auditor General for Wales 
Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 
[Date] 
 


 


  


 


 


 


 







       Single Entity Statement of Accounts 2014/15 
    


 


24 


 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


2013/14   2014/15 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


58,986 0 58,986 Local Policing  59,752 0 59,752 


6,080 0 6,080 Dealing with the Public  6,568 0 6,568 


9,977 0 9,977 
Criminal Justice 
Arrangements 


 
10,544 0 10,544 


7,612 0 7,612 Road Policing  8,053 0 8,053 


4,032 0 4,032 Community Intelligence  4,117 0 4,117 


7,574 0 7,574 Specialist Operations  7,909 0 7,909 


10,651 0 10,651 Special Investigation  11,250 0 11,250 


3,160 0 3,160 Investigative Support  3,190 0 3,190 


5,279 0 5,279 National Policing  5,779 0 5,779 


933 0 933 Non Distributed Costs   325 0 325 


42 0 42 
Corporate and 
Democratic Core 


 
33 0 33 


114,326 0 114,326 Cost of Services  117,520 0 117,520 


0 0 0 
Other operating 
expenditure 


 
0 0 0 


38,733 0 
38,733 


 


Financing and 
investment income and 
expenditure 


 


 39,221 0 39,221 


0 (153,059) (153,059) 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 


 
0 (156,741) (156,741) 


153,059 (153,059) 0 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
156,741 (156,741) 0 


  (48,292) Actuarial (gains)/losses 
on pension 
assets/liabilities 


   126,037 


  48,292 Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


   (126,037) 


  0 Other comprehensive 
income and 
expenditure 


   0 


  0  Total comprehensive 
income and 
expenditure 


   0 
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Balance Sheet 


31
st


 March 2014 - 
Restated 


 Note 31
st


 March 2015 


£’000   £’000 


0 Property, plant & equipment  0 


0 Investment property  0 


0 Intangible assets  0 


0 Assets held for sale  0 


883,923 Long term debtors  1,046,972 


883,923 Long term assets  1,046,972 


 Short term investments  0 


444 Inventories  402 


429 Short term debtors  273 


0 Cash and cash equivalents  0 


(873) Intra-group transfer  (675) 


 Current assets   


0 Bank Overdraft  0 


0 Short term borrowing  0 


(3,608) Short term creditors  (3,835) 


0 Provisions  0 


3,608 Intra - group transfer  3,835 


 Current liabilities   


0 Long term creditors  0 


0 Long term borrowing  0 


(883,923) Other long term liabilities  (1,046,972) 


0 Provisions  0 


0 Grant receipts in advance  0 


(883,923) Long term liabilities  (1,046,972) 


0 Net assets/liabilities  0 


0 Usable reserves  0 


0 Unusable reserves  0 


0 Total reserves  0 
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Police Pension Fund  


Chief Constable Fund Account  Chief Constable 


2013/14   2014/15 


 £’000   £’000 £’000 


  Contributions receivable:    


(10,026)   Employer contributions  (10,249)  


(5,470)   Member contributions  (5,849)  


(242)  Transfers in from other pension funds  (800)  


(463)  Other income  (739)  


 (16,201)    (17,637) 


  Benefits payable:    


20,346   Pensions  21,507  


6,307   Commutations and lump sum 
retirement benefits 


 7,713  


   Interest payable on back-dated lump 
sums 


 595  


 26,653    29,815 


  Payments to and on Account of 
Leavers: 


   


414  Transfers out to other pension funds  425  


4  Refunds of contributions  0  


47 465 Other expenditure  159 584 


 10,917 Net amount payable for the year   12,762 


 (10,917) Home Office Grant   (12,762) 


 0    0 


 


Chief 
Constable  


Net Assets Statement Chief 
Constable  


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


   


0 Short term debtors 3,238 


0 Net Current Assets 3,238 


   


0 Provisions (3,238) 


0 Net Current Liabilities (3,238) 


   


0  0 


Details on how the Police Pension Fund is administered are included in the Explanatory 
Foreword and in the Accounting Policies Section of these accounts. 


New Factors for Pension Commutation Lump Sum & Interest 


A provision of £3.238m has been made in the Pension Fund Account which reflects a 
reasonable estimate of the likely payment due to retired police officers as a result of the 
Milne v Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) court ruling.  See note 5 for further 
details. A debtor for the same amount has also been included as a contribution from the 
PCC for income reimbursement which is expected from the Government to cover this 
cost in full. 
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Notes to the Accounts 


1. Accounting policies 


General Principles  


The Statement of Accounts summarises the Chief Constable’s transactions for the 
2014/15 financial year and the position at the year-end of 31st March 2015. The Chief 
Constable is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts 
and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014, which require them to be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 and 
the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14, supported by International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).  


The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets 
and financial instruments.  


Accruals of Income and Expenditure  


Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received. In particular:  


 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there 
is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption they 
are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 


 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather 
than when payments are made. 


 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is 
written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected. 


Exceptional Items  


When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are 
to an understanding of the financial performance of the Chief Constable.  


Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors  


Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not 
give rise to a prior period adjustment.  


Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect 
of transactions, other events and conditions on the financial position or financial 
performance of the Chief Constable. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and 
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.  


Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
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Employee benefits  


Benefits Payable during Employment  


Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are 
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which the employees render 
service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (including time off in lieu 
and flexi leave) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which 
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at salary 
rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the 
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves 
Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to the revenue budget in the financial 
year in which the holiday absence occurs.  


Termination Benefits  


Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief 
Constable to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an 
officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy or early retirement and are charged on 
an accruals basis to the appropriate service in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement when the Chief Constable is demonstrably committed to the 
termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer to 
encourage voluntary redundancy.  


Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Chief 
Constable to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated 
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.  


Post-Employment Benefits  


Police officers and police staff have the option of belonging to the pension schemes 
relevant to them: 


 Police Officers Pension Scheme, administered through a Police Pension Fund  


 Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Carmarthenshire County 
Council.  


Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Chief Constable.  


This Police Officer Pension scheme is “unfunded” which means that no investment 
assets are built up to pay pensions and other benefits in the future, and therefore no 
provision to meet the liability for future payments of benefits is included in the balance 
sheet. The relevant service is charged with the employer’s contributions payable to 
Police Officer Pensions in the year. Information on the long term pensions liability can 
be found in Note 19. 


Local Government Pension Scheme  


The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:  
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The liabilities attributable to the Chief Constable are included in the Balance Sheet on 
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future 
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc. 
and projections of earnings for current employees.  


Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 3.4% 
(based on the indicative rate of return on a high quality corporate bond).  


The assets attributable to the Chief Constable are included in the Balance Sheet at 
their fair value:  


- Quoted securities – current bid price 


- Unquoted securities – professional estimate  


- Unitised securities – current bid price  


- Property – market value.  


The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components:  


Service cost comprising: 


 Current service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service 
earned this year – allocated in the appropriate Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked.  


 Past service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment 
or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – 
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed 
Costs. 


 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), ie net interest expense for 
the Chief Constable – the change during the period in the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to 
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account 
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a 
result of contribution and benefit payments.  


Re-measurements comprising: 


 The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 


 Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial 
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to 
the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 


 Contributions paid to the pension fund: cash paid as employer’s contributions to 
the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.  


In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Chief Constable to the pension 
fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
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relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means 
that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash 
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby 
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees.  


Discretionary Benefits 


The Chief Constable also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of 
retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as 
a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to 
make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme.  


Events after the Balance Sheet date  


Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when 
the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be 
identified:  


 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.  


 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a 
category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes 
of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.  


Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts. 


Inventories 


Inventories are included in the balance sheet at current cost price. IAS 2 states that 
Inventories should be measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The 
policy does not therefore comply with IAS 2 but the difference is not material.  


Leases  


The Chief Constable as Lessee (Operating Leases) 


Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from the use of the 
leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over 
the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. where 
there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease). 


Overheads and Support Services  


The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from 
the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service 
Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14 (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle 
is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in 
proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:  


 Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s status as a multi-functional, democratic organisation  
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 Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to 
employees retiring early and impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for 
Sale.  


These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate 
headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net 
Expenditure on Continuing Services.  


2. Previous Period Adjustments 


Resource allocation Note 
The Resource Allocation note for 2013/14 has been amended to reflect changes in 
financial reporting and operating structures which were implemented in the 2014/15 
financial year.  All police staff costs were charged to a central budget during the 
implementation of Public First. In addition operational policing structures were organised 
across two main departments of Territorial Policing and Investigations rather than the 
three Operational Departments that existed in 2013/14. The format of the note has been 
amended with the comparatives for 2013/14 being restated to allow for a like for like 
comparison between the two financial years. 


3. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 


The Code requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to disclose information 
relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new 
accounting standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code.  The 
following changes will be required from 1 April 2015: 


 


 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 


 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle 


 IFRIC 21 Levies  
 
The issues included in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle are: 
 


 IFRS 1: Meaning of effective IFRSs; 


 IFRS 3: Scope exceptions for joint ventures; 


 IFRS 13: Scope of paragraph 52 (portfolio exception); and 


 IAS 40: Clarifying the interrelationship of IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IAS 40 
Investment Property when classifying property as investment property or owner-
occupied property 


 
In the Financial Statements for 2015/16, the effect of the changes will be assessed 


and where necessary, the comparative figures restated, however, it is anticipated that 
the changes will not have a material impact. 


4. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 


The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions 
made by the Chief Constable about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  
Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other 
relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, 
actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 


The items in the Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet at 31
st
 March 2015 for which there is 


a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 
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Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 


Pensions 
liability 


Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 
depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at 
which salaries are projected to increase, 
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and 
expected returns on pension fund assets.  A firm 
of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the 
Chief Constable with expert advice about the 
assumptions to be applied. 


The effects on the net pension liability 
of changes in individual assumptions 
can be measured.  For instance, an 
increase of 1 year in the life 
expectancy assumption for the police 
officer pension scheme would result in 
an increase to the pension liability of 
£20.825 million. 


Effect of 
Police 
Ombudsman 
Decision 


The Force has received revised commutation 
factors from the Government Actuary 
Department in relation to Pension Commutation 
paid between 2001 and 2006.  It is believed that 
this will be funded by Government.  There is 
uncertainty over the exact amount of the liability 
and the extent to which these costs will be 
funded by Government. 


Although a reasonable estimate of the  
liability has been included in the 
accounts, the final figures are still in 
the process of being calculated and 
there is a possibility that the accounts 
could be misstated 


5. Events after the balance sheet date  


The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer 
on 30th June 2015.  Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the 
financial statements or notes.  Where events taking place before this date provided 
information about conditions existing at 31st March 2015, the figures in the financial 
statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the 
impact of this information.  
 
The following confirms the existence of conditions at the 31st March 2015:  
 
Pension Ombudsman’s final Determination – Milne V Government Actuary’s 
Department (GAD) 
 
Tony King , the Pensions Ombudsman, published his final determination in the case of 
Mile v GAD during May 2015. Mr William Milne was a Scottish firefighter who served 
with the Strathclyde Fire and Rescue Authority until he retired in 2005. Mr Milne 
claimed that GAD had a statutory duty to review the tables of commutation factors and 
as such a review would have led to him having a larger lump sum. The Final 
Determination finds in Mr Milne’s favour. An opportunity to review the commutation 
factors was lost in 2001/2 and again between 2002 and 2004. 
This was a lead case and as such the Final Determination has a direct read across to 
members of the police pension scheme who retired between 1 December 2001 and 20 
November 2006. The Home Office has been discussing with HM Treasury how the 
costs of making these payments are to be met and GAD has produced guidance for 
scheme administrators on calculating the payments that are due. Although the exact 
calculation will not be completed for a number of months, a reasonable estimate of the 
obligation that existed at the balance sheet date has been provided for, along with an 
income reimbursement which is expected from the Government to cover this cost in full, 
in the 2014/15 financial statements.   
It is understood at this stage that the full costs are likely to be met by the Government 
and therefore a corresponding income entry has been included in the accounts. 
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Cost Category 


 
Pensions 
Account 
(£’000) 


Commutation Costs Estimate 2,643 


Interest  Costs Estimate 595 


Income Estimate -3,238 


Estimated Net Impact 0 


 
A provision and a debtor for these amounts are included in the Pension Fund Account. 


6. Financing and investment income and expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from 
involvement in financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest. 
 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


0 Interest payable and similar charges 0 


38,733 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 39,221 


0 Interest receivable and similar income 0 


0 Investment Properties income and expenditure 0 


0 Specific capital grants available during year 0 


38,733 Total 39,221 


7. Financial Instruments 


A Financial Instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange 
transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give 
rise to financial instruments. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
A Financial Liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the 
Chief Constable and can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash 
or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with 
another entity that are potentially unfavourable to the Chief Constable. 
The Chief Constable’s non-derivative financial liabilities held during the year are 
measured at amortised cost and comprised: 
 


 Trade Payables (Creditors), 


 Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme. 
 


Financial Assets 
A Financial Asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Chief 
Constable that is represented by cash or other instruments or a contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset. The financial assets held by the Chief 
Constable during the year are held under the following classification: 


 Loans and receivables (financial assets that have fixed or determinable 
payments and not quoted in an active market) comprising: 


 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 
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Financial Instruments – Balances 


The financial assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the 
following categories: 


*An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s accounts based on the net current asset position as the Chief Constable is 
unable to hold cash balances. 


**An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s accounts for the pensions liability related to the Chief Constable’s staff. 


Income, Expense, Gains and Losses  


No gains and losses have been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in relation to financial instruments. 


Fair Values  


The Chief Constable’s long-term financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at 
amortised cost.  


The 2010 Code of Practice requires the Fair Values of these assets and liabilities to be 
disclosed for comparison purposes.  Fair Value is defined in Financial Reporting 
Standard 26 (FRS 26) as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a 
liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  
The Fair Value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally the transaction 
price.  


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st


   March 
2014 


31
st


 March 
2014 


31
st


   March 
2015 


31
st


 March 
2015 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:   


(883,675) (883,675) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 
(1,047,283) (1,047,283) 


(248) (248) 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension 


assets/liabilities 
311 311 


(965) (965) Trade Payables (Creditors) (1,293) (1,293) 


(884,888) (884,888) 
Total 


Financial Liabilities 
(1,048,265) (1,048,265) 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 
2015 


31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 
2015 


 £’000  £’000  


Trade Payables (Creditors)* 0 0 (965) (1,293) 


Liability related to Defined 
Benefit Pension Scheme** 


(883,675) (1,047,283) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (883,675) (1,047,283) (965) (1,293) 


Loans and receivables:     


Trade Receivables (Debtors)* 0 0 391 273 


Total Financial Assets 0 0 391 273 
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  Financial Assets:   


391 391 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 273 273 


391 391 Total Financial Assets 273 273 


 


Financial Liabilities 


The liability related to the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme has been assessed on an actuarial 
basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in 
future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc.  The fair value 
of this liability at the Balance Sheet date is therefore the same as the carrying amount. 


 
For trade payables, the carrying value has been used as a reasonable approximation of fair 
value therefore the fair value at the Balance Sheet date is the same as the carrying amount. 


 
Financial Assets 
For trade receivables, the carrying value has been used as a reasonable approximation of fair 
value therefore the fair value at the Balance Sheet date is the same as the carrying amount 


8. Inventories 


 


9. Short-term Debtors  


 


31
st


 March 2014 - Restated  31
st


 March 2015 


£’000  £’000 


0 Central Government Bodies 0 


4 Local authorities 0 


1 Other public bodies 8 


351 Limited Companies 242 


35 Other entities and individuals 0 


0 Value added tax claims 0 


38 Other Police authorities 23 


429 Total 273 


 


 Franking and uniform 
consumable stores 


Fleet maintenance 
materials 


Total 


 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of 
year: 


309 358 87 86 396 444 


Purchases 415 362 279 229 694 591 


Recognised as an expense in the 
year 


(366) (373) (280) (225) (646) (598) 


Written off balances 0 (26) 0 (10) 0 (36) 


Reversals of write offs in previous 
year/average price adjustment 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Balance outstanding at year end 
358 321 86 80 444 401 
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10.  Short-term Creditors 


31
st


 March 2014  31
st


 March 2015 


£’000  £’000 


500 Central Government bodies 658 


538 Local authorities 577 


452 Other Police Authorities 418 


7 Other Public Bodies 45 


630 Limited Companies 1,071 


1,481 Other entities and individuals 1,066 


3,608 Total 3,835 


11.  Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions 


The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the 
Chief Constable on the basis of budget reports analysed across subjective headings. 


These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the 
financial statements.  In particular: 


 no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation 
Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement) 


 the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s 
pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the 
year 


 expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to 
Divisions and Departments. 


The income and expenditure of the Chief Constable’s principal directorates recorded in 
the budget reports for the year is as follows:  


 


Directorate Income and Expenditure 2014/15 


 


 Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


0 0 
0 


0 


Government grants 0 0 0 0 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 


Employee costs 43,235 12,361 21,935 77,531 


Premises costs 347 97 97 541 


Transport costs 1,207 170 166 1,543 


Supplies & services 2,049 1,465 127 3,641 


Agency & contracted 
services 


54 145 1,192 1,391 


Total Expenditure 46,892 14,238 23,517 84,647 


Net Expenditure 46,892 14,238 23,517 84,647 
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Directorate Income and Expenditure 2013/14 – Restated 


 


 Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


0 0 0 0 


Government grants 0 0 0 0 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 


Employee costs 47,590 18,320 4,665 70,575 


Premises costs 284 185 934 1,403 


Transport costs 1,284 196 65 1,545 


Supplies & services 1,911 1,321 3 3,235 


Agency & contracted 
services 


46 159 939 1,144 


Total Expenditure 51,115 20,181 6,606 77,902 


Net Expenditure 51,115 20,181 6,606 77,902 


 


Reconciliation of Directorate Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Directorate income and 
expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 


 


Chief 
Constable 
2013/14 - 
Restated 


 Chief 
Constable 


2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


77,902 Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 84,647 


22,732 
Net amounts of services and support services not 
included in the Analysis 


21,175 


13,692 
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement not reported to management 
in the Analysis 


11,698 


0 
Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


114,326 
Cost of services in Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


117,520 
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 


This reconciliation shows how the figures in the Directorate Analysis of Income and 
Expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 


 


Financial year 2014/15 


 


Chief Constable 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


0 0 0 0   


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0   


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0   


Government grants & 
contributions 


0 0 0 0   


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0   


Intra-Group Transfer 0 0 0 0 (156,741) (156,741) 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 (156,741) (156,741) 


Employee costs 77,531 12,954 1,288 91,773 0 91,773 


Premises costs 541 2,787 149 3,477 0 3,477 


Transport costs 1,543 840 179 2,562 0 2,562 


Supplies & services 3,641 4,037 438 8,116 0 8,116 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,391 557 (840) 1,108 0 1,108 


Pension costs 0 0 7,178 7,178 39,221 46,399 


Charge for Use of Non-
Current Assets 


0 0 3,306 3,306 0 3,306 


Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Interest payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Total Expenditure 84,647 21,175 11,699 117,520 39,221 156,741 


Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 


84,647 21,175 11,698 117,520 (117,520) 0 
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Financial year 2013/14 - Restated 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


   0  0 


Interest & investment 
income 


   0  0 


Income from council tax    0  0 


Government grants & 
contributions 


   0  0 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


   0  0 


Intra-Group Transfer    0 (153,059) (153,059) 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 (153,059) (153,059) 


Employee costs 70,575 15,667  86,242  86,242 


Premises costs 1,403 1,711  3,114  3,114 


Transport costs 1,545 992  2,537  2,537 


Supplies & services 3,235 3,562  6,797  6,797 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,144 800  1,944  1,944 


Pension costs   10,793 10,793 38,733 49,527 


Charge for use of Non-
Current Assets 


  3,390 3,390  3,390 


Icelandic bank impairment   0 0  0 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


  (491) (491)  (491) 


Interest payments    0  0 


Total Expenditure 77,902 22,732 13,692 114,326 38,733 153,059 


Surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 


77,902 22,732 13,692 114,326 (114,326) 0 
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12. Agency services 


Pension services provided by Carmarthenshire County Council  


The council administer the Local Government and Police Pension schemes and levy 
an annual fee based on the number of active and deferred members, as well as 
actual pensioners. A cost is also incurred for maintenance and the annual benefit 
statements. 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


46 Expenditure incurred in administering the Police and 
Local Government Pension Schemes 


62 


46 Net surplus arising on the agency arrangements 62 


13. Collaborative Arrangements  


Police forces in Wales have a long, successful history of collaborating to develop 
specialist areas of policing. This included those under the remit of the former Police 
Authorities of Wales Joint Committee. Future collaboration will be driven by the need 
to satisfy the Strategic Policing Requirement and by the outcomes of the Regional 
Strategic Assessment of threats, risks and harm to the southern region of Wales.  
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Force will be responsible for 
ensuring the Strategic Policing Requirement is met.  As part of this, he will look to 
work in collaboration with other Commissioner’s and forces to provide the most 
effective service possible. Such agreements are regulated by Section 22A of the 
Police Act 1996, as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011.  
 
The collaborative services and their funding continue under revised Commissioner 
and Force Governance arrangements. These are in effect considered as ‘Pooled 
Budgets’ with agreements for Funding Contributions, made and varied from time to 
time, and certain Specific Government Grants. The pooled budgets are effectively 
hosted by the Commissioner and Force for South Wales Police on behalf of the four 
police forces in Wales.   
 
Included in accounting policies (Note 1) are definitions and explanation of the new 
accounting requirements, the latter involving shares of income, expenditure, assets 
and liabilities. As a result of the requirement of IFRS11, the following tables provide 
revised information relating to Dyfed Powys Police. 
 
The Expenditure and Income Statements for the main collaborative arrangements 
are provided below:  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 3,925 466 3,470 1,913 10,523 20,297 


Non Pay Expenditure 815 17 694 708 1,278 3,512 


Gross Expenditure 4,740 483 4,164 
 


843 


2,621 11,801 23,809 


Specific Grant Income (4,639) (483) (2,852) (500) 0 (8,474) 


Income (101) 
 


 (34) (27) 0 (162) 


Total Income & Grants (4,740) (483) (2,886) (527) 0 (8,636) 


South Wales Police 0 0 (620) (1,131) (5,766) (7,517) 


Dyfed Powys Police 0 0 (248) (440) (3,143) (3,831) 


Gwent Police 0 0 (278) (523) (2,892) (3,693) 


North Wales Police 0 0 (132) 0 0 (132) 


Force  Contribution/Fair 
Share 


0 0 (1,278) (2,094) (11,801) (15,173) 


(Surplus) or Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 


 


1. A Regional and Organised Crime Unit was established in 2013/14 which encompasses 
the previous Regional Intelligence Unit, Regional Asset Recovery Team, Witness 
Protection, along with a number of new capabilities in line with the ACPO core Regional 
Organised Crime Unit capabilities model. 


2. The Joint Firearms Unit became fully operational in November 2012 and includes both 
firearms operations and firearms training.  


3. Any capital items/fixed assets are accounted for as procured and financed from use of 
grants and force revenue contributions.  No assets are recognised in this note and which 
otherwise would be accounted for through usable capital reserves. There are no charges 
for depreciation.  Assets are recognised on Force/Commissioner Balance Sheets, CIES, 
and MIRS Statements. 


4. Each force may hold their own reserves for collaborative purposes. 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 3,049 483 2,564 2,048 10,442 18,586 


Non Pay Expenditure 1,094 36 1,041 766 1,164 4,101 


Gross Expenditure 4,143 519 3,605 2,814 11,606 22,687 


Specific Grant Income (4,090) (519) (2,262) (642) 0 (7,513) 


Income (53) 0 (5) (29) (61) (87) 


Total Income & Grants (4,143) (519) (2,267) (671) (61) (7,661) 


South Wales Police 0 0 (628) (1,157) (5,612) (7,397) 


Dyfed Powys Police 0 0 (239) (450) (3,189) (3,878) 


Gwent Police 0 0 (327) (536) (2,744) (3,607) 


North Wales Police 0 0 (144) 0 0 (144) 


Force Contribution/Fair 
Share 


0 0 (1,338) (2,143) (11,545) (15,026) 


(Surplus) or Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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14.  Officers’ remuneration  


Senior employees - The remuneration paid to the Chief Constable’s senior employees is as follows: 


      


Salary 
(including 
fees and 


allowances) 


Discretionary 
Allowance 


Benefits in 
kind - 


medical 
cover  


Benefits in 
kind - lease 


cars 


Benefits in 
kind – house 
loan interest 


Other 
payments 


Total 
remuneration 


excluding 
pension 


contributions 


Pension 
contributions 


Total 
remuneration 


including 
pension 


contributions 


      
 


Note 1 Note 2   Note 3         


  Year Note £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 


Chief Constable 
2014/15  126,237 0 0 4,425 0 0 130,662 29,733 160,395 


2013/14   125,020 0 0 5,994 0 0 131,014 29,439 160,453 


Deputy Chief Constable  2014/15 4 113,978 0 0 4,106 0 5,593 123,677 26,766 150,443 


Temporary Deputy Chief 
Constable  


2013/14 4 61,705 0 0 0 0 0 61,705 14,488 76,193 


Assistant Chief Constable  2013/14 4 45,663 7,259 583 4,737 1,500 0 59,742 10,679 70,421 


Assistant Chief Constable 
(A) 


2014/15 5 46,628 0 0 1,943 0 0 48,571 11,284 59,855 


2013/14 5 49,889 0 0 2,262 0 0 52,151 12,073 64,224 


Assistant Chief Constable 
(B) 


2014/15 6 50,130 0 0 2,184 0 0 52,314 11,765 64,079 


Director of Finance / 
Chief Financial Officer 


2014/15  64,647 0 0 0 0 0 64,647 7,499 72,146 


2013/14 7 5,310 0 0 0 0 0 5,310 791 6,101 


Temporary Director of 
Finance & 
Resources/Chief 
Financial Officer to Chief 
and Commissioner 


2013/14 8 44,017 0 0 0 0 0 44,017 6,502 50,519 


Director of Resources 2014/15 9 42,065 0 0 0 0 0 42,065 4,846 46,911 


Director of Legal and 
Compliance 


2014/15 10 68,175 0 0 0 0 0 68,175 0 68,175 


2013/14 
 


5,667 0 0 0 0 0 5,667 0 5,667 


Total 2014/15     511,860 0 0 12,658 0 5,593 530,111 91,893 622,004 


Total 2013/14     337,271 7,259 583 12,993 1,500 0 359,606 73,972 433,578 
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Note 1: A discretionary allowance of 7.5% of pensionable pay has been paid to some senior employees.  Dyfed 


Powys Police Authority approved the Chief Officers Benefits Policy but nationally, concerns have been raised over 
the legality of these allowances.  Legal advice has confirmed that the discretionary payments could be unlawful and 
in light of this, such allowances were stopped until such time as the legal position is fully clarified.  Chief Officers who 
have been in receipt of these allowances have been informed of this and that potential recovery action could be 
taken if the allowances are subsequently confirmed as being unlawful.  This remains an open issue that will be 
progressed during 2015/16. 
 
Note 2: Some senior employees benefitted from free medical insurance cover, paid for by the organisation. The 


Commissioner and the Chief Constable received legal advice in 2013/14 to the effect that providing free medical 
cover to police officers is unlawful, as it breaches Police Regulations. No decision had been made by 31/03/2015 on 
whether to recover the costs of the medical cover from the individuals concerned and this remains an open issue that 
will be progressed during 2015/16. 
 
 
Note 3: Under the Chief Officer Relocation Package Policy dated 19


th
 March 2012, Chief Officers who relocated their 


main home to the force area were entitled to receive a house loan of up to £300,000, for a period of up to 18 months, 
on which interest was chargeable at the Bank of England base rate prevailing at the time the loan was entered into. If 
this rate was lower than the official HMRC rate of interest, a benefit in kind tax liability arose. This policy was revised 
on 17


th
 January 2013 and interest on any future loans will be charged at a rate equivalent to the official HMRC rate. 


 
Note 4:The Assistant Chief Constable acted as temporary Deputy Chief Constable during the period 15/09/2013 – 


31/03/2014.  He was appointed to this role permanently on 01/04/2014. The figure in the ‘Other Payments’ column 
relates to reimbursement of the benefit in kind tax liability that was incurred as a result of relocation expenses 
claimed 2012/13 and the resultant change in tax code.  This was in accordance with the Windsor Recommendation  
which states that Police and Crime Commissioners should pay all reasonable costs arising from the sale and 
purchase of a chief officer’s house and should pay all tax liabilities arising from any relocation packages.  The 
Assistant Chief Constable repaid his house loan in full on 26/07/2014.     
 
Note 5: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (A) was appointed on 15/09/2013 and remained in this post until 


27/09/2014.  The annualised salary for this post was £91,632 for 2013/14 and £95,245 for 2014/15  
          
Note 6: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (B) was appointed on 28/09/2014.  The annualised salary for this 


post was £95,245 
 
Note 7: The temporary Director of Finance and Resources was appointed to the new, permanent, role of Director of 


Finance/Chief Financial Officer to the Chief Constable from 01/03/2014. The annualised salary for this post was 
£63,714 in 2013/14.          
  
Note 8: A temporary Director of Finance and Resources/Chief Financial Officer to the Commissioner and Chief 


Constable was appointed from 18/07/2013 to 28/02/2014. Included in the salary, fees and allowances figure of 
£44,017 is an honorarium of £6,216 for undertaking the additional duties of the role of Chief Financial Officer to the 
Commissioner during this period.      
 
Note 9: The Director of Resources was appointed on 11/08/2014.  The annualised salary for this post was £65,229 


in 2014/15   
 
Note 10: The Director of Legal and Compliance was appointed on 01/03/2014. This is a new post. The annualised 


salary for this post was £68,001 in 2013/14. 
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Other employees 


The other Chief Constable employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for 
the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following 
amounts: 


2013/14  2014/15 


Number of employees  Number of employees 


9 £60,000 - £64,999* 6 


1 £65,000 - £69,999 5 


1 £70,000 - £74,999* 1 


7 £75,000 - £79,999 4 


1 £80,000 - £84,999 3 


0 £85,000 - £89,999 1 


1 £195,000 - £199,999** 0 
 


*The remuneration paid to two individuals one in £60,000 - £64,999 and the other in £70,000 - 
£74,999 includes redundancy.  If this payment were to be excluded for the both individuals they 
would not be included in the table for receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for the year. 


** The remuneration paid to the individual in this banding includes redundancy. If this payment 
were to be excluded the individual would fall into the banding £95,000 - £99,999. 


Ratio of Chief Constable Remuneration 


The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added a new 
requirement to report the following remuneration ratio information.  Remuneration 
includes Basic salary,overtime, allowances and benefits in kind: 
 


a. the remuneration of the body’s Chief Constable during the year to which the 
accounts relate 


b. the median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the body’s employees in post 
at 31


st
 March 2015; and 


c. the ratio of the amount in sub-paragraph (a) to the amount in sub-paragraph (b);  
 


The remuneration of the Chief Constable during 2014/15 was £130,662. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Chief Constable’s 
employees as at 31


st
 March 2015 was £35,105. 


The ratio of the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the median Chief Constable 
employee’s remuneration was 3.72:1. 


Exit Packages 


The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the 
redundancies during 2014/15 is set out in the table below: 
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Exit package cost 
band 


Number of Voluntary 
Redundancies in each 


band 
Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. 
Redundancy Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 28 321 84 405 


£20,001 - £40,000 13 374 91 465 


£40,001 - £60,000 1 45 0 45 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000+ 0 0 0 0 


  42 740 175 915 


The total cost of the exit packages in the table above have been charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account in the current year. The cost of the 
Redundancies is included in the Service Analysis and the Pension Strain as a Non 
Distributed Cost. 


In comparison, the number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of 
the redundancies during 2013/14 is set out in the table below: 


Exit 
package 


cost band 


Number of Voluntary 
Redundancies in each 


band 
Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. 
Redundancy Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 1 19 0 19 


£20,001 - £40,000 2 10 56 66 


£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000+ 2 214 359 573 


  5 243 415 658 


 


Audit Committee members 


The Commissioner and Chief Constable have appointed a Joint Audit Committee to 
provide an additional source of assurance to the Commissioner and the Chief Constable 
that systems of internal control are working effectively, and that internal audit is 
operating within their Code of Practice. Payments made to these members are included 
within this note. 


The Scheme of Governance states that the Joint Audit Committee members’ expenses 
should be split equally between the Commissioner and Chief Constable. In 2014/15 50% 
of the cost of allowances and expenses paid is not material and has not been accounted 
for in the Chief Constable’s accounts. 
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15. External audit costs 


The Chief Constable has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the 
Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-
audit services provided by the Chief Constable’s external auditors: 


 
 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


41 Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office with regard to external audit services 
carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 


41 


0 Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office in respect of statutory inspections 0 


0 Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office for the certification of grant claims and 
returns for the year 


0 


0 Fees payable in respect of other services provided by the Wales Audit Office 
during the year 


0 


41 Total 41 


 


In 2014/15 the Group received a payment of £15,772 as a result of a redistribution of 
reserves to local government / police bodies and a refund of £3,381 in respect of the 
2013/14 performance fee. These amounts have not been reflected in the figures 
above.  


 


16. Related parties 


The Chief Constable is required to disclose material transactions with related parties 
– bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Chief 
Constable or to be controlled or influenced by the Chief Constable.  Disclosure of 
these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Chief Constable 
might have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have 
secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Chief 
Constable. 


Central Government 


Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Chief 
Constable – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the 
Chief Constable operates and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that 
the Chief Constable has with other parties.   


The Chief Constable has business relationships with Central Government Bodies, 
giving rise to income and expenditure transactions as follows:  


 


2013/14  2014/15 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 528 Home Office 0 455 


0 6 Welsh Government 0 0 
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Joint Audit Committee Members 


The Joint Audit Committee provides an additional source of assurance to the 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable that systems of internal control are working 
effectively and that internal audit is operating within their Code of Practice. 


None of the Joint Audit Committee members, or parties related to them, have 
undertaken any material transactions with the Chief Constable in 2014/15.   


Officers 


None of the Senior Officers, or parties related to them have undertaken any material 
transactions with the Chief Constable in 2014/15. 


Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government) 


The Chief Constable has business relationships with the Precepting Bodies, giving 
rise to income and expenditure transactions as follows: 


 


2013/14  2014/15 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 1,276 Carmarthenshire County Council 0 930 


0 148 Ceredigion County Council 0 146 


0 160 Pembrokeshire County Council 0 175 


0 140 Powys County Council 0 142 


 


Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Chief Constable 


 


There are no entities controlled or significantly influenced by the Chief Constable. 


17.  Leases 


Chief Constable as Lessee 


Finance Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any Finance Leases. 


Operating Leases 


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys leases property from other property owners 
where appropriate and affordable, to provide suitable accommodation for operational 
policing and support. Dyfed Powys also has operating leases for plant and 
equipment which includes photocopiers.  


The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future 
years are: 


 


31
st


 March 2014  31
st


 March 2015 


£’000  £’000 


158 Not later than one year 181 


488 Later than one year and not later than five years 551 


1,160 Later than five years 1,146 


1,806 Total 1,878 
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The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
during the year in relation to these leases was: 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


225 Minimum lease payments 292 


0 Contingent rents 0 


0 (Sublease payments receivable) 0 


225 Total 292 


Chief Constable as Lessor 


Finance Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any finance leases. 


Operating Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any operating leases. 


18. Termination benefits  


During 2014/15 a total of 42 staff exited the organisation under redundancy, which 
cost the Chief Constable £915k, funded from the recurring revenue budget.  


Further details regarding exit packages payable to senior officers are included within 
note 14. 


19.  Defined benefit pension schemes  


Participation in Pension schemes 


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Chief Constable 
makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these 
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Chief Constable has a 
commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that 
employees earn their future entitlement. 


The Chief Constable participates in two post-employment schemes: 


 The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by 
Carmarthenshire County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary 
scheme, meaning that the Chief Constable and employees pay contributions into 
a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with 
investment assets. It should be noted that all staff are employed by the PCC, 
however for the majority of staff direction and control lies with the Chief 
Constable. Costs have been apportioned to reflect this. 


 The Police Officer Pension Scheme – this is an unfunded defined benefit final 
salary scheme, consequently the fund has no investment assets. Benefits 
payable are funded by contributions from employers and employees with any 
difference between benefits payable and contributions receivable being met by 
the top-up grant from the Home Office via the Commissioner. 


Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 


The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when 
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as 
pensions. 


These costs are reversed out of the Chief Constable’s accounts into the 
Commissioner’s accounts as the Chief Constable is not responsible for holding any 
reserves. This is shown below as an intra-group transfer: 
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 Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


  2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement: 


     


Cost of services:      


 Current service cost  (3,947) (2,949) (20,947) (19,153) 


 Past service cost  (511) (230) (0) (0) 


 Other  (94) (92) (0) (0) 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


     


 Net interest cost  (1,215) (596) (37,535) (38,625) 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 


 (5,767) (3,867) (58,482) (57,778) 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement: 


     


Re-measurement of the net defined benefit 
liability comprising: 


     


 Return on plan assets (excluding 
the amount included in the net 
interest expense) 


 7,396 8,348 (0) (0) 


 Experience (gain)/loss  (0) (0) (0) 35,173 


 Re-measurement gains and 
losses arising on changes in 
demographic assumptions 


 (613) 0 (11,970) (0) 


 Re-measurement  gains and 
losses arising on changes in 
financial assumptions 


 10,484 (23,160) 43,243 (146,398) 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


 11,500 (18,679)  (27,209) (169,003) 


Commissioning Costs (intra–group 
transfer) 


 (11,500) 18,679 27,209 169,003 


Total net cost  0 0 0 0 


Movement in Reserves Statement:      


 Reversal of net charges made to 
the Surplus or Deficit for the 
Provision of Services for post 
employment benefits in 
accordance with the Code 


 0 0 0 0 


Actual amount charged against the General 
Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 


     


 Employers’ contributions payable 
to scheme 


 0 0   


 Employers’ contributions payable 
to scheme  


   0 0 


 


An intra-group transfer has been processed to the Chief Constable’s accounts, as the 
Chief Constable is not responsible for managing reserves. 
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Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 


The majority of the employment costs are incurred by the Chief Constable, therefore 
assets and liabilities relating to post-employment benefits remain within the Chief 
Constable accounts. 


The net liability arising from the defined benefit obligation: 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Present value of the defined 
benefit obligation 


(95,019) (124,805) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


Fair value of plan assets 80,472 93,830 0 0 


Net liability arising from 
defined benefit obligation 


(14,547) (30,975) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


 


The total liability recorded in the Chief Constable’s accounts is £883.923 million.  Due 
to materiality levels no split is available between the Chief Constable’s and 
Commissioner’s accounts, therefore the figure stated above is for the Group. 


 


Reconciliation of the movements in the Fair value of Scheme (Plan) Assets: 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening fair value of scheme 
assets 


72,851 80,472 0 0 


Interest income 3,249 3,733 0 0 


Re-measurement gain / (loss)     


 The return on plan 
assets, excluding the 
amount included in the 
net interest expense 


2,470 8,348 0 0 


Contributions from employer 3,142 2,641 0 0 


Contributions from employees 
into the scheme 


1,225 1,205 0 0 


Benefits paid (2,371) (2,477) 0 0 


Other (if applicable) (94) (92) 0 0 


Closing fair value of scheme 
assets 


80,472 93,830 0 0 
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 


 


 Funded Liabilities: Local 
Government Pension Scheme 


Unfunded Liabilities: Police 
Pension Scheme 


2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening Balance at 1
st


 April: (102,040) (95,019) (863,930) (869,128) 


Current service cost (3,947) (3,011) (20,947) (19,153) 


Interest cost (4,464) (4,341) (37,535) (38,625) 


Contributions from scheme 
participants 


(1,225) (1,205) (5,463) (5,849) 


Actuarial gains and (losses)     


 Actuarial gains / losses 
arising from changes in 
demographic assumptions 


(613) 0 (11,970) 0 


 Actuarial gains / losses 
arising from changes in 
financial assumptions 


10,484 23,471 43,243 (146,398) 


 Other (if applicable) 4,926 0 (0) 35,173 


Past service cost (274) 0 (0) 0 


Losses / (gains) on curtailment (where 
relevant) 


(237) (235) (0) 0 


Benefits Paid 2,371 2,477 27,474 27,672 


Liabilities extinguished on settlements 
(where relevant) 


(0) (0) (0) (0) 


Closing balance at 31
st


 March (95,019) (124,805) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


 


Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 


 


 Fair value of Scheme assets 


2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 


Cash and cash equivalents (266) 695 


Equity instruments 58,038 64,104 


Bonds 15,072 19,385 


Property 7,628 9,646 


Total Assets 80,472 93,830 


 


Basis for estimating Assets and Liabilities 


Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on 
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. 


Both the LGPS and Police Officer pension scheme liabilities have been estimated by 
Mercer Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the 
LGPS Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2014. 


The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
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 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


Long-term expected rate of return 
on assets in the scheme: 


    


Equity investments 7.0% 6.5%   


Bonds 7.7% 5.1%   


Other 6.7% 6.4%   


Mortality assumptions:     


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) 
for current pensioners: 


    


 Men 23.2 23.3 27.1 27.2 


 Women 25.7 25.8 29.6 29.7 


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) 
for future pensioners: 


    


 Men 25.4 25.5 29.5 29.7 


 Women 28.0 28.1 32.1 


 


32.2 


Other assumptions:     


Rate of  inflation 2.4% 2.1% 2.4% 2.0% 


Rate of increase in salaries 3.9% 3.6% 3.9% 3.5% 


Rate of increase in pensions 2.4% 2.1% 2.4% 2.0% 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.6% 3.4% 4.5% 3.3% 


The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to actuarial assumptions 
set out in the table above.  


The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and 
assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other 
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume 
that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is 
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The 
estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the 
scheme i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The 
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below 
did not change from those used in the previous period. 


 


Local Government Police Scheme 2014/15 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in 
assumption 


Decrease in 
assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 2,325 0 


Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 2,905 0 


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


1,025 0 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or 
decrease by 0.1%) 


0 2,839 
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Police Pension Scheme 2014/15 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in 
assumption 


Decrease in 
assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 20,825 0 


Rate of inflation (increase of decrease by 0.1%) 20,693 0 


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


5,240 0 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or 
decrease by 0.1%) 


0 20,250 


Impact on the Group’s Cash flows 


The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a 
rate as possible. The Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to 
achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 3 years. The triennial valuation was 
completed on 31


st
 March 2014 and details of the future employers’ rates are shown 


below: 


Year Employer rate 
2015/16 11.6% 


2016/17 11.6% 


 


20. Contingent Liabilities 


The Chief Constable has a contingent liability in relation to overtime payments.  
Recent court and employment tribunal cases have ruled that employees of private 
companies are entitled to have overtime payments included in the calculation of 
holiday pay. As a result companies and public sector bodies may be liable to claims 
from employees for underpaid holiday pay. The Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed-Powys have not received any claims from officers or staff and the amount of 
the contingent liability cannot be reliably estimated. 


 


21. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 


Credit Risk 


Trade Receivables 


The following analysis summarises the Chief Constable’s potential maximum 
exposure credit risk, based on the experience gathered over the last five financial 
years on the level of default on trade debtors, adjusted for current market 
conditions. As per the Code of Practice requirements, the disclosure below includes 
details only of debtors that have arisen as a result of trading activities. Balances and 
transactions arising from statutory functions (i.e. tax and NNDR payments) are 
excluded from this disclosure note, as they have not arisen from contractual trading 
activities. 


 


Group Gross Debtors 


£’000 


 


Average % Default 
based on Previous 5 
Years’ Experience for 


the Group  


(2009/10 to 2013/14) 


Bad Debt Provision 
for the Group 2014/15 


£’000 


Bad Debt Provision 
for 2014/15 as a % or 
Group Gross Debtors 


1,542 1.24 112 7.26 
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Glossary of Terms 
 


Term Definition 


2014/15 This refers to the period covered by these accounts – 1 April 
2014 to 31 March 2015 


2013/14 This refers to the period covered by these accounts - 1 April 
2013 to 31 March 2014. 


Accounting policies These are a set of rules and codes of practice the used when 
preparing the accounts. 


Actuarial gains and losses For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial 
deficits or surpluses that arise because: 


 Events have not coincided with the actuarial 
assumptions made in the last valuation ;or 


 The actuarial assumptions have changed. 


Amortisation Intangible assets should be amortised on a systematic basis 
over their economic lives. 


Asset revaluation A revaluation of fixed assets is a technique required to 
accurately record the true value of capital assets held in the 
balance sheet. The purpose of a revaluation is to bring into the 
accounts the fair market value of non-current assets. 


Capital expenditure Expenditure on the acquisition or construction of assets, which 
have a long-term value e.g. land and buildings. 


Capital receipts Income from the sale of non-current assets, which can only be 
used to finance new capital expenditure or repay outstanding 
debt on assets financed from loans. 


Usable capital receipts are those capital receipts which are not 
set aside for specific purposes but are available to be used for 
any capital purchases. 


Carrying value The carrying value of an asset is the value of the asset included 
in the Balance Sheet. 


CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, one 
of the professional accountancy bodies in the UK.  CIPFA 
specialises in the public services and has responsibility for 
setting accounting standards for these services. 


Commissioning The entire cycle of assessing the needs of people in a local 
area, designing services, and then securing them. 


Component accounting Accounting for non-current assets’ individual components 
separately. 


Consumer Price Index (CPI) Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in 
the retail price of goods and services – excludes mortgage 
interest payments, council tax and other housing costs. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fixed_assets

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fair_market_value
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Term Definition 


Contingent liabilities These exist where: 


 a possible obligation arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
organisations control; or 


 a present obligation arises from past events but is not 
recognised because: 


i. it is not probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
or 


ii. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
with sufficient reliability. 


Corporate and democratic 
core costs 


 


These represent the costs of delivering public accountability and 
representation in policy-making and meeting the 
Commissioner’s statutory reporting obligations. 


Corporation sole A corporation sole is a legal entity consisting of a single ("sole") 
incorporated office, occupied by a single ("sole") man or woman 
i.e. the Commissioner and Chief Constable are both 
corporations sole under the PRSRA. 


Current assets 


 


Current assets are items that can be readily converted into cash.  


By convention the items are ordered by reference to the ease 
that such conversion into cash can be carried out. 


Current liabilities 


 


Current liabilities are items that are due immediately or in the 
short – term. 


Current service cost 
(Pensions) 


The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s 
liability expected to arise from employee service in the current 
period. 


Curtailment Changes in liabilities relating respectively to actions that relieve 
the employer of primary responsibility for a pension obligation 
(e.g. a group of employees being transferred to another 
scheme) or events that reduce the expected years of future 
service of employees or reduce the accrual of defined benefits 
over their future service for some employees (e.g. closing a 
business unit). 


Defined benefit scheme A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a 
defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define 
the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the 
benefits are not directly related to the investments of the 
scheme. The schemes may be funded or unfunded. 


Defined contribution 
scheme 


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an 
employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or as a 
percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not 
have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 
employee service in the current and prior periods. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Juristic_person
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Term Definition 


Delegation Is the partnership of authority and responsibility to another 
person to carry out specific activities. The person who delegated 
the work remains accountable for the outcome of the delegated 
work. 


Depreciation The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of 
the non-current asset that have been consumed during the 
period. Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other 
reduction in the useful life of a non-current asset whether arising 
from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either 
changes in technology or demand for the goods and services 
produced by the asset. 


Fair value The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be 
exchanged in an arm’s length transaction less, where 
applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase of the 
asset. 


Finance lease A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a non-current asset to the lessee. Such a transfer 
of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the 
inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease 
payments, including any initial payment, amounts to 
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset. 


Financial instrument Any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 


A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract that 
derives its value from changes in underlying assets or indices. 


FRS Financial Reporting Standards, as agreed by the UK 
accountancy profession and the Accounting Standards Board.  
These include Statements of Standard Accounting Practice 
(SSAPs). 


Group accounts The financial statements of the group i.e. the two corporations 
sole, presented as a single economic entity. 


Impairment A reduction in the value of a non-current asset, below its 
carrying amount in the balance sheet. 


Interest cost (Pensions) For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the 
period in the present value of the scheme liabilities because the 
benefits are one period closer to settlement. 


Merger accounting Merger accounting should be applied where there is a transfer of 
functions in full from the responsibility of one authority to 
another. Where merger accounting applies it is assumed that 
the merger took place at the beginning of the accounting period. 


National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) 


The non-domestic rates, or business rates, collected by local 
councils are the means by which businesses and others who 
occupy non-domestic property make a contribution towards the 
cost of local services. The rates are pooled by central 
government and redistributed to local councils and 
Commissioner according to a formula. 


Net book value The amount at which non-current assets are included in the 
balance sheet i.e. their historical cost or current value less the 
cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 
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Term Definition 


Non-current assets These are items such as land, buildings, vehicles and major 
items of equipment, which give benefit over more than one year. 


Past service cost For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value 
of the scheme liabilities related to employee service in prior 
periods arising in the current period as a result of the 
introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits. 


Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act (PRSRA) 


An Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom which 
transferred the control of police forces from police authorities to 
elected Police and Crime Commissioners 


Provisions A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A 
provision is recognised if the following criteria are fulfilled: 


 an entity has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event; 


 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; 


 a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation 


Prudential borrowing  Borrowing by local authorities without government financial 
support, but in accordance with the CIPFA prudential code of 
local authority borrowing  


PWLB 


 


This is the Public Works Loan Board, which is an organisation 
financed by the Government.  It lends money to Commissioners 
on set terms so that they can buy capital items. 


Reserves Balances that represent resources set aside for purposes such 
as general contingencies and cash flow management.  
Earmarked reserves are those set aside for specific policy 
purposes. 


Retail Price Index (RPI) Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in 
the retail price of a basket of goods and services, including 
mortgage costs, council tax and other household costs. 


Revenue Budget The estimate of annual income and expenditure requirements, 
which sets out the financial implications of policies and the basis 
of the annual precept to be levied on collection funds. 


Revenue Support Grant 
(RSG) 


A general government grant in support of local authority 
expenditure (including Commissioners) and fixed each year in 
relation to spending levels. 


Senior Employee An employee whose salary is more than £150,000 per year, or 
one whose salary is at least £60,000 per year (calculated pro 
rata for a part-time employee) and who is the designated head 
of paid service, chief of staff or a statutory chief officer. Typically 
the Commissioner’s Chief of Staff and statutory Chief Officers. 


Single entity accounts The individual accounts of each corporation sole. 


 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Act_of_Parliament

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parliament_of_the_United_Kingdom

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Police_and_Crime_Commissioner
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Explanatory Foreword  
 
Introduction 
On 15


th
 November 2012 Mr Christopher Salmon was elected as Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys (hereafter referred to as the Commissioner) and took up 
office on the 22nd November 2012, at which time Dyfed-Powys Police Authority ceased 
to exist.  The primary role of the Commissioner is to secure the maintenance of an 
efficient and effective police force across Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire, Ceredigion 
and Powys and to hold the Chief Constable of Dyfed-Powys to account for the exercise 
of operational police duties under the Police Act 1996. 
The purpose of the foreword is to provide an insight into the most significant aspects of 
the Commissioner’s performance and financial position and which are presented in 
detail in the Statement of Accounts that follow. 
 
Statement of Accounts 
These are the third statutory accounts prepared under the new governance 
arrangements.  Both the Commissioner and Chief Constable as separate legal entities 
(corporations sole) must produce their own Statement of Accounts, with the 
Commissioner also being responsible for production of the Group Accounts (within 
which the Commissioner’s accounts are contained). 
The following is an explanation of the statements that follow, their purpose and the 
relationship between them: 
 


•  Independent Auditor’s Report, this sets out the opinion of the external auditor, the 
Wales Audit Office, on whether the Group accounts presented give a ‘true and fair 
view’ of the financial position and operations of the Commissioner for 2014/15; 


•  Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts - this statement 
sets out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and his Chief Finance Officer; 


•  Annual Governance Statement - this statement is not a part of the Statement of 
Accounts but is published alongside the Statement of Accounts.  This statement 
describes how the Group conducts business in accordance with proper standards 
and presents the findings from the annual review of the effectiveness of the systems 
of internal control; 


•  Movement in Reserves Statement - this statement shows the movement in the 
year on the reserves held by the Group, analysed into “usable reserves” (monies 
which can be applied to fund capital expenditure or to reduce local taxation) and 
unusable reserves (monies that cannot be used to provide services and exist 
through the application of accounting standards, for example, the pension reserve 
that matches the pension liability); 


•  Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this statement summarises 
the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing policing and 
crime reduction services during the year. It includes all day to day expenses and 
related income on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of 
fixed assets actually consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits 
earned by employees in the year; 


•  Balance Sheet – this shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of assets and 
liabilities recognised by the Group.  The net assets (assets less liabilities) are 
matched by the usable and unusable reserves; 


•  Cash Flow Statement – this statement summarises changes to cash and cash 
equivalents during the reporting period; 


•  Police Pension Fund - this summarises the income and expenditure during the 
reporting period relating to police pensions.  The account shows the top up grant 
due from the Group to the Pension Fund Account.  Subsequently the Home Office 
reimburses the Group for money paid over to the Pension Fund Account and 
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effectively underwrite the deficit on the Pension Fund Account.  This practice would 
work in reverse if the Pensions Fund Account were to show a surplus at the end of 
the year; 


•  Notes to the Accounts – these provide additional information that further explains 
items included within the main financial statements with an aim of improving the 
reader’s understanding of the main financial statements; 


•  Glossary of Terms – this is not a part of the Statement of Accounts but is included 
to assist the reader’s understanding of the Statement of Accounts. 


 
Financial Performance of the Group 
In February 2014, the Police and Crime Commissioner set a revenue budget for the 
financial year 2014/15 of £97.894m.  After receiving a Home Office Grant of £38.746m, 
National Non-Domestic Rates of £13.364m and a Revenue Support Grant of £0.898m, 
£44.886m was raised from Council Tax. 
 
The Table below sets out the final out-turn position for 2014/15 compared with the 
revised budget for the Chief Constable and for the Group as a whole.  Overall the Group 
delivered a balanced budget.  
 
This report is in a subjective analysis format which is used by internal management for 
reporting purposes against the budget. The format differs to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement and a reconciliation between the two formats is shown in 
Note 29. 
 
Key points to note on the table that follows are: 
 
Chief Constable 


 The Public First Programme of restructuring of support functions took place, 
predominantly, in 2014/15.  The programme aimed to deliver ongoing savings in the 
region of £3.6m per annum on police staff costs.  The programme delivered earlier 
than expected and also expended far less on one-off costs such as redundancy and 
early retirement payments than expected and therefore delivered additional savings 
of £2.6m in 2014/15 compared with the budget. 


 Police Officer costs are above the original budget by £2.981 million. The Force has 
provided a sum of £3.238 million as an estimate of costs arising as a result of the 
Pension Ombudsman’s decision, following the end of the financial year, to uphold 
an appeal against the Government Actuaries Department which could have 
implications in terms of commutation factors used for police officer retirements 
between 2001 and 2006. The Force has included an assessment of the 
commutation cost implications of the decision in the Revenue Account and an 
income reimbursement which is expected from the Government to cover the full 
costs against the Government Grant income line. 


Aside from this adjustment, Police Officer expenditure was more or less on target for 
the year with a very small underspend of £300k made against a budget of just over 
£63m.   


 Non-pay expenditure is also down on the profile reflecting continued scrutiny and 
restraint being applied to all expenditure headings. In particular, the Chief Constable 
achieved savings of £513k on fuel and transport; 


 The Force received some £600k of unbudgeted income from mutual aid and special 
services provided by officers in policing national and local events which was a 
further one off saving against the budget.  
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Further details relating to the Chief Constable’s operations are provided in the Chief 
Constable Statement of Accounts 2014/15. 


 


 
Group Commissioner Chief Constable 


  Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance 


  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


                    


 
  


 
    


 
    


 
  


 
  


 
    


 
    


 
  


Employee Costs 90,583 90,763 (180) 726 703 23 89,857 90,060 (203) 


Premises Costs 3,660 3,533 127 0 0 0 3,660 3,533 127 


Transport Costs 2,906 2,402 504 10 19 (9) 2,896 2,383 513 


Supplies & Services 9,139 7,860 1,279 265 157 108 8,874 7,703 1,171 
Agency & Contracted 
Services 4,079 3,321 758 1,556 1,372 184 2,523 1,949 574 


Total operating 
expenses 110,367 107,879 2,488 2,557 2,251 306 107,810 105,628 2,182 


 
  


 
    


 
    


 
  


Capital Financing Costs 493 1,873 (1,380) 0 0 0 493 1,873 (1,380) 


Impairment 0 1 (1) 0 0 0 0 1 (1) 
Gain/Loss on disposal of 
non-current assets 0 (31) 31 0 0 0 0 (31) 31 
Interest payments on 
external borrowing 575 605 (30) 0 0 0 575 605 (30) 


Capital Financing and 
impairment 1,068 2,448 (1,380) 0 0 0 1,068 2,448 (1,380) 


 
  


 
    


 
    


 
  


Appropriations:   
 


    
 


    
 


  
Appropriations to/from 
pensions fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Contributions to/from 
reserves (2,182) 2,821 (5,003) 353 971 (618) (2,535) 1,850 (4,385) 


Appropriations (2,182) 2,821 (5,003) 353 971 (618) (2,535) 1,850 (4,385) 


 
  


 
    


 
    


 
  


Fees, charges & other 
service income (4,630) (5,462) 832 (186) (636) 450 (4,444) (4,826) 383 
Government grants 
(Revenue & Capital) (6,729) (9,792) 3,063 (436) (298) (138) (6,293) (9,494) 3,200 


Total Income (11,359) (15,254) 3,895 (622) (934) 312 (10,737) (14,320) 3,583 


 
  


 
    


 
    


 
  


Budget Requirement 97,894 97,894 0 2,288 2,288 (0) 95,606 95,606 (0) 


 
  


 
    


 
    


 
  


Financed By:   
 


    
 


    
 


  


Police Grant (39,367) (39,367) (0)   
 


    
 


  
National Non- Domestic 
Rates (12,390) (12,390) 0   


 
    


 
  


Revenue Support Grant (1,251) (1,251) 0   
 


    
 


  


Council Tax (44,886) (44,886) 0   
 


    
 


  


Total financing (97,894) (97,894) 0             
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Commissioner 


 The Commissioner’s Office spent approximately £100k less than budgeted 
across a number of different categories.  This included spending less than 
expected on audit fees after receiving a refund from Wales Audit Office and also 
spending less in 2014/15 on the development of the Commissioner’s new website 
as some of the work was rolled forward into the 2015/16 financial year. 


 The Commissioner began commissioning new services during 2014/15.  Some of 
these new services are now delivered differently and others have cost less than 
expected, for example, a £130k saving was achieved on the Drug intervention 
Programme through the service provider making efficiency savings and through 
reduced administration costs.  Overall, commissioned services have cost £183k 
less than the budget. 


 The Commissioner received (unbudgeted) income from driver retraining courses 
held during the year.  This income amounted to approximately £350k. The 
Commissioner carried out a public consultation on how the money should be 
spent and the public voted for these funds to be reinvested in road safety 
schemes.  Therefore the Road to Safety scheme has recently been launched 
which seeks to fund initiatives that help make the roads in Dyfed Powys safer.  


 As a result of this additional income and savings made by the Commissioner, an 
additional £618k has been transferred to reserves. 


 


Reserves 


As at the end of the 2014/15 financial year, the Commissioner held useable reserves 
amounting to £45.5m.  These are due to reduce significantly over the coming four years 
as follows: 


 £17.7m has been set aside for significant estate wide works.  Much of the 
Commissioner’s estate has suffered from a lack of investment over recent years 
and this programme seeks to address these issues and ensure that the estate is 
fit for purpose to support operational policing requirements in the future.  In 
addition, a long awaited new custody facility will be built in Carmarthenshire.  
Much of the under spend in 2014/15 has been allocated to the capital reserve but 
there remains a funding gap for this programme of works in 2018/19. 


 The earmarked revenue reserve amounted to £22.8m and includes £4m set 
aside for the crystallisation of costs associated with the Ammanford Police 
Station PFI.  This PFI was terminated on 19


th
 June 2015.  This category also 


contains ‘invest to save’ projects including the required investment needed to 
participate in the roll out of the Emergency Services mobile Communications 
Programme nationally. 


 The Commissioner took into account the current level of reserves when setting 
the council tax precept for 2015/16 which led to Dyfed Powys residents receiving 
a 5% reduction in the amount payable compared with 2014/15.  This decision 
along with future estimates in the level of precept has led to £6.7m of earmarked 
reserves being set aside to support the revenue budget over the medium term 
plan.  After taking into account this level of support, there remains an unidentified 
savings gap that reaches just over £7m in 2018/19.  The Commissioner and 
Chief Constable are now looking at options that will deliver the necessary 
savings. 


 At the year end, the general reserve balance was £4.5m.  The Commissioner has 
planned to maintain this level of general reserve in the medium term.   
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Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 


In addition to revenue expenditure, money is incurred on capital assets such as 
buildings and vehicles which have a long term value to the Commissioner.  


Each year the Commissioner approves a capital programme which details where capital 
expenditure will be incurred. In 2014/15 the capital budget of £13.605m was adopted by 
the Commissioner. 


This capital budget for 2014/15 was financed as follows: 


 Direct Revenue Financing £0.534m 


 Capital Grant Contributions £1.357m 


 Capital Reserves £10.444m 


 Borrowing £0.52m 


 Capital Receipts £0.75m 


During 2014/15 actual capital expenditure amounted to £3.023 million. The main 
variations from the budget are shown below: 


 Category Capital 
Programme 


Expenditure (Over) / 
Under 


Reason for over/under spend 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Land and Buildings 8,771 878 7,893 Slippage against the following 
schemes: 


£4,500 – Llanelli Custody 


£1,986 – HQ and Police station 
refurbishments 


£1,189 – Repairs and maintenance 


£259 – Custody review 


Vehicles 1,318 1,320 (2)  


Furniture and 
Equipment 


3,516 825 2,691 Slippage against the following 
schemes: 


£823 – Mobile Data 


£500 – Body Worn Cameras 


£360 – Identity Access 
Management 


£318 – Other Equipment/Tasers 


£271 – Digital Evidence Storage 


£419 – Other 


Total 13,605 3,023 10,582  


This capital expenditure was financed as follows: 


Category Capital 
Programme 


Funding (Over) / 
Under 


Reason for over/under spend 


 £’000 £’000 £’000  


Capital Receipts 
750 168 582 


Capital receipts lower than 
budgeted 


Direct Revenue 
Financing 


114 0 114 Delay in joining NPAS 


Borrowing 520 0 520 Not required 


Capital Reserves 
10,864 1,504 9,360 


Lower than anticipated spend on 
capital programme 


Capital Grant and 
Contributions 


1,357 1,351 6 
Grant funded mobile data spend 
less than budgeted 


Total 13,605 3,023 10,582  
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Discretionary Payments 


Nationally, concerns arose during 2013/14 about the legality of some discretionary 
allowances paid to a small number of chief officers at forces throughout England and 
Wales which included Dyfed Powys Police.  Prompt action was taken to stop any further 
discretionary allowances being paid until such time as the legal position was fully 
clarified.  Some of these payments related to amounts paid in 2013/14 and these are 
highlighted in Note 32, Officers’ remuneration. 


During 2014/15 further work was carried out to ascertain the legal position of these 
payments and a police force in England was due to bring this issue to court during 
March 2015.  The Commissioner decided that it would be prudent and cost effective to 
await the outcome of the court case before progressing further with this matter in Dyfed-
Powys.  However, the issue did not reach the court and a definitive decision was not 
reached.  It is therefore the intention of the Commissioner to review the existing 
information available to him and to make a decision on this matter in order to bring this 
issue to a close during 2015/16 if possible.  


 


Looking Ahead 


The grant settlement for the 2015/16 financial year was particularly challenging with a 
reduction in funding of 5.1% being applied to central grants. In setting the police element 
of council tax (known as the precept) the Commissioner was also conscious of balancing 
the pressures on household budgets against the need to provide an effective public 
policing service. He also took into account the current level of reserves.  This resulted in 
a 5% reduction in the council tax precept payable by residents of Dyfed-Powys 
compared with 2014/15.   
 
The outline budget allocated for 2015/16 has included annual recurring cost reductions 
of £3.607 million, being the target set by the Commissioner for the Chief Constable for 
2015/16. The Medium Term Financial Plan covering the period 2015/16 to 2018/19 was 
published alongside the budget for 2015/16 and this highlights a significant degree of 
uncertainty pertaining to the funding which will be available to the Commissioner over 
this period.  
 
It is expected that a similar reduction in grant of around -5% will be applied by the Home 
Office in 2016/17. However, there are indications that the reduction may be much 
greater.  The financial position may also be affected by Home Office Ministerial 
decisions around the formula funding methodology. In addition some significant cost 
increases could arise from April 2016 as a result of changes to National Insurance that 
are planned as part of wider Government Pensions Reforms. This could add around 
£1.3 million to the Group’s Budget requirement in 2016/17. 
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Statement of Responsibilities 


The purpose of this statement is to set out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and 
the Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts. 


The Commissioner’s responsibilities 


The Commissioner is required to: 


 make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 
affairs, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer; 


 manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and safeguard its assets; and 


 approve the Statement of Accounts. 


I approve the Statement of Accounts for financial year 2014/15. 


   
   
     
      
Police & Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys  Date 


 


The Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities 


The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 


In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 


 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 


 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 


 complied with the Local Authority Code. 


The Chief Financial Officer has also: 


 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 


 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 


I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group/Commissioner at the reporting date and of its expenditure and 
income for the year ended 31


st
 March 2015. 


 


  


 


     30.06.15 
            


Chief Financial Officer     Date  
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Annual Governance Statement  
 
The annual governance statement is a statutory document which explains the processes 
and procedures in place to enable the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner 
(Commissioner) to carry out his functions effectively.  
 
This statement explains how the Commissioner has complied with the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework: “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (Guidance Note for 
Police)” and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) Regulations 2010 in relation to the publication of a statement of internal control. 
 
The statement is produced following a review of the governance arrangements and 
includes an action plan to address any significant governance issues identified.  
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
Both the Commissioner and the Chief Constable are corporations sole and the Policing 
Protocol Order 2011 sets out the policing governance arrangements, clarifying the role 
and responsibilities of the Commissioner, the Chief Constable and the Police and Crime 
Panel and how they should work together to address crime and improve policing. 
 
The Commissioner is responsible for performing his functions as set out in the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and must hold the Chief Constable to 
account for the exercise of their functions.  This includes ensuring that a sound system 
of internal control is maintained through the year and that arrangements are in place for 
the management of risk. 
 
During 2013/2014 a joint Code of Corporate Governance was written.  This was adopted 
on 1


st
 April 2014 and is included within the Corporate Governance Framework.  


 
Copies of the above documents are available on the Commissioner’s website at [Dyfed-
Powys Police and Crime Commissioner Website] or can be obtained from the Office for 
the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner at PO Box 99, Llangunnor, 
Carmarthen SA31 2PF.  
 
 
The Purpose of the Corporate Governance Framework (CGF) 
 
The CGF comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which the force 
is directed and controlled by the Chief Constable and its activities through which it 
accounts to, engages with and leads its communities.  It enables the Commissioner to 
monitor the achievement of his strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-
going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of policies, 
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 



file://newbach/bcu/HQ/Finance/Closure%202014-15/Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Document/Draft%20Group%20Accounts%202014-15.docx

file://newbach/bcu/HQ/Finance/Closure%202014-15/Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Document/Draft%20Group%20Accounts%202014-15.docx
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The Governance Framework 
 
The key elements of the governance framework are explained below: 
 
The Commissioner   
 
Before commencing in office, the Commissioner took an oath to represent all of the 
people of Dyfed-Powys impartially, without fear or favour and in making his decisions, he 
signs off that he has no personal or prejudicial interest in the matter.  Both the 
Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner have agreed to abide by a Code of Conduct 
providing guidance on ethical standards and behaviour. 
A Memorandum of Understanding between the Commissioner and Chief Constable 
defines the nature of their relationship, providing details of respective responsibilities 
and expected conduct.   
Registers of gifts and hospitality and interests are maintained and the Commissioner’s 
expense claims are disclosed.  Staff are subject to vetting, the level of which reflects 
their access to information.   
 
Police and Crime Plan 
 
In May 2013, the Commissioner issued a five year Police and Crime Plan (Plan).  The 
Plan is updated annually and outlines the vision, police and crime objectives and the 
strategic direction for policing.  The Plan identifies six priorities focusing on making safe 
neighbourhoods, protecting victims and spending wisely.  The Plan was launched via a 
series of events to ensure that the Commissioner’s vision was clearly communicated to 
the Force, partners and to the public. 
 
Police and Crime Panel 
 
The Police and Crime Panel scrutinises, challenges and monitor’s the work of the 
Commissioner on an ongoing basis.  The Panel carries out its work through public 
meetings that are recorded with the agenda and minutes made available to the public 
via the Commissioner’s website.  The Panel reviews complaints against the 
Commissioner and none were upheld during the year.  The Panel comprises twelve 
County Councillors and two Independent Members.  Further information about the 
Police and Crime Panel, including its terms of reference are available online.   
 
Joint Audit committee 
 
The Joint Audit Committee (JAC) currently comprises of four members and exists to 
provide independent assurance that there are adequate controls in place to mitigate key 
risks and to provide assurance that the Commissioner and Chief Constable are 
operating effectively.  The JAC met four times during 2014/2015 and their judgements 
are informed by the results of scrutiny activity by Internal Audit, Wales Audit Office, Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) and other ad-hoc reviews or inspections.  
The JAC’s terms of reference are available on the Commissioner’s website.   
 
Internal Audit 
 
The role of internal audit is to provide independent assurance that an organisation’s risk 
management, governance and internal control processes are operating effectively. 
Our internal auditors planned to carry out audits in 15 different areas of the business, 
focussing on some of the most significant financial and operational risks.   
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The Head of Audit’s Annual Opinion concluded that there are “adequate and effective 
management, control and governance processes to manage the achievement of its 
objectives”.  Of particular note is that two audits were carried out that looked at two 
different aspects of governance.  The results of which are covered more fully below 
under “Review of Effectiveness”.  
 
Wales Audit Office  
 
The Wales Audit Office (WAO) in carrying out its review of the financial statements 
provides comments on the system of internal controls that are in place.  WAO also 
report on how services are being delivered, assess whether value for money is being 
achieved and checks on how organisations are planning and delivering improvements.  
Again, the result of their work is summarised below under Review of Effectiveness. 
 
Policing Board 
 
A Policing Board has been established with its inaugural meeting held on the 3


rd
 April 


2013.  The Policing Board is an internal system providing a robust process for the 
Commissioner to hold the Chief Constable to account in delivering the Police and Crime 
Plan.  The Policing Board meets on a weekly basis and in addition, monthly meetings 
focussing on the delivery of each of the six priorities identified in the Police and Crime 
Plan ensure that performance against the priorities are adequately monitored and 
challenged.  This ensures that the Force is regularly challenged leading to an 
environment of continuous improvement.  The Policing Board charter is published as 
section 6 (Decision Making) of the new Corporate Governance Framework. 
 
Public Decision Logs 
 
The Commissioner produces a public log of decisions made.  Each decision is signed by 
the Commissioner who agrees to abide by the seven principles set out in the Standards 
in Public Life – the NOLAN Principles – in making his decisions. 
 
Corporate Governance Group 
 
The Corporate Governance Group has delegated responsibility for undertaking the 
process of maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework.  
Membership currently includes the Chair of the JAC, the Deputy Chief Constable, the 
Commissioner’s monitoring Officer and both the Chief Finance Officers for the 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable.  
 
Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The new joint CGF was implemented on 1


st
 April 2014.  The joint Code of Corporate 


Governance sets out how the Commissioner and the Chief Constable govern their 
organisations both jointly and separately in accordance with the six core principles that 
underpin effective and ethical corporate governance in public service as outlined in The 
good Governance Standard for Public Services (2004).  The Scheme of Corporate 
Governance (also contained within the CGF) sets out the key roles of the Commissioner 
, the Chief Constable and their statutory officers. 
 
Public Engagement 
 
Views of the public and service users are collected through a number of different ways 
including: 
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 Citizen’s Panels; 


 User satisfactions surveys; 


 “Your Voice” days (public surgeries held across the Dyfed-Powys area); 


 Public Services Bureau previously Quality of Service team (handling complaints 
and compliments); 


 Precept consultation; 


 Attendance at key local events for example, the Royal Welsh Show. 
 
Frequent and meaningful engagement with the public enables the Commissioner to 
understand the needs of the people of Dyfed-Powys to help develop his vision for the 
local area and also ensures robust public accountability.  
 
Review of Effectiveness 
The Commissioner has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  As 
detailed above, the Corporate Governance Group has delegated responsibility for 
reviewing the corporate governance framework and also oversees its implementation.   
The review of effectiveness was carried out by the Corporate Governance Group and 
has been informed by: 


 Police and Crime Panel views 


 Joint Audit Committee views 


 Internal Audit work 


 Wales Audit Office review and work 


 Policing Board discussions and actions 


 HMIC reviews and reports 


 Other reviews 


 National issues 


 Risks as identified on the corporate and dynamic risk registers 


 Issues raised in the Chief Officer Group meetings 


 Complaints recorded by the Public Services Bureau 


Conclusion 
The Commissioner was in post for the whole of 2014/2015 and has addressed some of 
the issues identified in the last Annual Governance Statement: 
 


 Adoption of the new joint CGF on the 1
st
 April 2014.  During the year, the CGF 


was reviewed to assess its suitability and success.  These reviews coupled with 


the introduction of new procurement legislation necessitated two further mid year 


revisions of the CGF.  


 


 Risk management - The last Annual Governance Statement recognised that 


further development of risk processes and information was needed.  The Chief 


Constable aimed to implement all recommendations of a limited assurance 


internal audit report within six months of the date of the report.  During 2014/15, 


significant work was carried out in this area.  Workshops were carried out with 


officers and staff across all areas of the organisations including the OPCC.  The 


result of which was a new risk framework being developed with both the 


Commissioner and the Chief Constable adopting corporate and dynamic risk 


registers to record and manage risks within the organisation. 
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 Partnership Working – A review of partnerships within the Dyfed-Powys area was 


undertaken by an external consultant during 2013/14.  The conclusions of the 


review were used to inform the Commissioner’s approach to commissioning.  


However, last year it was recognised that further work was needed to improve 


collaboration amongst partners.  Collaboration with the other police forces in 


Wales was discussed at the All Wales Policing Group in January 2015.  As a 


result external consultants have been commissioned to review twelve potential 


areas of collaborations with the other forces.  Their report and recommendations 


are expected early in July 2015. In addition, we now commission our drug 


intervention services jointly with other public sector bodies in the area.  This has 


allowed us to make savings against running costs in previous years.   


 


 Public First Programme – during the course of the year, the Chief Constable 


delivered the Public First Programme of back office restructuring.  The 


programme delivered earlier than expected and has now been completed.  The 


Programme has ostensibly delivered the expected financial savings that were 


expected.  However, work is ongoing to fully bed in the new structure and the 


Commissioner and Chief Constable continue to monitor the performance of these 


newly restructured functions. 


 


 Discretionary payments - Nationally, concerns have been raised over the legality 


of some discretionary allowances paid to a small number of chief officers in 


forces throughout England and Wales.  Dyfed-Powys Police Authority approved 


the Chief Officers Benefits Policy but following the concerns raised, legal advice 


as to the legality of the discretionary payments was sought by the Commissioner.  


The advice confirmed that the discretionary payments could be unlawful and in 


light of this, such allowances payable to chief officers were stopped until such 


time as the legal position is fully clarified.  Chief Officers who have been in 


receipt of these allowances have been informed of this and that potential 


recovery action could be taken if the allowances are subsequently confirmed as 


being unlawful.  This remains an open issue that will be progressed during 


2015/2016. 


 
 
 


In addition, a number of other positive achievements were identified by the Corporate 
Governance Group during their review: 
 


 Internal Audit carried out two reviews of governance issues – transformation 


projects and performance management.  The review of the governance 


arrangements for the mobile data/digital policing project granted a reasonable 


level of assurance. No urgent recommendations were made but three 


recommendations were classified as important.  Two have been implemented 


and the final one, the production of a performance/benefits realisation document, 


was presented at the June 2015 project board meeting.  The review of 


performance management also received a reasonable level of assurance.  Once 


again, no urgent recommendations were made.  Two important recommendations 
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were made and these have been accepted by management and work is 


underway. 


 


 The Wales Audit Office issued unqualified opinions on the 2013/14 financial 


statements of both the Police & Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable for 


Dyfed Powys Police. They also confirmed that the Commissioner and Chief 


Constable had appropriate arrangements in place in the year to secure economy, 


efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.  They did note that 


significant financial pressures remain but the Force is well placed to address 


these in the medium term.  


 


 In response to public expectation, the Public Services Bureau was set up in 


February to provide a better and joint approach to handling compliments and 


complaints received from members of the public.  Before commencing, a survey 


of nearly 2,000 people who had submitted a concern, complaint or compliment to 


Dyfed-Powys police and the Police Commissioner’s Office in 2014 was 


undertaken.  This survey will form a benchmark against which the performance of 


the new Bureau can be compared.  A further survey will be carried out after the 


Bureau has been up and running for 12 months. 


 
Having carried out the review, we believe that the governance arrangements that are in 
place continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance 
framework.  No major issues or weaknesses were identified.  That said, the review 
highlighted a number of areas that should be specifically addressed and these are 
outlined below. 
 
Significant Governance Issues 
The issues identified below will be monitored by the Corporate Governance Group and 
the Joint Audit Committee over the next twelve months to ensure that governance 
arrangements are monitored and further strengthened to ensure continuous 
improvement. 
 
The following summarises the most significant governance issues that were identified or 
addressed during the 2014/2015 financial year: 
 
Identified in the Last Governance Statement 


 


 Introduction of the Corporate Governance Framework – The CGF has been in 


place for the whole of the 2014/15 financial year and has been updated as 


necessary during the financial year.  The CGF is now embedded within the 


organisation and will review, as a minimum, on an annual basis.   


 


 Risk management – The Chief Constable and Commissioner have both 


introduced corporate and dynamic risk registers as a means of identifying and 


monitoring risk within the organisation.  These registers were developed towards 


the end of 2014/15 and, over the next twelve months, the dynamic risk registers 


will be introduced into all areas of the business. The Corporate Governance 


Group will continue to monitor the introduction of these new risk registers across 


the organisation over the next twelve months until they are firmly embedded into 


the organisation. 
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 Partnership Working – The organisation continues to work in partnership with 


others where this is possible.  For example, in 2014/15 the Commissioner jointly 


commissioning substance misuse services with the Hywel Dda area Planning 


Board and Wales Probation Service.  This partnership has brought about a 


number of benefits including ensuring that individuals affected by substance 


misuse receive appropriate services regardless of their route into treatment and 


has also delivered cost savings for the Commissioner.  The Commissioning 


Framework identifies partnership working as a key consideration in choosing the 


route to delivering new services.   


 
Also Capita, an external consultancy, is currently carrying out a review of 
potential collaboration opportunities across the Welsh Forces.  Capita are looking 
at twelve areas of business and are due to report their findings in early July.  
Should the review lead to new collaborations, these will be monitored and 
reviewed by the Corporate Governance Group in the future. 
 


 Public First Programme – The programme has now come to an end with 


significant changes delivered to the structure of the organisation delivering back 


office functions.  The post implementation review will be written shortly and any 


lessons learned will be noted by the Corporate Governance Group so that they 


may be applied to future projects of this scale. 


 


 Discretionary payments – Last year, concerns were raised over the legality of 


some discretionary allowances paid to a small number of chief officers 


throughout England and Wales.  A test case at Cleveland was due to go to court 


late in 2014/15 and we were awaiting the decision of the court before deciding 


how to progress further.  However this issue never came to court.  The facts 


available to us will now be reviewed and a decision made on how best to proceed 


on this matter with the aim of shortly bringing this matter to a close. 


New Issues Identified During the Year 
 


 Ethics – the College of Policing published a Code of Ethics during 2014/2015.  


Significant work has been carried out internally to implement the Code 


throughout the whole organisation.  This work is ongoing and is being monitored 


by the Corporate Governance Group. 


 


 Collaboration – As mentioned above under Partnership Working, Capita are 


currently reviewing collaboration opportunities across the four Welsh forces.  The 


governance arrangements of any new collaborations that result from this work 


will be scrutinised and monitored throughout the coming financial year. 


 


 Business Continuity – Internal Audit have raised a priority 1 (urgent) action point 


in relation to business continuity.  This action will be prioritised and addressed 


during 2015/16.  The organisation will a prepare force wide business continuity 


plan that reflects the structure changes that occurred as part of the Public First 


programme. 
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We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address 
the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will 
monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


Signed : Signed: Signed: 


   


 


  


   


Christopher Salmon Jayne Woods Alasdair Kenwright 


Police & Crime 
Commissioner 


Chief Finance Officer Chair of the Joint Audit 
Committee 
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Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys  


 


I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys; and 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group; and  


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund.  


for the year ended 31
st
 March 2015 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’s accounting statements comprise 
the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and related notes.  
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group accounting 
statements comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the 
Group Cash Flow Statement and related notes.  
The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund 
Account and the Net Assets Statement and related notes.  
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2014-15 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor 
General for Wales 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 
Accounts set out on page 10, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the statement of accounts, including the Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys Group accounting statements and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s 
accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view.     
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards 
for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that 
the accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group and the 
Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the responsible financial officer; and the overall presentation of the accounting 
statements and related notes.   
In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Explanatory 
Foreword to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements 
and related notes and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of 
performing the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies, I consider the implications for my report.  
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Opinion on the accounting statements of Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys as at 31


st
 March 2015 and of his income and expenditure for the 


year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys Police Group  


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group as at 31 March 2015 and of its income 


and expenditure for the year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions for Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31 March 2015 and of the amount and disposition of the 


fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15. 


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Explanatory Foreword is consistent with 
the accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns; or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 


 The Annual Governance Statement contains material misstatements of fact or is 
inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit.  
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Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys, Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 
Group and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the requirements of 
the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit 
Practice. 
 
For and on behalf of 
Huw Vaughan Thomas 
Auditor General for Wales 
Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 
[Date] 
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Movement in Reserves Statement  


Financial Year 2014/15 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2014 carried forward 
 


4,500 22,625 14,947 1,004 43,076 13,476 51,651 (557) (883,675) (819,105) (776,029) 


Movement in 
reserves during 
2014/15: 


 


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Surplus or (deficit) on 
the provision 


of services 


CIES (35,837) 0 0 0 (35,837) 0 0 0 0 0 (35,837) 


Other Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


CIES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (126,348) (126,348) (126,348) 


Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


 (35,837) 0 0 0 (35,837) 0 0 0 (126,348) (126,348) (162,185) 


Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
Regulations 


8 38,642 0 0 (377) 38,265 (285) (743) 23 (37,260) (38,265) 0 


Net 
Increase/(Decrease) 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 


 2,805 0 0 (377) 2,428 (285) (743) 23 (163,608) (164,613) (162,185) 


Transfers to/from 
earmarked reserves 


9 (2,805) 224 2,581 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Increase/Decrease in 
2014/15 


 
0 224 2,581 (377) 2,428 (285) (743) 23 (163,608) (164,613) (162,185) 


Balance at 31
st
 March  


2015 carried forward 


 
4,500 22,849 17,528 627 45,504 13,191 50,908 (534) (1,047,283) (983,717) (938,213) 
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Financial Year 2013/14 – restated (see note 2 for further information) 
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General 
Fund 


Balance 


Earmarked 
Revenue 
Reserves 


Capital 
Reserve 


Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 


Capital 
Grants 


Unapplied 


Total 
Usable 


Reserves 


Revaluation 
Reserve 


Capital 
Adjustment 


Account 


Accumulated 
Absences 
Account 


Pensions 
Reserve 


Total 
Unusable 
Reserves 


Total 
Reserves 


  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2013 carried forward 
 


4,500 16,182 15,315 0 1,259 37,256 14,219 53,164 (518) (893,119) (826,254) (788,998) 


Movement in 
reserves during 
2013/14: 


 
            


Surplus or (deficit) on 
the provision 


of services 


CIES 
 


(35,120) 
0 0 0 0 (35,120) 0 0 0 0 0 (35,120) 


Other Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


CIES 0 0 0 0 0 0 (451) 0 0 48,540 48,089 48,089 


Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


 (35,120) 0 0 0 0 (35,120) (451) 0 0 48,540 48,089 12,969 


Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
Regulations 


8 41,195 0 0 0 (255) 40,940 (292) (1,513) (39) (39,096) (40,940) 0 


Net 
Increase/(Decrease) 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 


 6,075 0 0 0 (255) 5,820 (743) (1,513) (39) 9,444 7,149 12,969 


Transfers to/from 
earmarked reserves 


9 (6,075) 6,443 (368) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Increase/Decrease in 
2013/14 


 
0 6,443 (368) 0 (255) 5,820 (743) (1,513) (39) 9,444 7,149 12,969 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2014 carried forward 
 


4,500 22,625 14,947 0 1004 43,076 13,476 51,651 (557) (883,675) (819,105) (776,029) 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2014/15 


Group  Commissioner 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


60,671 (3,551) 57,120 Local Policing  919 (3,551) (2,632) 


6,568 (48) 6,520 Dealing with the Public  0 (48) (48) 


10,544 (379) 10,165 
Criminal Justice 
Arrangements 


 
0 (379) (379) 


8,053 (1,859) 6,194 Road Policing  0 (1,859) (1,859) 


4,117 (31) 4,086 Community Intelligence  0 (31) (31) 


7,909 (920) 6,989 Specialist Operations  0 (920) (920) 


11,250 (336) 10,914 Special Investigation  0 (336) (336) 


3,190 (26) 3,164 Investigative Support  0 (26) (26) 


5,779 (5,189) 590 National Policing  0 (5,189) (5,189) 


328 0 328 Non Distributed Costs   3 0 3 


2,230 (61) 2,169 
Corporate and Democratic 
Core 


 
5,504 (3,368) 2,136 


   Exceptional items -      


0 0 0 
Non-current assets 
revaluation 


 
0 0 0 


0 0 0  Icelandic Banks  0 0 0 


120,639 (12,400) 108,239 Cost of Services  6,426 (15,707) (9,281) 


0 (12,766) (12,766) 
Other operating 
expenditure 


10 
0 (12,766) (12,766) 


40,162 (1,148) 39,014 
Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 


11 
941 (1,148) (207) 


0 (98,650) (98,650) 
Taxation and non-specific 
grant income 


12 
0 (98,650) (98,650) 


0 0 0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
156,741 0 156,741 


160,801 (124,964) 35,837 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
164,108 (128,271) 35,837 


  0 
Surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of non-current 
assets 


 
 


 
0 


  126,348 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on 
pension assets/liabilities 


 
 


 
311 


  0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
  126,037 


  126,348 
Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
126,348 


  162,185 
 Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
162,185 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2013/14 – restated (see note 2 
for further information) 


Group  Commissioner 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


59,924 (4,763) 55,161 Local Policing  938 (4,763) (3,825) 


6,080 (51) 6,029 Dealing with the Public  0 (51) (51) 


9,977 (463) 9,514 
Criminal Justice 
Arrangements 


 
0 (463) (463) 


7,612 (1,038) 6,574 Road Policing  0 (1,038) (1,038) 


4,032 (36) 3,996 Community Intelligence  0 (36) (36) 


7,574 (652) 6,922 Specialist Operations  0 (652) (652) 


10,651 (188) 10,463 Special Investigation  0 (188) (188) 


3,160 (29) 3,131 Investigative Support  0 (29) (29) 


5,279 (4,791) 488 National Policing  0 (4,791) (4,791) 


940 0 940 Non Distributed Costs   7 0 7 


2,484 (22) 2,462 
Corporate and Democratic 
Core 


 
5,833 (3,413) 2,420 


   Exceptional items -      


455 0 455 
Non-current assets 
revaluation 


 
455 0 455 


(61) 0 (61)  Icelandic Banks  (61) 0 (61) 


118,107 (12,033) 106,074 Cost of Services  7,172 (15,424) (8,252) 


0 (10,733) (10,733) 
Other operating 
expenditure 


10 
0 (10,733) (10,733) 


39,569 (879) 38,690 
Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 


11 
836 (879) (43) 


0 (98,911) (98,911) 
Taxation and non-specific 
grant income 


12 
0 (98,911) (98,911) 


0 0 0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
153,059 0 153,059 


157,676 (122,556) 35,120 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
161,067 (125,947) 35,120 


  451 
Surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of non-current 
assets 


 
 


 
451 


  (48,540) 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on 
pension assets/liabilities 


 
 


 
(248) 


  0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
  (48,292) 


  (48,089) 
Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
(48,089) 


  (12,969) 
 Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
(12,969) 
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Balance Sheet  


Group 
2013/14 – 
restated 


(see note 2 
for further 


information) 


Commissioner 
2013/14 – 


restated (see 
note 2 for 


further 
information) 


 Note Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


£’000 


 


£’000   £’000 £’000 


70,120 70,120 
Property, plant & 
equipment 


13 
68,851 68,851 


4,580 4,580 Investment property 14 4,580 4,580 


12 12 Intangible assets 16 51 51 


567 567 Assets held for sale 21 430 430 


75,279 75,279 Long term assets  73,912 73,912 


34,039 34,039 Short term investments 17 36,062 36,062 


444 0 Inventories 18 402 0 


6,488 6,097 Short term debtors 19 9,533 9,260 


4,389 4,389 Cash and cash 
equivalents 


20 6,427 6,427 


0 835 Intra-group transfer  0 675 


45,360 45,360 Current assets  52,424 52,424 


(131) (131) Short term borrowing 17 (144) (144) 


(6,233) (2,625) Short term creditors 22 (10,148) (6,313) 


(563) (563) Provisions 23 (1,073) (1,073) 


0 (3,608) Intra - group transfer  0 (3,835) 


(6,927) (6,927) Current liabilities  (11,365) (11,365) 


0 (883,923) Long term creditors  0 (1,046,972) 


(2,614) (2,614) Long term borrowing 17 (2,469) (2,469) 


(886,214) (2,291) Other long term 
liabilities 


17 (1,049,787) (2,815) 


(913) (913) Provisions 23 (928) (928) 


(889,741) (889,741) Long term liabilities  (1,053,184) (1,053,184) 


(776,029) (776,029) Net assets/liabilities  (938,213) (938,213) 


(43,076) (43,076) Usable reserves 24 (45,504) (45,504) 


819,105 819,105 Unusable reserves 25 983,717 983,717 


776,029 776,029 Total reserves  938,213 938,213 
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Cash Flow Statement  


Group 
2013/14 - 
Restated 


Commissioner 
2013/14 - 
Restated 


 Note Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


 £’000    £’000 


35,119 35,119 Net (surplus) or deficit on 
the provision of services 


 35,837 35,837 


(45,604) (45,604) Adjustments to net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of 
services for non-cash 
movements 


 (42,304) (42,304) 


600 600 Adjustments for items 
included in the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of 
services that are investing 
and financing activities 


 434 434 


(9,885) (9,885) Net cash flows from 
Operating Activities 


26 (6,033) (6,033) 


9,700 9,700 Investing Activities 27 3,716 3,716 


291 291 Financing Activities 28 279 279 


106 106 Net increase or decrease in 
cash and cash equivalents 


 (2,038) (2,038) 


4,495 4,495 Cash and cash equivalents 
at the beginning of the 
reporting period 


 4,389 4,389 


4,389 4,389 Cash and cash equivalents 
at the end of the reporting 
period 


20 6,427 6,427 
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Police Pension Fund  


 


Group 
2013/14 


Commissioner 
2013/14 


Fund Account Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Contributions receivable:   


(10,026) 0  Employer contributions (10,249) 0 


(5,470) 0  Member contributions (5,849) 0 


(242) 0 Transfers in from other pension funds (800) 0 


(463) 0 Other income (739) 0 


(16,201) 0  (17,637) 0 


  Benefits payable:   


20,346 0  Pensions 21,507 0 


6,307 0  Commutations and lump sum 
retirement benefits 


7,713 0 


   Interest payable on back-dated 
lump sums 


595  


26,653 0  29,815 0 


  Payments to and on Account of 
Leavers: 


  


414 0 Transfers out to other pension funds 425 0 


4 0 Refunds of contributions 0 0 


47 0 Other expenditure 159 0 


465 0  584 0 


10,917 (10,917) Net amount payable for the year 12,762 (12,762) 


(10,917) 10,917 Home Office Grant (12,762) 12,762 


0 0  0 0 


 


Group 
2013/14 


Commissioner 
2013/14 


Net Assets Statement Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


     


0 0 Short term debtors  3,238 0 


0 0 Net Current Assets 3,238 0 


     


0 0 Provision s  (3,238) 0 


0 0 Net Current Liabilities (3,238) 0 


     


0 0  0 0 
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Pensions Liability 
The Pensions Liability which is disclosed on the Group Balance Sheet reflects the 
underlying commitments that the Chief Constable has in the long run to pay retirement 
benefits. In 2014/15 this amounts to £1,047,283 million compared to £883,675 million in 
2013/14. 
 
Recognition of the total liability has a substantial impact on the net worth as recorded in 
the Balance Sheet. However statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the 
financial position of the Group remains healthy. This is because to finance the liability the 
Chief Constable makes a pension contribution of 21.3% for police officers and 11.6% for 
police staff, with the actual pensions and commuted lump sums being met directly by the 
Police Pension Fund Account, which is funded by the Home Office via the 
Commissioner. 
 


New Factors for Pension Commutation Lump Sum & Interest 


A provision of £3.238m has been made in the Pension Fund Account which reflects a 
reasonable estimate of the likely payment due to retired police officers as a result of the 
Milne v Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) court ruling.  See note 7 for further 
details. A debtor for the same amount has also been included as a contribution from the 
PCC for income reimbursement which is expected from the Government to cover this 
cost in full. 
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Notes to the Accounts 


 


1. Accounting policies 
 
General Principles  
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Group’s transactions for the 2014/15 
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2015. The 
Commissioner is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts for himself 
and the Group by the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended), 
which require them to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice 2014/15, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current 
assets and financial instruments.  
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received. In particular:  


 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group transfers the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable 
that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 
flow to the Group.  


 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Group can 
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is 
probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
transaction will flow to the Group. 


 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there 
is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption they 
are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 


 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather 
than when payments are made. 


 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest 
rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or 
determined by the contract. 


 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is 
written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected. 


 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  
 
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments held at the balance 
sheet date that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash on the balance 
sheet date and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  
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Exceptional Items  
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(CIES) or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an 
understanding of the financial performance of the Group.  
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 
Errors  
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give 
rise to a prior period adjustment.  


 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of 
transactions, other events and conditions on the financial position or financial 
performance of the Group. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless 
stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior 
period as if the new policy had always been applied.  


 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively 
byamending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  


 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets  
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts 
to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  
Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service  
Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written 
off. 


  
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service  
The Group is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, he is required to make an annual 
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in his overall borrowing requirement. 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced 
by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with 
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two.  
Employee benefits  


 
Benefits Payable During Employment  
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are 
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which the employees render 
service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (including time off in lieu 
and flexi leave) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which 
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at salary 
rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee 
takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday 
absence occurs.  
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Termination Benefits  
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Commissioner 
and Chief Constable to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement 
date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy.  
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Group 
to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations 
are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits 
for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash 
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end.  


 
Post-Employment Benefits  
Police officers and police staff have the option of belonging to one of two separate 
pension schemes relevant to them: 


 Police Officers Pension Scheme, administered through a Police Pension 
Fund  


 Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Carmarthenshire 
County Council.  


Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Group.  
This Police Officer Pension scheme is “unfunded” which means that no investment 
assets are built up to pay pensions and other benefits in the future, and therefore no 
provision to meet the liability for future payments of benefits is included in the balance 
sheet. The liabilities of the Local Government Scheme that are attributable to the Group 
are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method 
– i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement 
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates etc. and projections of earnings for current employees.  


 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Commissioner and Chief Constable also have restricted powers to make 
discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any 
liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in 
the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as 
are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  


 
Events after the Balance Sheet date  
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:  


 


 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events.  


 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – 
the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a 
category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the 
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.  


 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts.  
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Financial Instruments  


 
Financial Liabilities  
These are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual 
charges to Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. The amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal plus 
accrued interest.  


 
Financial Assets  
Loans and Receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised 
cost. Annual credits to the Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
the instrument. For most of the loans that the Group has made, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable plus 
accrued interest.    


 
Foreign currency translation  
Where the Group has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the 
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the 
transaction was effective.  


 
Collaborative Arrangements 
 
CIPFA has issued new guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration”. This has required the 
Commissioner and Force to assess all collaborative activity and categorise these into 
either joint operations or joint ventures and account for their fair share of expenditure 
income, assets and liabilities in their individual accounts.  


 
As a result of this change in accounting policy implemented by CIPFA, amendments 
were also required for the 2013/14 comparatives.   The amendments are not material on 
a net basis however some significant changes are required to individual lines of 
expenditure and income lines particularly where activities are funded by grants. Further 
details can be found under note 31. 
 
Government grants and contributions  
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is 
reasonable assurance that:  


 


 The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and  


 The grants or contributions will be received.  
 


Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the 
grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue 
grants and all capital grants) in the CIES.  


 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to 
finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it 
has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 
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Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they 
have been applied to fund capital expenditure.  
 
Intangible assets  
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised 
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset to the Group. 


 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Group can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Group meets this criterion, and they 
are therefore carried at amortised cost.  


 
Inventories  
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at current cost price. International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 2 states that Inventories should be measured at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. The policy does not therefore comply with IAS 2 but the 
difference is not material.  
 
Investment property  
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at 
fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. The same treatment 
is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  


 
Leases  
The rentals payable/receivable are charged to the CIES on an accruals basis. 


 
Overheads and Support Services  
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the 
supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service 
Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities (SeRCOP).  
 
Property, plant and equipment  
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and 
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis. Expenditure that maintains but does not 
add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. 
repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it incurred.  


 
Expenditure falling below a de-minimis level of £6,000 per item is treated as Revenue 
and charged when it is incurred.   
 
Assets are initially measured at cost and are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the 
following measurement bases:  


 Assets under construction – depreciated historical cost;  


 Dwellings – fair value (revalued every five years), determined using the basis 
of existing use value for social housing;  


 All other assets – fair value (revalued every five years), determined as the 
amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.  


 







Group Statement of Accounts 2014/15 


 


 35 


Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains. The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 
1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date 
have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  The useful 
economic lives and residual value of assets are summarised in the Property, Plant and 
Equipment note.   


 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately.  The Group has applied the following de-minimis limits, below which, the 
component is not separately quantified:  


 


Life of component 
(years) 


0 - 10 10 - 15 15 - 20 20 - 30 30 - 40 Over 40 
years 


De-minimis (£’000) 50 100 200 300 750 1,000 


 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the 
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  


 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to 
be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than 
the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.  


 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:  


 


 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that 
balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).  


 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant 
service lines in the CIES.  


 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale  
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before 
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES.  
Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged 
on Assets Held for Sale.  
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. 
The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts reserve, and 
can only be used for new capital investment (or set aside to reduce the Group’s 
underlying need to borrow – the capital financing requirement).  
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Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts  
PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for 
making available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services 
passes to the PFI contractor. As the Group is deemed to control the assets that are 
provided under its PFI schemes, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment 
will pass to the Group at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Group 
carries the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of property, 
plant and equipment.  
The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the 
property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts 
due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment. 
Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in 
the same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Group.  
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements:  


 Fair value of the services received during the year; 


 Finance cost; 


 Contingent rent;  


 Payment towards liability;  


 Lifecycle replacement costs.  
 
Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic 
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.  


 
Reserves  
Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions are considered 
as reserves.  Revenue reserves are available to finance expenditure.  Certain capital 
reserves created as a result of the capital accounting scheme are not available to meet 
current expenditure and include: 


 


 Revaluation Reserve which records the accumulated gains on the fixed assets 
held by the Group arising from increases in value, to the extent that these gains 
have not been consumed by subsequent downward movements in value; 


 


 Capital Adjustment Account, which provides a balancing mechanism between the 
different rates at which assets are depreciated and are financed through the 
capital controls system, by accumulating: 


o On the debit side – the write-down of the historical cost of fixed assets as 
they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on 
disposal; 


o On the credit side – the resources that have been set aside to finance 
capital expenditure. 


 
 
 
Value Added Tax (VAT)  
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from 
Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs by the Group. VAT receivable is excluded from 
income. 
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2. Previous period adjustments 
 


Grimleys – Property valuations 
It has been brought to our attention that the property valuation exercise carried out by 
Grimleys during 2013/14 was not calculated in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting, as the valuations included finance costs. 
 
The Code of Practice states that ‘where depreciated replacement cost is used as the 
valuation methodology, authorities should use the ‘instant build’ approach at the 
valuation date’. The ‘instant build’ approach means that finance costs are excluded 
from the valuation. 
 
The carrying value of Fixed Assets has been restated in the 2013/14 Group Accounts 
to reflect the correct valuation, excluding finance costs.  This has had the following 
effect on the Group’s Comprehensive Income Expenditure Statement and Balance 
Sheet: 
 


Previous 
amount 
 £’000 


Group Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement 2013/14 


Restated 
amount 
 £’000 


(491) Non-current assets revaluation 455 


105,128 Net Cost of Services 106,074 


34,174 Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services 35,120 


(2,007) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current 
assets 


451 


(50,547) Other comprehensive income and 
expenditure 


(48,089) 


(16,373) Total comprehensive income and expenditure (12,969) 


 
 


Previous 
amount 
 £’000 


Group Balance Sheet 2013/14 Restated 
amount 
 £’000 


73,524 Property, plant & equipment 70,120 


78,683 Long term assets 75,279 


(772,625) Net assets/liabilities 776,029 


815,701 Unusable reserves 819,105 


772,625 Total Reserves 776,029 


 
Resource allocation Note 
The Resource Allocation note for 2013/14 has been amended to reflect changes in 
financial reporting and operating structures which were implemented in the 2014/15 
financial year.  All police staff costs were charged to a central budget during the 
implementation of Public First. In addition operational policing structures were 
organised across two main departments of Territorial Policing and Investigations 
rather than the three Operational Departments that existed in 2013/14. The format of 
the note has been amended with the comparatives for 2013/14 being restated to 
allow for a like for like comparison between the two financial years. 
 


3. Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 


The Code requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to disclose information 
relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new 
accounting standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code.  The 
following changes will be required from 1 April 2015: 
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 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 


 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle 


 IFRIC 21 Levies  
 


The issues included in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle are: 
 


 IFRS 1: Meaning of effective IFRSs; 


 IFRS 3: Scope exceptions for joint ventures; 


 IFRS 13: Scope of paragraph 52 (portfolio exception); and 


 IAS 40: Clarifying the interrelationship of IFRS 3 Business Combinations and 
IAS 40 Investment Property when classifying property as investment property 
or owner-occupied property 


 
In the Financial Statements for 2015/16, the effect of the changes will be assessed 


and where necessary, the comparative figures restated, however, it is anticipated 
that the changes will not have a material impact. 


 


4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies  


In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Commissioner has had to 
make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty 
about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 


 There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local 
government. However, the Commissioner has determined that this uncertainty is 
not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets might be impaired as a 
result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 


 The Police Authority has entered into a contract with Dolef Cyf for the design, 
construction, maintenance and operation of Ammanford Police Station. This 
contract has been adopted by the Commissioner upon his appointment to office. 
The accounting policies for PFI schemes and similar contracts have been applied 
to the arrangement and the police station (valued at £3.781 million) is recognised 
as Property, Plant and Equipment on the Commissioner’s Balance Sheet.  This 
PFI agreement was terminated on 19


th
 June 2015.  Please see Note 7 for further 


details. 


 Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) is a former insurer of public bodies which 
ceased trading in 1992.  At the time that the company ceased trading, a number 
of health related claims were outstanding and in common with many other local 
authorities, the Authority and subsequently the Commissioner, is in a scheme of 
arrangement to meet all outstanding claims.  This scheme is still in place and its 
claim Director originally advised that the maximum liability to fall on the 
Commissioner would be £608,900.58. 


The Scheme Administrator wrote to the Commissioner on the 13
th
 May 2013, 


stating that ‘following the triggering of MMI’s Scheme of Arrangement, I have 
determined that initially, a Levy rate of 15% will be required’, and as such, an 
amount of £91,335.09 was paid in 2013/14. Despite further correspondence 
suggesting that the provision in the accounts can be reduced, a prudent approach 
has been adopted and the provision provided is for the whole amount of 
£608,900.589, less the £91,335.09 paid during the year.  


 The Police Authority had £2m deposited with the UK subsidiaries of the Icelandic 
Banks – Heritable and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander (KSF) which went into 
administration in October 2008. The current situation with regards to recovery of 
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the sums deposited varies between each institution. As the available information is 
not definitive as to the amounts and timings of payments to be made by the 
administrators, it is likely that adjustments to the impairment for the deposits will 
be necessary. 


5. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 


The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on 
assumptions made by the Commissioner about the future or that are otherwise 
uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current 
trends and other relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be 
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the 
assumptions and estimates. 


The items in the Balance Sheet at 31st March 2015 for which there is a significant 
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 


 


Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 


Property, plant 
and equipment 


Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are 
dependent on assumptions about the level of 
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in 
relation to individual assets.  The current economic 
climate makes it uncertain that the Commissioner 
will be able to sustain his current spending on 
repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt the 
useful lives assigned to assets. 


Estimates of remaining useful life were obtained in 
13/14 and depreciation calculations rely on these 
estimations. The Commissioner has used 
depreciated historical cost as a proxy for furniture, 
plant and equipment. 


If the useful life of assets is reduced, 
depreciation increases and the carrying 
amount of the assets falls. 


It is estimated that the total annual 
depreciation charge for buildings would 
increase by £50k if the useful life of each 
building was reduced by 1 year. 


 


Accumulated 
Absences 
Fund 


In determining the liability in respect of 
accumulated absences, information in respect of 
annual leave and flexi leave was obtained from the 
system.  


A sampling approach was adopted in order to 
arrive at the liability. A representative sample of 
employees was selected and electronic records 
obtained detailing the number of days carried 
forward from the previous year. The average 
number of days carried forward was used to 
calculate the required liability, based on the 
number of employees at the previous year end and 
the average salary in the following financial year, 
adjusted to include employer’s national insurance 
and pension contributions. 


The largest category of accumulated 
absences at the 31st March 2015 is 
police officer annual leave. If the 
average number of days carried forward 
from the previous year was increased by 
one day per officer, this would increase 
the liability by approximately £146k. 


Provisions The Commissioner has provided £410k for 
insurance claims incurred at the 31st March which 
are likely to be paid. The assessment is made 
based on the likely settlement and the probability 
of a known claim against the Commissioner being 
successful. 


The average amount provided per claim 
amounts to £9k with the maximum 
exposure per claim being £50k. Any 
amount above £50k is met by the 
Commissioner’s insurance company. 


Pensions 
liability 


Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 
depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which 
salaries are projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected 
returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of 
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide expert 
advice about the assumptions to be applied. 


The effects on the net pensions liability 
of changes in individual assumptions 
can be measured.  For instance, an 
increase of 1 year in the life expectancy 
assumption for the police officer pension 
scheme would result in an increase to 
the pension liability of £20.825 million. 
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Effect of Police 
Ombudsman 
Decision 


The Force has received revised commutation 
factors from the Government Actuary Department 
in relation to Pension Commutation paid between 
2001 and 2006.  It is believed that this will be 
funded by Government.  There is uncertainty over 
the exact amount of the liability and the extent to 
which these costs will be funded by Government. 


Although a reasonable estimate of the  
liability has been included in the 
accounts, the final figures are still in the 
process of being calculated and there is 
a possibility that the accounts could be 
misstated. 


 


6. Material items of income and expense 


In 2014/15, no items of income or expenditure have been included on the face of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as exceptional items.  
 


7. Events after the Balance Sheet Date  


On 19
th
 June 2015, the Commissioner terminated the PFI agreement with Dolef Cyf 


for the design, construction, maintenance and operation of Ammanford Police 
Station.  This event occurred after the balance sheet date and was not a condition 
that existed at the balance sheet date.  This event is therefore not reflected in the 
2014/15 financial statements but will be accounted for in full in the 2015/16 financial 
statements.  A payment of £3.963m was made to terminate the PFI early.  On 
termination, the Commissioner took ownership of the station and became responsible 
for its maintenance and operation.   
 
In May 2015, the Pensions Ombudsman published his Final Determination in the 
case of Milne v Government Actuary’s Department (GAD).  The Final Determination 
found in Mr Milne’s favour: that the GAD had a statutory duty to review the tables of 
commutation factors and that such a review would have led to him receiving a larger 
retirement lump sum.  This was a lead case and has a direct read-across to members 
in the police pension scheme who retired between 1 December 2001 and 30 
November 2006.  The settlement of the court case occurred after the balance sheet 
date but provided confirmation of an obligation that existed at the balance sheet date.  
Although the exact calculation will not be completed for a number of months, a 
reasonable estimate of the obligation that existed at the balance sheet date has been 
provided for, along with an income reimbursement which is expected from the 
Government to cover this cost in full, in the 2014/15 financial statements.   


 


8. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under Regulations 


This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the Group/Commissioner in the year in accordance with 
proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as 
being available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital Adjustment Account 


     


 


     


Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
income and expenditure 
statement (CIES): 


  


 


       


Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 


4,212  
 


4,212 (285) (3,927)   (4,212) 0 


Revaluation losses on property, 
plant and equipment 


  
 


0      0 


Amortisation of intangible assets 13   13  (13)   (13) 0 


Capital grants and contributions 
applied 


(1,351)  
 


(1,351)  1,351   1,351 0 


Amounts of non-current assets 
written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal to 
the CIES 


165  


 


165  (165)   (165) 0 


Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the CIES: 


  
 


       


Statutory provision for the financing 
of capital investment 


(339)  
 


(339)  339   339 0 


Capital expenditure charged against 
the General Fund 


(1,504)  
 


(1,504)  1,504   1,504 0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital grants unapplied 
account 


          


Capital grants and contributions 
unapplied credited to the CIES 


  
 


0      0 


Application of grants to capital 
financing transferred to the Capital 
Financing Account 


377  (377) 0      0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital receipts reserve 


  
 


       


Transfer of cash sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES 


(168) 168 
 


0      0 


Use of Capital receipts reserve to 
finance new capital expenditure 


 (168) 
 


(168)  168   168 0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Pensions reserve 


  
 


       


Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the CIES 


(9,524)  
 


(9,524)    9,524 9,524 0 


Employer’s pensions contributions 
and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 


46,784  
 


46,784    (46,784) (46,784) 0 


Adjustments primarily involving 
the Accumulated balances 
account 


  
 


       


Amount by which officer 
remuneration charged  to the CIES 
on an accruals basis is different 
from remuneration chargeable in the 
year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 


(23)  


 


(23)   23  23 0 


Total adjustments 38,642 0 (377) 38,265 (285) (743) 23 (37,260) (38,265) 0 
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2013/14 – restated (see 
note 2 for further 
information) 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Adjustment Account 


         


Reversal of items debited or credited to 
the Comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement (CIES): 


         


Charges for depreciation and impairment of 
non-current assets 


4,316  4,316 (292) (4,024)   (4,316) 0 


Revaluation losses on property, plant and 
equipment 


455  455  (455)   (455) 0 


Amortisation of intangible assets 
13  


13 


 
 (13)   (13) 0 


Capital grants and contributions applied (1,077)  (1,077)  1,077   1,077 0 


Amounts of non-current assets written off on 
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES 


480  480  (480)   (480) 0 


Insertion of items not debited or credited 
to the CIES: 


         


Statutory provision for the financing of 
capital investment 


(325)  (325)  325   325 0 


Capital expenditure charged against the 
General Fund 


(1,761)  (1,761)  1,761   1,761 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital grants unapplied account 


         


Capital grants and contributions unapplied 
credited to the CIES 


(824) 824 0     0 0 


Application of grants to capital financing 
transferred to the Capital Financing Account 


1,079 (1,079) 0     0 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital receipts reserve 


         


Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 


(296)  0     0 0 


Use of Capital receipts reserve to finance 
new capital expenditure 


  (296)  296   296 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Pensions reserve 


         


Reversal of items relating to retirement 
benefits debited or credited to the CIES 


(10,917)  (10,917)    10,917 10,917 0 


Employer’s pensions contributions and direct 
payments to pensioners payable in the year 


50,013  50,013    (50,013) (50,013) 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Accumulated balances account 


         


Amount by which officer remuneration 
charged  to the CIES on an accruals basis is 
different from remuneration chargeable in 
the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 


39  39   (39)  (39) 0 


Total adjustments 41,195 (255) 40,940 (292) (1,513) (39) (39,096) (40,940) 0 
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9. Transfers to/from earmarked reserves 


This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in 
earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the 
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 
2014/15. 


 


Reserve 


N
o


te
 Balance at 31


st
 


March 2014  
Transfers out 


2014/15 
Transfers in 


2014/15 
Balance at 31


st
 


March 2015 


  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Revenue Reserves 24 22,625 (4,280) 4,504 22,849 


Capital Reserve 24 14,947 (1,084) 3,665 17,528 


Total   37,572 (5,364) 8,169 40,377 


 


10. Other operating expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure that cannot reasonably 
be allocated or apportioned to services. 


Group 


2013/14 


Commissioner 
2013/14 


 Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 


2014/15 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


184 184 Gain/Loss on the disposal of non-current 
assets 


(4) (4) 


(10,917) (10,917) Home Office Police Officers Pensions top-up 
grant 


(12,762) (12,762) 


(10,733) (10,733) Total (12,766) (12,766) 


 


11. Financing and investment income and expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from 
involvement in financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest. 


Group 


2013/14 


Commissioner 
2013/14 


 Note Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 


2014/15 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


620 620 Interest payable and similar 
charges 


17 604 604 


38,750 17 Net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability 


41 39,233 12 


(125) (125) Interest receivable and similar 
income 


17 (193) (193) 


(465) (465) Income and expenditure in 
relation to investment 
properties and changes in their 
fair value 


14 (413) (413) 


(90) (90) Specific capital grants 
available during the year 


34 (217) (217) 


38,690 (43) Total  39,014 (207) 
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12. Taxation and non-specific grant incomes 


This item consolidates all the grants and contributions receivable that cannot be 
identified to particular service expenditure.  


 


Group 


2013/14 


Commissioner 
2013/14 


 Note Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 


2014/15 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


(43,374) (43,374) Council tax income  (44,886) (44,886) 


(14,032) (14,032) National Non Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) 


 (12,389) (12,389) 


(40,771) (40,771) Non ring fenced government grants 34 (40,618) (40,618) 


(734) (734) Capital grants and contributions 34 (757) (757) 


(98,911) (98,911) Total  (98,650) (98,650) 
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13. Property, plant and equipment 


Movement on balances in financial year 2014/15: 


 Property Plant and Equipment  Investment Properties 


A
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 f
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U
n


d
e


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti


o
n


 


H
e
li


c
o


p
te


r 


V
e
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2014:   4,569 57,391 0 3,253 11,050 18,366 172 2,992 480 1,793 567 314 100,947 


Additions   0  878 0 0 1,319 773 0 0 0 0 0 51 3,021 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Revaluation Reserve 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 
in surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Derecognition – disposals    0 0 0 0 (27) 0 0 0 0 0 (137) 0 (164) 


Assets reclassified    0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on 
revaluation 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


At 31st March 2015   4,569 58,269 0 3,253 12,342 19,139 172 2,992 480 1,793 430 365 103,804 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 1


st
 April 2014 


  0 0 0 (2,178) (8,583) (13,920) 0 (500) (185) 0 0 (302) (25,668) 


Depreciation charge    0 (981) 0 (108) (911) (1,864) (10) 0 0 0 0 (12) (3,886) 


Depreciation written out to Revaluation 
Reserve 


  0  (338) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (338) 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in 
the Revaluation Reserve 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in 
the Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 


  0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 31


st
 March 2015 


  0 (1,319) 0 (2,286) (9,494) (15,784) (10) (500) (185) 0 0 (314) (29,892) 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2015   4,569 56,950 0 967 2,848 3,355 162 2,492 295 1,793 430 51 73,912 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2014   4,569 57,391 0 1,075 2,467 4,446 172 2,492 295 1,793 567 12 75,279 







POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS 
 


 46 


 


Movement on balances in financial year 2013/14 – Restated (see note 2 for further information): 


 Property Plant and Equipment  Investment Properties 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2013:  4,719 70,209 0 3,269 10,015 16,729 0 2,748 505 1,776 336 314 110,620 


Additions  0 510 0 246 1,089 1,637 172 0 0 0 0 0 3,654 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Revaluation reserve 


 
0 (529) 0 0 0 0 0 62 (7) 17 6 0 (451) 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 
in surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


 
0 (673) 0 0 0 0 0 182 (18) 0 54 0 (455) 


Derecognition – disposals  0 0 0 (262) (54) 0 0 0 0 0 (164) 0 (480) 


Assets reclassified  (150) (185) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 335 0 0 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on 
revaluation 


 
0 (11,941) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (11,941) 


At 31st March 2014  4,569 57,391 0 3,253 11,050 18,366 172 2,992 480 1,793 567 314 100,947 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 1


st
 April 2013 


 
0 (10,598) 0 (2,079) (7,548) (12,081) 0 (500) (185) 0 0 (289) (33,280) 


Depreciation charge  0 (1,052) 0 (99) (1,035) (1,839) 0 0 0 0 0 (13) (4,038) 


Depreciation written out to Revaluation reserve  0 (291) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (291) 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on 
revaluation 


 
0 11,941 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,941 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in 
the Revaluation Reserve 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in 
the Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 31


st
 March 2014 


 
0 0 0 (2,178) (8,583) (13,920) 0 (500) (185) 0 0 (302) (25,668) 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2014  4,569 57,391 0 1,075 2,467 4,446 172 2,492 295 1,793 567 12 75,279 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2013  4,719 59,611 0 1,190 2,467 4,648 0 2,248 320 1,776 336 25 77,340 
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Depreciation 


 


Revaluations 


The Commissioner carries out a programme that ensures assets required to be measured at 
fair value are normally measured once every five years for each class of asset.  A revaluation 
was carried out in 2013/14.    


Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there 
is an active second-hand market or latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 Depreciation 2013/14 Depreciation 2014/15 


Category of Asset Years Residual Value Charge Years Residual Value Charge 


   £’000   £’000 


Property 


 Land No Depreciation  0 No Depreciation 0 


 Operational 
Buildings 


 


Over Remaining Life 1,343 Over Remaining Life 1,402 


 Assets Under  
Construction 


No Depreciation 0 No Depreciation 0 


 Investment 
Properties 


No Depreciation 0 No Depreciation 0 


Helicopter : 


 


  


 Airframe 20 Nil 79 20 Nil 79 


  Main Gear box 5 Nil 0 5 Nil 21 


 Helicopter 
Engines 


8.75 Nil 0 8.75 Nil 0 


 Helicopter 
Equipment 


5 Nil 20 5 Nil 8 


Boat:       


 Hull 32 Nil 0 32 Nil 3 


 Engine 12 Nil 0 12 Nil 7 


Vehicles 


 Rapid 
Response 


3 Nil 119 3 Nil 167 


 Other 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


916 5 


 


Nil 


 


744 


Equipment 


Computer /other 
equipment 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


1,839 5 


 


Nil 


 


1,864 


Intangible assets 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


13 5 


 


Nil 


 


13 


Total   4,329   4,308 
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Property Plant and Equipment Investment Properties 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Carried at 
historical cost: 


4,569 54,712 0 1,872 2,900 3,320 162 5,835 351 2,008 656 51 76,408 


Valued at fair 
value at: 


             


31
st
 March 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


31
st
 March 2014 0 (1,121) 0 0 0 0 0 244 0 0 53 0 2,497 


31
st
 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (329) 0 (329) 


31
st
 March 2012 0 509 0 0 (15) 31 0 0 0 0 50 0 575 


31st March 2011 0 2,288 0 (905) 0 0 0 (315) 16 (215) 0 0 869 


31st March 2010 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


31st March 2009 0 562 0 0 (37) 0 0 (3,272) (72) 0 0 0 (2,819) 


31
st
 March 2008 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Total cost or 
valuation 


4,569 56,950 0 967 2,848 3,355 162 2,492 295 1,793 430 51 77,233 


 


14. Investment properties 


Some of the Commissioner’s property is being held solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation purposes rather than for use in administrative purposes. This includes masts 
and  some houses.  


 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


672 Rental income from investment property 623 


(199) Direct operating expenses arising from investment property (210) 


473 Net gain/(loss) 413 


 


The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment 
properties over the year: 


 
 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


4,344 Balance at start of year: 4,580 


0 Additions: 0 


0 Purchases 0 


236 Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments 0 


 Transfers:  


0  (To)/from property, plant and equipment 0 


4,580 Balance at end of year 4,580 
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15. Capital Commitments 


As at 31 March 2015 the Commissioner has entered into various commitments associated 
with building schemes and major projects undertaken as part of the Capital Programme.  
The most significant of these commitments are: 


 Mobile police stations – conversion costs £243k 


 Retention on new police station at Llandrindod Wells – approximately £10k 


 Project managers for estate wide works – approximately £205k 


 


16. Intangible assets 


The Commissioner accounts for software and licenses as intangible assets, to the 
extent that the software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted 
for as part of the hardware. Intangible assets include both purchased licenses and 
internally generated software. 


The useful life assigned to the major software used by the Group/Commissioner is 5 
years and the assets are amortised on a straight-line basis. 


 


There are no items of capitalised software that are individually material to the financial 
statements. 


  


2013/14  2014/15 


Internally 
generated 


assets 


Other 
assets 


Total  Internally 
generated 


assets 


Other assets Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 


   Balance at start of year:    


0 314 314  Gross carrying amounts 0 314 314 


0 (289) (289)  Accumulated amortisation 0 (302) (302) 


0 25 25 Net carrying amount at start of year: 0 12 12 


0 0 0 Additions: 0 51 51 


0 (13) (13) Amortisation for the period 0 (12) (12) 


0 12 12 Net carrying amount at end of year 0 51 51 


Comprising: 31/3/2010 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015 


Gross carrying amounts (£’000) 297 297 314 314 314 365 


Accumulated amortisation (£’000) (204) (263) (276) (289) (302) (314) 
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17. Financial Instruments 


 


Balances 


Group: 


 


 


*
 
A
n
 
i
n
t
r 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


* An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s accounts for the pensions liability related to the Chief Constable’s staff. 


** Where loans are advanced at below market rates they are classed as ‘Soft Loans’. The 
2010 Code of Practice sets out specific accounting requirements for soft loans. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 
2015 


31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 2015 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Borrowing (PWLB) – principal sum 
borrowed 


(2,599) (2,455) (131) (144) 


Borrowing (PWLB) – accrued 
interest 


(15) (14) 0 0 


Trade Payables (Creditors) 0 0 (1,177) (1,553) 


PFI  Liability (2,539) (2,504) 0 0 


Liability related to Defined Benefit 
Pension Scheme* 


(883,675) (1,047,283) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (888,828) (1,052,256) (1,308) (1,697) 


Loans and receivables:     


Fixed term investments – Principal 
at amortised cost 


0 0 37,000 40,000 


Fixed term investments – Accrued 
interest 


0 0 6 39 


Fixed term investments – Impaired 
investments 


0 0 33 23 


Trade Receivables (Debtors) 0 0 1,415 1,542 


Soft Loans ** 2 0 2 0 


Total Financial Assets 2 0 38,456 41,604 
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Commissioner: 


 


 ** Where loans are advanced at below market rates they are classed as Soft Loans.  The 2010 
Code of Practice sets out specific accounting requirements for Soft Loans. 


The Commissioner operates a Car Loan Scheme for Employees where the interest rates charged 
are below market rates. At 31st March 2015, no loan was outstanding: 


 


 Long Term Current 


31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 
2015 


31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 
2015 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Car Loans to employees 2 0 0 0 


Loan to Chief Officer 
towards House 
Purchase 


0 0 0 0 


Total Financial Assets 2 0 0 0 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 
2015 


31
st


  March 
2014 


31
st


  March 
2015 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Borrowing (PWLB) – principle sum 
borrowed 


(2,599) (2,455) (131) (144) 


Borrowing (PWLB) – accrued 
interest 


(15) (14) 0 0 


Trade Payables (Creditors) 0 0 (211) (260) 


PFI  Liability (2,539) (2,504) 0 0 


Liability related to Defined Benefit 
Pension Scheme* 


248 (311) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (4,905) (5,284) (342) (404) 


Loans and receivables:     


Fixed term investments – Principal 
at amortised cost 


0 0 37,000 40,000 


Fixed term investments – Accrued 
interest 


0 0 6 39 


Fixed term investments – Impaired 
investments 


0 0 33 23 


Trade Receivables (Debtors) 0 0 1,024 1,270 


Soft Loans ** 2 0 2 0 


Total Financial Assets 2 0 38,065 41,332 
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses  


 


2013/14 


 


Total 
£’000s 


 Financial Liabilities Financial Assets 2014/15 


 


Total 


£000s 


 Liabilities measured at 
amortised cost 


£000s 


Loans and 
receivables 


£000s 


£’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 


(620) Interest expense (604) 0 (604) 


(620) Interest payable and similar charges (604) 0 (604) 


125 Interest income 0 192 192 


61 Impairment gain (Icelandic Banks) 0 1 1 


186 Interest and investment income 0 193 193 


186 Net gain/(loss) for the year (604) 193 (411) 


 


Fair Values  


Long term financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at 
amortised cost. The fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash 
flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following 
assumptions: 


 The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) has provided the Commissioner with Fair 
Value amounts in relation to its debt portfolio.  The PWLB has assessed the Fair 
Values by calculating the amounts the Commissioner would have had to pay to 
extinguish the loans on these dates. 


 In the case of the Commissioner’s investments, these consisted of term deposits 
and Certificates of Deposits with Banks and Building Societies. The maturity dates of 
these investments were within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.  The contracts 
of term deposits do not permit premature redemption.  


 For trade payables and trade receivables, the carrying value has been used as a 
reasonable approximation of fair value.  


 The PFI liability has been measured at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments in respect of the property, discounted by the interest rate implicit in the 
contract. 


 The liability related to the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme has been assessed on 
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that 
will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, 
salary levels etc. The fair value of this liability at the Balance Sheet date is therefore 
the same as the carrying amount.  


 The fair value for short term investments at the Balance Sheet date is the same as the 
carrying amount because the interest rate on similar investments is not considered to 
be materially different from that obtained when the investment was originally made.  
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Group  Commissioner 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st


   March 
2015 


31
st


 March 
2015 


31
st


   March 
2015 


31
st


 March 2015 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:   


(144) (144) Short Term Borrowing (144) (144) 


(2,469) (3,970) Long Term Borrowing (2,469) (3,970) 


(2,504) (2,504) PFI Liability (2,504) (2,504) 


(1,047,283) (1,047,283) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 
(311) (311) 


(1,553) (1,553) Trade Payables (Creditors) (260) (260) 


(1,053,953) (1,055,454) Total Financial Liabilities (5,688) (7,189) 


  Financial Assets:   


40,062 40,062 Short Term Investments 40,062 40,062 


1,542 1,542 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 1,270 1,270 


0 0 Soft Loans 0 0 


41,604 41,604 Total Financial Assets 41,332 41,332 


   


Group  Commissioner 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st


   March 
2014 


31
st


 March 
2014 


31
st


   March 
2014 


31
st


 March 2014 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:   


(131) (131) Short Term Borrowing (131) (131) 


(2,614) (4,052) Long Term Borrowing (2,614) (4,052) 


(2,539) (2,539) PFI Liability (2,539) (2,539) 


(883,675) (883,675) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 
248 248 


(1,177) (1,177) Trade Payables (Creditors) (211) (211) 


(890,136) (891,574) 


Total 


Financial Liabilities 
(5,247) (6,685) 


  Financial Assets:   


37,039 37,039 Short Term Investments 37,039 37,039 


1,415 1,415 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 1,024 1,024 


2 2 Soft Loans 2 2 


38,456 38,456 Total Financial Assets 38,065 38,065 


 


The fair value of long term borrowing is higher than the carrying amount because the 
Commissioner’s portfolio of loans includes loans where the interest rate payable is higher 
than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date.  
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18. Inventories 


 Franking and uniform 
consumable stores 


Fleet maintenance 
materials 


Total 


 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of 
year: 


309 358 87 86 396 444 


Purchases 415 362 279 229 694 591 


Recognised as an expense in the 
year 


(366) (373) (280) (225) (646) (598) 


Written off balances 0 (26) 0 (10) 0 (36) 


Reversals of write offs in previous 
year/average price adj 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Balance outstanding at year end. 358 321 86 80 444 402 


All inventories are held on the Chief Constable’s balance sheet. 


 


19. Short-Term Debtors 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st 


March 2014  31
st


 March 2014  31
st


 March 2015 31
st


 March 2015 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


4,544 4,544 Central Government bodies 6,098 6,098 


222 218 Local authorities 261 261 


164 163 Other public bodies 314 307 


601 250 Limited Companies 638 395 


61 26 Other entities and individuals 46 46 


447 447 Value added tax claims 1,493 1,493 


449 449 Other Police Bodies 683 660 


6,488 6,097 Total 9,533 9,260 


 


20. Cash and cash equivalents 


31
st


 March 2014  31
st


 March 2015 


£’000  £’000 


20 Cash in hand 19 


1,369 Bank current accounts 2,408 


3,000 Call accounts (same day access funds) 4,000 


4,389 Total 6,427 
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21. Assets held for sale 


 Non - current 


 31
st


 March 
2014 


31
st


 March 
2015 


 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of year: 336 567 


Assets newly classified as held for sale:   


 Property, plant and equipment 0 0 


 Other assets/liabilities in disposal groups 335 0 


Revaluation losses (55) 0 


Revaluation gains 115 0 


Assets sold (164) (137) 


Balance outstanding at year end 567 430 


 


22. Short-Term Creditors 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st


 
March 
2014 


31
st


 March 2014  31
st


 
March 
2015 


31
st


 March 
2015 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


2,521 2,021 Central Government bodies 3,089 2,430 


618 80 Local authorities 634 57 


483 31 Other Police Bodies 454 36 


58 51 Other Public Bodies 122 76 


904 274 Limited Companies 1,401 330 


1,649 168 


 


Other entities and individuals 4,448 3,384 


6,233 2,625 Total 10,148 6,313 


 


23. Provisions 


Short Term Provisions 


The following amounts are expected to be paid within 12 months of the reporting period: 


 Statutory Funds Ill Health 
Retirements 


Other 
Provisions 


Total 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at 
start of year: 


495 0 68 563 


Additional provisions made 
in  2014/15 


542 134 0 676 


Amounts used in  2014/15 (161) 0 (5) (166) 


Unused amounts reversed 
in  2014/15 


0 0 0 0 


Balance outstanding at 
year end: 


876 134 63 1,073 
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Statutory Funds -Money Held Pending Reclaim 


The Commissioner is empowered to seize monies or property used, or intended 
for use, for the purpose of crime.  These seized monies are held within the 
“Money Held Pending Reclaim” fund, pending a ruling by the Courts.  Once this 
ruling is made the funds can be disposed of in line with relevant legislation. 


Ill Health Retirements 


A provision has been established to meet the cost of ill health retirement payments for 
those employees who, at the year end, were deemed unlikely to return to work but for 
whom the full health assessment had yet to be completed. 


Other Provisions 


At the year end, £54k relates to obligations to existing members of the Force 
Presentation Fund.  


 


Long Term Provisions 


The following amounts are expected to be paid more than 12 months after the reporting 
period:  


 Insurance provision Municipal Mutual 
Insurance Ltd 


Total 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start 
of year: 


395 518 913 


Additional provisions made in  
2014/15 


150 0 150 


Amounts used in  2014/15 (135) 0 (135) 


Balance outstanding at year 
end: 


410 518 928 


Insurance Provision 


This is an assessment of the likely settlement of insurance claims to be made by the 
Commissioner. 


Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd 


For further information, please refer to Note 4. 


 


24. Usable reserves 


Movements in the Commissioner’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and in this note. 


31
st


 March 2014   31
st


 March 2015 


£’000  £’000 


4,500 General Reserve 4,500 


22,625 Earmarked Revenue Reserves 22,849 


14,947 Capital Reserve 17,528 


1,004 Capital Grants Unapplied 627 


43,076 Total 45,504 


 


 







Group Statement of Accounts 2014/15 
 
 


 57 


General Reserve 


The Commissioner maintains a General Reserve of £4.5m to act as:  


 a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid 
unnecessary temporary borrowing;  


 a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies. 


 


Earmarked Revenue Reserves 


This reserve includes a significant sum of money set aside to fund ‘invest to save’ 
initiatives.  These are one off costs that should deliver ongoing savings to the 
Commissioner.  Many of these projects focus on developing systems and 
communications technology, some of which are necessary to link in with new national 
system infrastructures. 
 
At the year end, £4m was earmarked to cover the crystallisation of costs associated 
with the termination of the Ammanford police station PFI.  Termination of the 
agreement has since occurred and further details are provided in note 7. 
 
The Commissioner took into account the current level of reserves when setting the 
council tax precept for 2015/16 which led to Dyfed Powys residents receiving a 5% 
reduction in the amount payable compared with 2014/15.  The Governance Reserve 
will provide for the £6.7m of funds that are necessary to support the revenue budget 
as a consequence of this and future funding assumptions made in the medium term 
plan. 
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 Description 


 £’000   £’000  


Pensions Reserve 794 0 0 794 To fund the past service deficit on the police 
staff pension scheme. 


Insurance Reserve 750 0 0 750 Funds that are held to meet potential and 
contingent insurance liabilities.  


Invest to Save Reserve 7,000 0 387 7,387 To fund future projects that will deliver 
ongoing revenue savings. 


Criminal Justice 
Reserve 


1,000 (49) 0 951 To fund work on the wider Criminal Justice 
system. 


Public First Reserve 3,175 (3,175) 0 0 To fund a programme of restructuring back 
office functions - this has now completed.  


PFI Termination 
Reserve 


0 0 4000 


 


4,000 To fund the termination of the Ammanford 
police station PFI. 


Governance Reserve 9,906 (1,056) 117 8,967 


 


Funds aimed at addressing the future 
funding gap. 


Total 22,625 (4,280) 4.504 22,849  
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Capital Reserves  


These are amounts set aside from day to day spending and money received from the sale of 
non-current assets to pay for new non-current assets or repay borrowing.  There has been a 
lack of investment in the estate over the last few years and the Commissioner has now begun 
a significant programme of works that will deliver an effective, fit for purpose estate over the 
next few years.  There remains a funding gap of approximately £2m in this programme in 
2018/19. 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 £’000 


15,315 Balance at 1
st


 April:  14,947 


 Amounts received in year 3,665  


(368) Amounts used in year (1,084) 2,581 


    


14,947 Balance at 31
st


 March:  17,528 


 


Capital Receipts 


This account relates to the proceeds from the sale of non-current assets. 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


0 Balance at 1
st


 April: 0 


 Capital receipts received during year  


(30) Vehicles (31) 


(161) Buildings (137) 


(105) Helicopter 0 


296 Capital receipts utilised during year (168) 


0 Balance at 31
st


 March: 0 


 


Capital Grants Unapplied 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


1,259 Balance at 1
st


 April: 1,004 


824 Grant received in year 974 


(1,079) Grant applied in year (1,351) 


1,004 Balance at 31
st


 March: 627 


25. Unusable reserves 


31
st


 March 2014 
– restated (see 


note 2) 


 31
st


 March 2015 


£’000  £’000 


13,476 Revaluation reserve 13,191 


51,651 Capital adjustment account 50,908 


(557) Accumulated absences account (533) 


(883,675) Pensions reserve (1,047,283) 


(819,105) Total (983,717) 


 
Revaluation reserve 
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The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 


 


2013/14 – restated 
(see note 2) 


 2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


14,219 Balance at 1
st


 April: 13,476 


273 Upward revaluation of assets 0 


(724) Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to 
the surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


0 


(451) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not 
posted to the surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services 


0 


(292) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation 


(285) 


0 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 0 


0 Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 0 


13,476 Balance at 31
st


 March: 13,191 


 


Capital Adjustment Account 


The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The 
Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, 
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair 
value figures to a historical cost basis).  The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by 
the Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The 
Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains 
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Group/Commissioner. 
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The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment 
before 1 April 2007. 


 


2013/14 – restated 
(see  note 2) 


 2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


53,164 Balance at 1
st


 April: 51,651 


 Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 


 


(4,024)  Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (3,928) 


(1,001)  Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 0 


545  Revaluation gains on property, plant and equipment 0 


(13)  Amortisation of intangible assets (13) 


  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 0 


(480)  Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 


(164) 


48,191  47,546 


 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve  


 Net write out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed 
in the year 


 


 Capital financing applied in the year:  


296  Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 


168 


368  Use of Reserves to finance new capital expenditure 1,084 


824  Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to 
capital financing 


974 


253  Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Account 


377 


326  Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged 
against the General Fund 


339 


1,393  Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 420 


3,460  3,362 


 Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


 Movement in the Donated Assets Account credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


51,651 Balance at 31
st


 March: 50,908 


 
 
Accumulated Absences Account 


This account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund 
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year. 
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is 
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 
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2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


(518) Balance at 1
st


 April: (557) 


518 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 557 


(557) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (533) 


(39) Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements. 


(24) 


(557) Balance at 31
st


 March: (533) 


 


Pensions Reserve 


The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements 
for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with 
statutory provisions.  The Chief Constable accounts for post-employment benefits in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees 
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing 
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.  However, 
statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Chief Constable makes 
employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is 
directly responsible.  The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a 
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources 
the Commissioner has set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that 
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 


 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


(893,119) Balance at 1
st


 April: (883,675) 


48,540 Actuarial (gains) or losses on pensions assets and liabilities (126,348) 


10,917 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


9,524 


(50,013) Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in 
the year. 


(46,784) 


883,675 Balance at 31
st


 March: 1,047,283 
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26. Cash flow statement – operating activities 


 


2013/14 - Restated  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


35,119 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 35,837 


    


  Adjustments for non-cash movements:  


(4,329) Depreciation (4,225 


61 Investment Impairment (1) 


(1,001) Fixed Asset Impairment 0 


545 Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment 0 


(39,096) Net charges made for Retirement Benefits (37,260) 


(480) Sale of Fixed Assets (NBV) (165) 


450 Contribution to Provisions (525) 


30 Net PFI Contribution 35 


0 Increase/Decrease in Interest on Investments accrual 33 


2 Increase/Decrease in Interest on Borrowing accrual 1 


48 Increase/Decrease in Stock (42) 


(5,965) Increase/Decrease in Debtors 3,045 


4,131 Increase/Decrease in Creditors (3,200) 


0 Capital Grants in Advance 0 


(45,604)   (42,304) 


 
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services that are investing and financing 
activities: 


 


296  
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 


168 


(169) Other payments for financing activities – Agency arrangements (148) 


473 Payments for and Receipts from investing activities 414 


600  434 


   


(9,885)  Net cash flows from operating activities (6,033) 


 


27. Cash flow statement – investing activities 


 


2013/14   2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


3,692 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 
and intangible assets 


2,306 


317,000 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 249,000 


199 Other payments for investing activities 210 


(296) 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 


(168) 


(310,223) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (247,008) 


(672) Other receipts from investing activities (623) 


9,700 Net cash flows from investing activities 3,716 
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28. Cash flow statement – financing activities 


 


2013/14   2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


122 Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing 131 


169 Other payments for financing activities 148 


291 Net cash flows from financing activities 279 


 


29. Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions 


The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the 
Police and Crime Commissioner on the basis of budget reports analysed across 
subjective headings. 


These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in 
the financial statements.  In particular: 


 no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation 
Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement) 


 the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s 
pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the 
year 


 expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to 
Divisions and Departments. 


The income and expenditure of the Group/Commissioner’s principal directorates 
recorded in the budget reports for the year is as follows:  


 


Group  - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2014/15 


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(637) (167) (300) (1,352) (2,456) 


Government grants (298) (406) 0 (2,259) (2,963) 


Total Income (935) (573) (300) (3,611) (5,419) 


Employee costs 703 43,180 12,361 21,934 78,178 


Premises costs 0 348 97 97 542 


Transport costs 19 1.206 170 166 1,561 


Supplies & services 157 2,049 1,465 127 3,798 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,373 55 145 1,192 2,765 


Total Expenditure 2,252 46,838 14,238 23,516 86,844 


Net Expenditure 1,317 46,265 13,938 19,905 81,425 
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Group - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2013/14 – Restated (see note 2) 


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(1) (299) (193) (236) (729) 


Government grants (1,090) (1,956) 0 (2,862) (5,908) 


Total Income (1,091) (2,255) (193) (3,098) (6,637) 


Employee costs 619 47,590 18,320 4,665 71,194 


Premises costs 0 284 185 934 1,403 


Transport costs 7 1.284 196 65 1,552 


Supplies & services 297 1,911 1,321 3 3,532 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,034 46 159 939 2,178 


Total Expenditure 1,957 51,115 20,181 6,606 79,859 


Net Expenditure 866 48,860 19,988 3,508 73,222 


Commissioner - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2014/15 


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(637) (167) (300) (1,351) (2.455) 


Government grants (298) (406)  (2,259) (2,963) 


Total Income (935) (573) (300) (3,610) (5,418) 


Employee costs 646    646 


Premises costs 0    0 


Transport costs 19    19 


Supplies & services 157    157 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,373    1,373 


Total Expenditure 2,195 0 0 0 2,195 


Net Expenditure 1,260 (573) (300) (3,610) (3,223) 


Commissioner - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2013/14 – Restated (see note 2) 


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(1) (299) (193) (236) (729) 


Government grants (1,090) (1,956)  (2,862) (5,908) 


Total Income (1,091) (2,255) (193) (3,098) (6,637) 


Employee costs 619    619 


Premises costs 0    0 


Transport costs 7    7 


Supplies & services 297    297 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,034    1,034 


Total Expenditure 1,957 0 0 0 1,957 


Net Expenditure 866 (2,255) (193) (3,098) (4,680) 
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Reconciliation of Directorate Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


 


Group 
2013/14 – 
Restated 


(see note 2) 


Commissioner 
2013/14 – 


Restated (see 
note 2) 


 Group 
2014/15 


Commissoiner 
2014/15 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


73,222 (4,680) Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 81,425 (3,223) 


17,336 (5,396) 
Net amounts of services and support services 
not included in the Analysis 


15,387 (5,788) 


15,516 1,824 
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement not reported to 
management in the Analysis 


11,427 (253) 


0 0 
Amounts included in the Analysis not included 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 


0 0 


106,074 (8,252) 
Cost of services in Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 


108,239 (9,281) 


Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 


This reconciliation shows how the figures in the Directorate Analysis of Income and 
Expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Group - Financial year 2014/15  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(2,456) (2,595) 263 (4,788) 0 (4,788) 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 (816) (816) 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (44,886) (44,886) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(2,963) (3,188) (1,460) (7,611) (66,744) (74,355) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 (4) (4) 


Total Income (5,419) (5,783) (1,197) (12,399) (112,450) (124,849) 


Employee costs 78,178 12,955 1,287 92,420 0 92,420 


Premises costs 542 2,782 149 3,473 210 3,683 


Transport costs 1,561 840 179 2,580 0 2,580 


Supplies & services 3,798 4,037 438 8,273 0 8,273 


Agency & contracted 
services 


2,765 556 (840) 2,481 0 2,481 


Pension costs 0 0 7,182 7,182 39,233 46,415 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, 
impairment & 
revaluations 


0 0 4.228 4,228 0 4,228 


Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0 0 1 1 0 1 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Interest payments 0 0 0 0 605 605 


Total Expenditure 86,844 21,170 12,624 120,639 40,048 160,687 


Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 


81,425 15,387 11,427 108,239 (72,402) 35,837 
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Group - Financial year 2013/14 – Restated (see note 2) 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(729) (3,450)  (4,179)  (4,179) 


Interest & investment 
income 


   0 (789) (789) 


Income from council tax    0 (43,374) (43,374) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(5,908) (1,945)  (7,853) (66,544) (74,397) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


   0 184 184 


Total Income (6,637) (5,395) 0 (12,032) (110,523) (122,555) 


Employee costs 71,193 15,667  86,860  86,860 


Premises costs 1,403 1,711  3,114 199 3,313 


Transport costs 1,552 992  2,544  2,544 


Supplies & services 3,532 3,560  7,092  7,092 


Agency & contracted 
services 


2,179 801  2,980  2,980 


Pension costs   10,793 10,793 38,750 49,543 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, impairment 
& revaluations 


  4,329 4,329  4,329 


Icelandic bank 
impairment 


  (61) (61)  (61) 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


  455 455  455 


Interest payments    0 620 620 


Total Expenditure 79,859 22,731 15,516 118,106 39,569 157,675 


Surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 


73,222 17,336 15,516 106,074 (70,954) 35,120 
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Commissioner - Financial year 2014/15 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(2,455) (2,595) 263 (4,787) 0 (4,787) 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 (816) (816) 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (44,886) (44,886) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(2,963) (3,193) (1,461) (7,617) (66,744) (74,361) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 (4) (4) 


Charge to Chief 
Constable for use of 
Non-Current Assets 


0 0 (3,307) (3,307)  (3,307) 


Total Income (5,418) (5,788) (4,505) (15,711) (112,450) (128,161) 


Employee costs 646 0 0 646 0 646 


Premises costs 0 0 0 0 210 210 


Transport costs 19 0 0 19 0 19 


Supplies & services 157 0 0 157 0 157 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,373 0  1,373 0 1,373 


Pension costs 0 0 5 5 12 17 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, 
impairment & 
revaluations 


0 0 4.228 4,228 0 4,228 


Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0 0 1 1 0 1 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Interest payments 0 0 0 0 605 605 


Intra-Group Transfer 0 0 0 0 156,741 156,741 


Total Expenditure 2,195 0 4,234 6,429 157,568 163,997 


Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 


(3,223) (5,788) (271) (9,281) 45,118 35,837 
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Commissioner - Financial year 2013/14 – Restated (see note 2) 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(729) (3,450)  (4,179)  (4,179) 


Interest & investment 
income 


    (789) (789) 


Income from council tax     (43,374) (43,374) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(5,908) (1,946)  (7,854) (66,544) (74,398) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0    184 184 


Charge to Chief 
Constable for use of 
Non-Current Assets 


  (3,390) (3,390)  (3,390) 


Total Income (6,637) (5,396) (3,390) (15,423) (110,523) (125,946) 


Employee costs 619   619  619 


Premises costs 0   0 199 199 


Transport costs 7   7  7 


Supplies & services 297   297  297 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,034   1,034  1,034 


Pension costs 0   0 17 17 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, 
impairment & 
revaluations 


0  4,329 4,329  4,329 


Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0  (61) (61)  (61) 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0  946 946  946 


Interest payments 0   0 620 620 


Intra-Group Transfer     153,059 153,059 


Total Expenditure 1,957 0 4,268 7,171 153,895 161,066 


Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 


(4,680) (5,396) 1,824 (8,252) 43,372 35,120 
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30. Agency services 


Drug Intervention Programme  


Up until 2013/14, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys acted as an 
administrator for the Drug Intervention Programme (DIP) and DIP paid the 
Commissioner/Group an annual administration fee in return for the services 
provided. 


 
2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


30 Expenditure incurred in providing Financial Administration Services to 
the Drug Intervention Programme 


0 


(30) Administration fee payable by the Drug Intervention Programme (0) 


0 Net surplus arising on the agency arrangements 0 


In 2014/15 this arrangement ceased to exist with the Commissioner instead 
procuring the services from an external service provider. 


 


Pension services provided by Carmarthenshire County Council  


The council administer the Local Government and Police Pension schemes and levy 
an annual fee based on the number of active and deferred members, as well as 
actual pensioners. A cost is also incurred for maintenance and the annual benefit 
statements. 


 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


46 Expenditure incurred in administering the Police and Local 
Government Pension Schemes 


62 


46 Net surplus arising on the agency arrangements 62 


 


31. Collaborative Arrangements  


Police forces in Wales have a long, successful history of collaborating to develop 
specialist areas of policing. This included those under the remit of the former Police 
Authorities of Wales Joint Committee. Future collaboration will be driven by the need 
to satisfy the Strategic Policing Requirement and by the outcomes of the Regional 
Strategic Assessment of threats, risks and harm to the southern region of Wales.  
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Force will be responsible for 
ensuring the Strategic Policing Requirement is met.  As part of this, he will look to 
work in collaboration with other Commissioner’s and forces to provide the most 
effective service possible. Such agreements are regulated by Section 22A of the 
Police Act 1996, as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011.  
 
The collaborative services and their funding continue under revised Commissioner 
and Force Governance arrangements. These are in effect considered as ‘Pooled 
Budgets’ with agreements for Funding Contributions, made and varied from time to 
time, and certain Specific Government Grants. The pooled budgets are effectively 
hosted by the Commissioner and Force for South Wales Police on behalf of the four 
police forces in Wales.   
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Included in accounting policies (Note 1) are definitions and explanation of the new 
accounting requirements, the latter involving shares of income, expenditure, assets 
and liabilities. As a result of the requirement of IFRS11, the following tables provide 
revised information relating to Dyfed Powys Police. 
 
The Expenditure and Income Statements for the main collaborative arrangements 
are provided below:  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 3,925 466 3,470 1,913 10,523 20,297 


Non Pay Expenditure 815 17 694 708 1,278 3,512 


Gross Expenditure 4,740 483 4,164 
 


843 


2,621 11,801 23,809 


Specific Grant Income (4,639) (483) (2,852) (500) 0 (8,474) 


Income (101) 
 


 (34) (27) 0 (162) 


Total Income & Grants (4,740) (483) (2,886) (527) 0 (8,636) 


South Wales Police 0 0 (620) (1,131) (5,766) (7,517) 


Dyfed Powys Police 0 0 (248) (440) (3,143) (3,831) 


Gwent Police 0 0 (278) (523) (2,892) (3,693) 


North Wales Police 0 0 (132) 0 0 (132) 


Force  Contributions/Fair 
Shares 


0 0 (1,278) (2,094) (11,801) (15,173) 


(Surplus) or Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 


 


1. A Regional and Organised Crime Unit was established in 2013/14 which encompasses 
the previous Regional Intelligence Unit, Regional Asset Recovery Team, Witness 
Protection, along with a number of new capabilities in line with the ACPO core Regional 
Organised Crime Unit capabilities model. 


2. The Joint Firearms Unit became fully operational in November 2012 and includes both 
firearms operations and firearms training.  


3. Any capital items/fixed assets are accounted for as procured and financed from use of 
grants and force revenue contributions.  No assets are recognised in this note and which 
otherwise would be accounted for through usable capital reserves. There are no charges 
for depreciation.  Assets are recognised on Force/Commissioner Balance Sheets, CIES, 
and MIRS Statements. 


4. Each force may hold their own reserves for collaborative purposes. 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 3,049 483 2,564 2,048 10,442 18,586 


Non Pay Expenditure 1,094 36 1,041 766 1,164 4,101 


Gross Expenditure 4,143 519 3,605 2,814 11,606 22,687 


Specific Grant Income (4,090) (519) (2,262) (642) 0 (7,513) 


Income (53) 0 (5) (29) (61) (87) 


Total Income & Grants (4,143) (519) (2,267) (671) (61) (7,661) 


South Wales Police 0 0 (628) (1,157) (5,612) (7,397) 


Dyfed Powys Police 0 0 (239) (450) (3,189) (3,878) 


Gwent Police 0 0 (327) (536) (2,744) (3,607) 


North Wales Police 0 0 (144) 0 0 (144) 


Force Contribution/Fair 
Share 


0 0 (1,338) (2,143) (11,545) (15,026) 


(Surplus) or Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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32. Officers’ remuneration 


Senior employees  


      


Salary 
(including 
fees and 


allowances) 


 
Benefits in 


kind - 
medical 
cover 


Benefits 
in kind - 


lease cars 


Benefits in kind – 
house loan 


interest  


Other 
Payments 


 


Total 
remuneration 


excluding 
pension 


contributions 


Pension 
contributio


ns 


Total 
remuneration 


including 
pension 


contributions 


Discretiona
ry 


allowance 


      
 


Note 1  Note 2   Note 3        


  Year 
Not
e 


£ £ £ £ £ 
£ 


£ £ £ 


Commissioner 
2014/15  65,000 0 0 0 0 0 65,000 7,540 72,540 


2013/14   65,000 0 0 0 0 0 65,000 9,685 74,685 


Chief Constable  
2014/15  126,237 0 0 4,425 0 0 130,662 29,733 160,395 


2013/14   125,020 0 0 5,994 0 0 131,014 29,439 160,453 


Deputy Chief Constable  2014/15 4 113,978 0 0 4,106 0 5,593 123,677 26,766 150,443 


Temporary Deputy Chief 
Constable  


2013/14 4 61,705 0 0 0 0 0 61,705 14,488 76,193 


Assistant Chief Constable 2013/14 4 45,663 7,259 583 4,737 1,500 0 59,742 10,679 70,421 


Assistant Chief Constable 
(A) 


2014/15 5 46,628 0 0 1,943 0 0 48,571 11,284 59,855 


2013/14 5 49,889 0 0 2,262 0 0 52,151 12,073 64,224 


Assistant Chief Constable 
(B) 


2014/15 6 50,130 0 0 2,184 0 0 52,314 11,765 64,079 


Director of Finance/Chief 
Financial Officer to the Chief 
Constable 


2014/15  64,647 0 0 0 0 0 64,647 7,499 72,146 


2013/14 7 5,310 0 0 0 0 0 5,310 791 6,101 


Temporary Director of 
Finance/ Chief Financial 
Officer to the Chief 
Constable and 
Commissioner* 


2013/14 8 44,017 0 0 0 0 0 44,017 6,502 50,519 


Chief Financial Officer to the 
Commissioner* 


 2014/15  9 64,706 0 0 0 0 0 64,706 7,492 72,198 
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Salary 
(including 
fees and 


allowances) 


 
Benefits in 


kind - 
medical 
cover 


Benefits 
in kind - 


lease cars 


Benefits in kind – 
house loan 


interest  


Other 
Payments 


 


Total 
remuneration 


excluding 
pension 


contributions 


Pension 
contributio


ns 


Total 
remuneration 


including 
pension 


contributions 


Discretiona
ry 


allowance 


      
 


Note 1  Note 2   Note 3        


  Year 
Not
e 


£ £ £ £ £ 
£ 


£ £ £ 


Director of Resources 2014/15 10 42,065 0 0 0 0 0 42,065 4,846 46,911 


Director of Legal and 
Compliance 


2014/15 11 68,175 0 0 0 0 0 68,175 0 68,175 


2013/14  5,667 0 0 0 0 0 5,667 0 5,667 


Deputy Commissioner* 
2014/15 12 53,000 0 0 0 0 0 53,000 6,148 59,148 


2013/14  43,872 0 0 0 0 0 43,872 6,537 50,409 


Total 2014/15 
  


694,566 0 0 12,658 0 5,593 712,817 113,073 825,890 


Total 2013/14   446,143 7,259 583 12,993 1,500 0 468,478 90,194 558,672 


 
*staff under the direction and control of the Commissioner
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Note 1: A discretionary allowance of 7.5% of pensionable pay has been paid to some senior employees. Dyfed 


Powys Police Authority approved the Chief Officers Benefits Policy but nationally, concerns have been raised over 
the legality of these allowances.  Legal advice has confirmed that the discretionary payments could be unlawful and 
in light of this, such allowances were stopped until such time as the legal position is fully clarified.  Chief Officers who 
have been in receipt of these allowances have been informed of this and that potential recovery action could be 
taken if the allowances are subsequently confirmed as being unlawful.  This remains an open issue that will be 
progressed during 2015/16. 
            
Note 2: Some senior employees benefitted from free medical insurance cover, paid for by the organisation.  The 


Commissioner and the Chief Constable received legal advice in 2013/14 to the effect that providing free medical 
cover to police officers is unlawful, as it breaches Police Regulations.  No decision has been made by 31/03/2015 on 
whether to recover the costs of the medical cover from the individuals concerned and this remains an open issue that 
will be progressed during 2015/16.  
            
Note 3: Under the Chief Officer Relocation Package Policy dated 19th March 2012, Chief Officers who relocated 


their main home to the force area were entitled to receive a house loan of up to £300,000, for a period of up to 18 
months, on which interest was chargeable at the Bank of England base rate prevailing at the time the loan was 
entered into.  If this rate was lower than the official HMRC rate of interest, a benefit in kind tax liability arose.  This 
policy was revised on 17th January 2013 and interest on any future loans will be charged at a rate equivalent to the 
official HMRC rate.        
Note 4: The Assistant Chief Constable acted as temporary Deputy Chief Constable during the period 15/09/2013 - 


31/03/2014.  He was appointed to this role permanently on 01/04/2014.  The figure of £5,593 in the 'Other Payments' 
column relates to reimbursement of the benefit in kind tax liability that was incurred as a result of relocation expenses 
claimed in 2012/13 and the resultant change in tax code.  This was in accordance with the Windsor 
Recommendation which states that Police and Crime Commissioners should pay all reasonable costs arising from 
the sale and purchase of a chief officer's house and should pay all tax liabilities arising from any relocation packages. 
The Assistant Chief Constable repaid his house loan in full on 26/7/14. 
             
Note 5: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (A) was appointed on 15/09/2013 and remained in this post until 


27/09/2014.  The annualised salary for this post was £91,632 for 2013/14 and £95,245 for 2014/15. 
   
Note 6: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable (B) was appointed on 28/09/2014.  The annualised salary for this 


post was £95,245 
          
Note 7: The temporary Director of Finance and Resources was appointed to the new, permanent, role of Director of 


Finance/Chief Financial Officer to the Chief Constable from 01/03/2014.  The annualised salary for this post was 
£63,714 in 2013/14 
           
Note 8: A temporary Director of Finance and Resources/CFO to the Commissioner and Chief Constable was 


appointed from 18/07/2013 to 28/02/2014.  Included in the salary, fees and allowances figure of £44,017 is an 
honorarium of £6,216 for undertaking the additional duties of the role for Chief Financial Officer to the Commissioner 
during this period 
         
Note 9: The Chief Financial Officer to the Commissioner was appointed on 31/03/2014.  This is a new post.  No 


remuneration was paid in the 2013/14 financial year in respect of this post    
           
Note 10: The Director of Resources was appointed on 11/08/2014.  The annualised salary for this post was £65,229.


           
Note 11: The Director of Legal and Compliance was appointed on 01/03/2014.  The annualised salary for this post 


was £68,001 in 2013/14 
           
Note 12: The Deputy Commissioner was appointed on 03/06/2014.  The annualised salary for this post was £53,000 


for 2013/14 
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Other employees 


The other Group employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for the year 
(excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following amounts: 


 


2013/14  2014/15 


Number of employees  Number of employees 


9 £60,000 - £64,999* 6 


1 £65,000 - £69,999 5 


1 £70,000 - £74,999* 1 


7 £75,000 - £79,999 4 


1 £80,000 - £84,999 3 


0 £85,000 - £89,999 1 


1 £195,000 - £199,999** 0 


*The remuneration paid to two individuals one in £60,000 - £64,999 and the other £70,000 - £74,999 
includes redundancy.  If this payment were to be excluded for both individuals they would not be included 
in the table for receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for the year. 


**The remuneration paid to the individual for 2013/14 in this banding includes redundancy.  If this 
payment were to be excluded, the individual would appear in the £95,000 - £99,999 banding. 


There were no other Commissioner employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration 
for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions). 


Ratio of Chief Constable Remuneration/Chief of Staff Remuneration 


The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added a new 
requirement to report the following remuneration ratio information. Remuneration includes 
basic salary, overtime, allowances and benefits in kind: 
 


a. the remuneration of the body’s Chief Constable/Chief of Staff during the year to which 
the accounts relate; 


b. the median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the body’s employees in post at 31
st
 


March 2015; and 
c. the ratio of the amount in sub-paragraph (a) to the amount in sub-paragraph (b);  
 


Commissioner: 


The remuneration of the Chief of Staff during 2014/15 was £58,499. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Commissioner’s employees as 
at 31


st
 March 2015 was £29,834. 


The ratio of the Chief of Staff’s remuneration to the median Commissioner employee’s 
remuneration was 1.96:1. 


 


Chief Constable: 


The remuneration of the Chief Constable during 2014/15 was £130,662. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Chief Constable’s employees as 
at 31


st
 March 2015 was £35,105. 


The ratio of the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the median Chief Constable 
employee’s remuneration was 3.72:1. 
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Exit Packages 


The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the redundancies 
during 2014/15 is set out in the tables below: 


Group: 


Exit package cost 
band 


Number of 
Redundancies in 


each band 
Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. 


Redundancy cost Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 28 321 84 405 


£20,001 - £40,000 13 374 91 465 


£40,001 - £60,000 1 45 0 45 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000 + 0 0 0 0 


 42 740 175 915  


Commissioner: 


No exit packages were charged to the Commissioner’s accounts in 2014/15. 


The total cost of the exit packages in the tables above have been charged to the Group’s 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account in the current year. The cost of the 
Redundancies is included in the Service Analysis and the Pension Strain as a Non 
Distributed Cost. 


In comparison, the number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of 
redundancies during 2013/14 is set out in the table below: 


Group: 


Exit package cost 
band 


Number of 
Redundancies in 


each band 


Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. Redundancy cost Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 1 19 0 19 


£20,001 - £40,000 2 10 56 66 


£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 1 126 14 140 


£150,000 + 2 214 359 573 


 6 369 429 798 


Commissioner: 


Exit package cost 
band 


Number of 
Redundancies in 


each band 
Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. 


Redundancy cost Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£100,001 - £150,000 1 126 14 140 


 1 126 14 140 
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Members 


The following amounts were paid to Joint Audit Committee members in 2014/15. 


 


Group Commissioner  Group  Commissioner 


2013/14 2013/14  2014/15 2014/15 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 0 Salaries 0 0 


3 3 Allowances 2 2 


0 0 Expenses 0 0 


3 3 Total 2 2 


 


33. External audit costs 


The Group/Commissioner has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the 
Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to 
non-audit services provided by the Group/Commissioner’s external auditors: 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


2013/14 2013/14  2014/15 2014/15 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


84 41 


Fees payable to the Wales Audit 
Office with regard to external audit 
services carried out by the appointed 
auditor for the year 


82 41 


84 41 Total 82 41 


In 2014/15 the Group received a payment of £15,772 as a result of a redistribution of 
reserves to local government / police bodies and a refund of £3,381 in respect of the 
2013/14 performance fee. These amounts have not been reflected in the figures above.  
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34. Grant Income 


The Commissioner credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2014/15: 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


 Credited to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure  


(51) ACPO TAM CT Specific grant – Boat purchase 0 


0 ACPO TAM CT Specific grant – Boat engines (20) 


(39) Other capital grants (197) 


(90) Total (217) 


 Credited to Taxation and Non-specific grant income  


(33,871) Police Revenue Grant (33,152) 


(5,957) Welsh Floor Grant (6,215) 


(943) Revenue Support Grant (1,251) 


(734) Capital Grant (757) 


(41,505) Total (41,375) 


 Credited to services  


 Revenue grants  


(3,333) Grants Receivable from the Home Office (3,380) 


(254) Operation Tempest 0 


(2,369) Police Community Support Officers (2,184) 


(856) Community Safety Fund 0 


(417) Private Finance Initiative (404) 


(334) All Wales Schools Liaison Programme  (343) 


0 Competed Fund  (7) 


(190) Victim Support Services (178) 


(60) Capital Loans Grant (58) 


(39) Other Revenue Grants 0 


 Collaborative Grants **  


(380) Regional Organised Crime Unit (576) 


(135) Regional Task Force (105) 


(687) Counter Terrorism Intelligence Unit (779) 


(9,054) Total (8,014) 


 
**Police and Crime Commissioners and Police Forces in Wales are complying with new requirements 
arising from the CIPFA guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration”. This has required the Group to 
assess all collaborative activity and account for their fair share of grant income in their individual 
accounts.  


35. Related parties 


The Group/Commissioner is required to disclose material transactions with related 
parties – bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the 
Group/Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the Group/Commissioner.   


Central Government and Other Public Bodies 


Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the 
Group/Commissioner – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within 
which the Group/Commissioner operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form 
of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the 
Group/Commissioner has with other parties.  Grants received from government 
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departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 30 on reporting for resource 
allocation decisions.   


The Group/Commissioner has business relationships, giving rise to income and 
expenditure transactions, with Central Government Bodies and other Public Bodies as 
follows: 


 


Group  Commissioner 


2014/15  2014/15 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


(54,559) 455 Home Office (57,797) 0 


(16,271) 0 Welsh Government (16,271) 0 


(14,725) 963 Carmarthenshire County Council (14,725) 33 


(6,390) 151 Ceredigion County Council (6,390) 5 


(11,133) 182 Pembrokeshire County Council (11,133) 7 


(12,642) 142 Powys County Council (12,642) 0 


 


Group  Commissioner 


2013/14  2013/14 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


(54,619) 528 Home Office (54,619) 0 


(18,539) 6 Welsh Government (18,539) 0 


(14,123) 1,464 Carmarthenshire County Council (14,123) 188 


(6,296) 176 Ceredigion County Council (6,296) 28 


(11,089) 204 Pembrokeshire County Council (11,089) 43 


(11,967) 196 Powys County Council (11,967) 56 


Joint Audit Committee Members 


The total of members’ allowances paid in 2014/15 is shown in note 33. 


In 2014/15 a payment of £2,500 was made to West Wales Action for Mental Health in 
which one member of the audit committee had an interest.  This was entered into in full 
compliance with the Group’s/Commissioner’s Standing Orders.   


Officers 


None of the Senior Officers, or parties related to them, has undertaken any material 
transactions with the Group/Commissioner in 2014/15. 


 


Entities Controlled or significantly Influenced by the Group/Commissioner 


There are no entities controlled or significantly influenced by the Group/Commissioner. 


 


36. Capital expenditure and capital financing 


The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, 
together with the resources that have been used to finance it.  Where capital 
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used 
by the Group/Commissioner, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 
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Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically 
by the Group/Commissioner that has yet to be financed.  The CFR is analysed in the 
second part of this note. 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


(7,390) Opening capital financing requirement: (7,614) 


 Capital Investment:  


(3,654)  (3,023) 


0  Investment properties 0 


0  Intangible assets 0 


0  Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 0 


 Sources of finance:  


296  Capital receipts 168 


1,475  Government grants and other contributions 2,435 


 Sums set aside from revenue  


1,363  Direct revenue contributions 420 


296  MRP 305 


0  Loans fund principal 0 


(7,614) Closing capital financing requirement: (7,309) 


 


 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


 Explanation of movements in the year:  


(224) (Increase) / decrease in underlying need to borrow (supported by 
government financial assistance) 


305 


0 (Increase) / decrease in underlying need to borrow (unsupported 
by government financial assistance) 


0 


0 Assets acquired under finance leases 0 


0 Assets acquired under PFI contracts 0 


(224) (Increase)/ decrease in Capital Financing Requirement 305 


 


37. Leases 


Group/Commissioner as Lessee 


Operating Leases 


The Group/Commissioner leases property from other property owners where 
appropriate and affordable, to provide suitable accommodation for operational policing 
and support. The Group/Commissioner also has operating leases for plant and 
equipment which includes photocopiers.  


The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years 
are: 


31
st


 March 2014  31
st


 March 2015 


£’000  £’000 


158 Not later than one year 181 


488 Later than one year and not later than five years 551 


1,160 Later than five years 1,146 


1,806 Total 1,878 
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The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
during the year in relation to these leases was: 


 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


225 Minimum lease payments 292 


0 Contingent rents 0 


0 (Sublease payments receivable) 0 


225 Total 292 


 


Group/Commissioner as Lessor 


Operating Leases 


The Group/Commissioner leases out part of its property portfolio to provide suitable and 
affordable accommodation for other Public Sector Authorities. 


The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in  


future years are: 


 


The income credited to the Group/Commissioner’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement during 2014/15 in relation to these leases was £203,628. 


 


38. Private Finance Initiatives and similar contracts 


Ammanford Police Station 


Financial year 2014/15 was the fourteenth year of a 30 year PFI contract for the design, 
construction, maintenance and operation of Ammanford Police Station. The contract 
was due to end on the 31


st
 May 2030 although it was terminated after the reporting 


period (see note 7). 


The land on which Ammanford Police Station is built is owned by the Commissioner. On 
completion of the building the head lease was granted to the PFI Contractor, who in turn 
subleases the building back to the Commissioner. At the end of the PFI contract period, 
the head lease reverts back to the Commissioner.  


The contract specifies minimum standards for the services to be provided by the 
contractor, with deductions from the fee payable being made if facilities are unavailable 
or performance is below the minimum standards.   


The contractor took on the obligation to construct the police station and maintain it in a 
minimum acceptable condition and to procure and maintain the plant, equipment, 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st


 
March 
2014 


31
st


 March 2014  31
st


 March 
2015 


31
st


 March 2015 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


114 114 Not later than one year 93 93 


376 376 Later than one year and not later than 
five years 


365 365 


921 921 Later than five years 854 854 


1,411 1,411 Total 1,312 1,312 
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furniture and hardware needed to operate the police station.  The building and any 
plant, equipment, furniture and hardware installed in the police station at the end of the 
contract will be transferred to the Commissioner for nil consideration.  The 
Commissioner only has rights to terminate the contract if it compensates the contractor 
in full for costs incurred. 


 


Property Plant and Equipment 


The assets used to provide services at the police station are recognised on the 
Group/Commissioner’s Balance Sheet.  Movements in their value over the year are 
detailed in the analysis of the movement on the Property, Plant and Equipment balance 
in Note 13. 


 


Payments 


An agreed payment is made each year which is increased annually by inflation and can 
be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards in any 
year but which is otherwise fixed. Payments remaining to be made under the PFI 
contract at 31st March 2015 (excluding any estimation of inflation and availability/ 
performance deductions) are as follows: 


 


 Payment for 
services 


Reimbursement of 
Capital 


Expenditure 


Interest Total 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Payable within one year 265 41 349 655 


Payable within two to five years 1,136 243 1,328 2,707 


Payable within six to ten years 1,609 581 1,407 3,597 


Payable within eleven to fifteen 
years  


1,848 1,159 862 3,869 


Payable within sixteen to twenty 
years 


469 480 68 1,017 


Total 5,327 2,504 4,014 11,845 


 


Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they 
have been calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services 
they provide, the capital expenditure incurred and interest payable whilst the capital 
expenditure remains to be reimbursed.  The liability outstanding to pay the liability to the 
contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows: 


 


2013/14  2014/15 


£’000  £’000 


2,569 Balance outstanding at start of year 2,539 


(30) Payments during the year (35) 


0 Capital expenditure incurred in the year 0 


2,539 Balance outstanding at year end 2,504 


 


39. Impairment losses 


During 2014/15, there is no reason to believe that the value of assets has changed, 
therefore there is no indication of impairment.  
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40. Termination benefits  


During 2014/15 a total of 42 staff exited the organisation under redundancy, which cost 
the Group £915k, funded from the recurring revenue budget. Further details regarding 
exit packages payable to senior officers are included within note 32. 


 


41. Defined benefit pension schemes   


Participation in Pension schemes 


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Group makes 
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits 
will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Group has a commitment to make 
the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future 
entitlement. 


The Group participates in two post-employment schemes: 


 The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered locally by 
Carmarthenshire County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary 
scheme, meaning that the Group and employees pay contributions into a fund, 
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment 
assets. 


 The Police Officer Pension Scheme – this is an unfunded defined benefit final salary 
scheme, consequently the fund has no investment assets. Benefits payable are 
funded by contributions from employers and employees with any difference between 
benefits payable and contributions receivable being met by the top-up grant from the 
Home Office. 


Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 


The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they 
are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as 
pensions. 


However, the charge the Group is required to make against council tax is based on the 
cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is 
reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement.  The 
following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement 
during the year: 
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 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 
Group Commissioner Group 


Commissio
ner 


 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Cost of services:     


 Current service cost (3,011) (62) (19,153) 0 


 Past service cost (235) (5) 0 0 


 Other (92) 0 0 0 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


    


 Net interest expense (608) (12) (38,625) 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 


(3,946) (79) (57,778) 0 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 
liability comprising: 


    


 Return on plan assets (excluding the 
amount included in the net interest 
expense) 


8,348 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses 
arising on changes in demographic 
assumptions 


0 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses 
arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 


(23,471) (311) (146,398) 0 


 Other – experience (gain)/loss 0 0 35,173 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


(19,069) (390) (169,003) 0 


Commissioning Costs (intra-group 
transfer) 


0 (18,679) 0 (169,003) 


Total net cost (19,069) (19,069) (169,003) (169,003) 


Movement in Reserves Statement:     


 Reversal of net charges made to the 
Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of 
Services for post -employment benefits 
in accordance with the Code 


3,946 3,946 57,778 57,778 


Actual amount charged against the General 
Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 


    


 Employers’ contributions payable to 
scheme 


(2,641) (2,641) (21,823) (21,823) 


  


An intra-group transfer has been processed from the Chief Constable’s accounts to the    
Commissioner’s accounts, as the Chief Constable is not responsible for holding 
reserves. 
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The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Group and 
Commissioner Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements to the 31 March 
2015 is a loss of £15,123k (2013/14: £17,267k gain). 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 Group Commissioner Group Commissioner 


 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Cost of services:     


 Current service cost (3,947) (56) (20,947) 0 


 Past service cost (511) (7) 0 0 


 Other (94) 0 0 0 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


    


 Net interest expense (1,215) (17) (37,535) (0) 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 


(5,767) (80) (58,482) (0) 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 
comprising: 


    


 Return on plan assets (excluding the amount 
included in the net interest expense) 


7,396 0 0 0 


 Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes 
in demographic assumptions 


(613) 0 (11,970) 0 


 Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes 
in financial assumptions 


10,484 248 43,243 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 


11,500 168 (27,209) (0) 


Commissioning Costs (intra-group transfer) 0 11,332 0 (27,209) 


Total net cost 11,500 11,500 (27,209) (27,209) 


Movement in Reserves Statement:     


 Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus 
or Deficit for the Provision of Services for post 
-employment benefits in accordance with the 
Code 


5,767 5,767 58,482 58,482 


Actual amount charged against the General Fund 
Balance for pensions in the year: 


    


 Employers’ contributions payable to scheme (3,142) (3,142) (22,011) (22,011) 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Group Statement of Accounts 2014/15 
 


 


 87 


Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 


The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of 
its defined benefit plans is as follows: 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Present value of the defined benefit 
obligation 


(95,019) (124,805) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


Fair value of plan assets 80,472 93,830 0 0 


Net liability arising from defined 
benefit obligation 


(14,547) (30,975) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


 


Reconciliation of the movements in the Fair value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening fair value of scheme assets 72,851 80,472 0 0 


Interest income 3,249 3,733 0 0 


Remeasurement gain / (loss)     


 The return on plan assets, 
excluding the amount included 
in the net interest expense 


2,470 8,348 0 0 


Contributions from employer 3,142 2,641 0 0 


Contributions from employees into the 
scheme 


1,225 1,205 0 0 


Benefits paid (2,371) (2,477) 0 0 


Other (if applicable) (94) (92) 0 0 


Closing fair value of scheme assets 80,472 93,830 0 0 


 


The majority of the employment costs are incurred by the Chief Constable, therefore assets 
and liabilities relating to post-employment benefits remain within the Chief Constable and 
Group accounts. 
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 


 


 Funded Liabilities: Local 
Government Pension Scheme 


Unfunded Liabilities: Police 
Pension Scheme 


2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening Balance at 1
st


 April: (102,040) (95,019) (863,930) (869,128) 


Current service cost (3,947) (3,011) (20,947) (19,153) 


Interest cost (4,464) (4,341) (37,535) (38,625) 


Contributions from scheme participants (1,225) (1,205) (5,463) (5,849) 


Actuarial gains and (losses)     


 Actuarial gains / losses arising 
from changes in demographic 
assumptions 


(613) 0 (11,970) 0 


 Actuarial gains / losses arising 
from changes in financial 
assumptions 


10,484 (23,471) 43,243 (146,398) 


 Other (if applicable) 4,926 0 0 35,173 


Past service cost (274) 0 0 0 


Losses / (gains) on curtailment (where 
relevant) 


(237) (235) 0 0 


Benefits Paid 2,371 2,477 27,474 27,672 


Liabilities extinguished on settlements 
(where relevant) 


0 0 0 0 


Closing balance at 31
st


 March (95,019) (124,805) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


 


Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 


 


 Fair value of Scheme assets 


2013/14 2014/15 


£’000 £’000 


Cash and cash equivalents (266) 695 


Equity instruments 58,038 64,104 


Bonds 15,072 19,385 


Property 7,628 9,646 


Total Assets 80,472 93,830 


 


Basis for estimating Assets and Liabilities 


Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, 
an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions 
about mortality rates, salary levels etc. 


Both the LGPS and Police Officer pension scheme liabilities have been estimated by 
Mercer Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the 
LGPS Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2015. 
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The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 


Long-term expected rate of return 
on assets in the scheme: 


    


Equity investments 7.0% 6.5%   


Bonds 7.7% 5.1%   


Other 6.7% 6.4%   


Mortality assumptions:     


Longevity at 65 (60 for police 
scheme) for current pensioners: 


    


 Men 23.2 23.3 27.1 27.2 


 Women 25.7 25.8 29.6 29.7 


Longevity at 65 (60 for police 
scheme) for future pensioners: 


    


 Men 25.4 25.5 29.5 29.7 


 Women 28.0 28.1 32.1 


 


32.2 


 


Other assumptions:     


Rate of  inflation 2.4% 2.1% 2.4% 2.0% 


Rate of increase in salaries 3.9% 3.6% 3.9% 3.5% 


Rate of increase in pensions 2.4% 2.1% 2.4% 2.0% 


Rate for discounting scheme 
liabilities 


4.6% 3.4% 4.5% 3.3% 


The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to actuarial assumptions set out 
in the table above.  


The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain 
constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases 
or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in 
some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis 
have followed the accounting policies for the scheme i.e. on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the 
sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period. 


 


Local Government Police Scheme 2014/15 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in 
assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 2,325  


Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 2,905  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 1,025  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease 
by 0.1%) 


 2,839 
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Police Pension Scheme 2014/15 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in 
assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 20,825  


Rate of inflation (increase of decrease by 0.1%) 20,693  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 5,240  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease 
by 0.1%) 


 20,250 


 


Impact on the Group’s Cash flows 


The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as 
possible. The Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding 
level of 100% over the next 3 years. The triennial valuation was completed on 31


st
 March 


2014 and details of the future employers’ rates are shown below: 


Year Employer rate 


2015/16 11.6% 


2016/17 11.6% 


 


42. Contingent Liabilities 


The Commissioner/Group has a contingent liability in relation to overtime payments.  
Recent court and employment tribunal cases have ruled that employees of private 
companies are entitled to have overtime payments included in the calculation of holiday 
pay. As a result companies and public sector bodies may be liable to claims from 
employees for underpaid holiday pay. The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-
Powys have not received any claims from officers or staff and the amount of the 
contingent liability cannot be reliably estimated. 


43. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments  


The Commissioner has adopted CIPFA’s Revised Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and complies with the Revised Prudential Code of Capital Finance for 
Local Authorities (both updated in November 2009). 


As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Commissioner approves 
a Treasury Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. 
The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated with 
Financial Instruments. The Commissioner also produces Treasury Management 
Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.  


The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in 
compliance with the Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance for local authorities.  
This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather 
than yield.  The Commissioner’s Treasury Management Strategy, together with his 
Treasury Management Practices are based on seeking the highest rate of return 
consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity. 


The main risks covered are: 


 Credit Risk: The possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to 
meet their contractual obligations, causing a loss for the other party. 


 Liquidity Risk: The possibility that a party will be unable to raise funds to meet 
the commitments associated with Financial Instruments. 
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 Market Risk: The possibility that the value of an instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in interest rates, market prices etc. 


 
 
Credit Risk 


Loans and Receivables 


The Commissioner manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are placed with 
Banks and Building Societies having sufficiently high credit worthiness as set out in the 
Annual Investment Strategy.  Limits are placed on the amount of money that can be 
invested with a single counterparty. The Commissioner also sets a total group 
investment limit for institutions that are part of the same banking group.  


It must also be noted that although credit ratings remain a key source of information, 
the Commissioner recognises that they have limitations and investment decisions are 
based on a range of market intelligence. All investments have been made in line with 
the Commissioner’s Investment Strategy for 2014/15. The 2014/15 Investment Strategy 
can be found via the following web link: www.dyfed-powys.pcc.police.uk 


In accordance with the Annual Investment Strategy, throughout 2014/15, the 
Commissioner has continued to maintain a counterparty list on the advice of the 
Commissioner’s Treasury Management Advisor, Arlingclose, who monitor and update 
the credit standing of the institutions on a regular basis.  This assessment includes 
credit ratings from the major credit rating agencies and other alternative assessments of 
credit strength (for example, statements of potential government support). Banks and 
Building Societies have only been utilised if they have a minimum long term rating of A+ 
or equivalent and minimum short term rating of F1 or equivalent. 


Arlingclose recommended that the Commissioner invest with Non-UK Banks and Money 
Market Funds, and as such, these options were included in the Commissioner’s 
Counterparty Policy as set out in its Investment Strategy for 2014/15.  When the 
Investment Strategy was approved, the Chief Financial Officer’s advice to the 
Commissioner at that time was that Money Market Funds were not be utilised until the 
following financial year.   


The table below summarises the nominal value of the Commissioner’s investment 
portfolio at 31


st 
March 2015, and confirms that all investments were made in line with 


the Commissioner’s approved credit rating criteria: 


 


Counterparty 


Credit 
Rating 


Criteria Met 
When 


Investment 
Placed? 


Credit 
Rating 
Criteria 


Met on 31
st


 
March 
2015? 


Balance Invested as at 31 March 2015 
£’000s 


Total 
 


 
 


Y/N Y/N 
Up to 1 
month 


> 1 month 
and < 3 
months 


> 3 
months 
and < 6 
months 


> 9 
months 
and < 12 
months 


 


   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


UK Banks Y Y 4,000 11,000 1,000 0 16,000 


Foreign Banks Y Y 5,000 2,000 6,000 0 13,000 


UK Building 
Societies 


N/A N/A 4,000 3,000 0 0 7,000 


Call Accounts Y Y 4,000 0 0 0 4,000 


Total   17,000 16,000 7,000 0 40,000 
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The above analysis shows that all deposits outstanding as at 31
st
 March 2015 met the 


Commissioner’s credit rating criteria on the 31
st
 March 2015. The analysis excludes the 


estimated carrying value after impairment of the Commissioner’s Icelandic Bank 
investment of £33k. 


Trade Receivables 


As per the Code of Practice requirements, the disclosure below includes details only of 
debtors that have arisen as a result of trading activities. Balances and transactions 
arising from statutory functions (i.e. tax and NNDR payments) are excluded from this 
disclosure note, as they have not arisen from contractual trading activities. 


 


 31
st


 March 2014 31
st


 March 2015 


Gross Debtors (£’000) 1,415 1,542 


Bad Debt Provision 
for the Group (£’000) 


 


66 112 


Bad Debt Provision 
as a % or Group 
Gross Debtors 


4.66 7.26 


 


Liquidity Risk 


The Commissioner has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to 
ensure that cash is available as needed. At 31


st
 March 2015 the Commissioner invests, 


on a weekly basis, up to a maximum of 1 month to manage short term liquidity 
requirements. 


If unexpected movements happen, the Commissioner has ready access to borrowings 
from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board.  There is no significant 
risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial 
instruments.  Instead, the risk is that the Commissioner will be bound to replenish a 
significant proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. No new 
borrowing was undertaken during 2013/14. 


The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows: 


 


31
st


 March 2014 


£’000 


Loans maturing within: 31
st


  March 2015 


£’000 


131 Under 1 Year 144 


131 Total Current Borrowing 144 


144 1 – 2 years 157 


519 2 – 5 years 569 


1,252 5 – 10 years 1,371 


684 10 – 15 years 358 


0 15 + years 0 


2,599 
Total Long Term Borrowing more than 12 


months 
2,455 


All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 
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Market Risk 


Interest Rate Risk 


All borrowing and investing is currently undertaken at fixed rates.  There is therefore no 
interest rate exposure. 


Price Risk 


The Commissioner does not invest in equity shares and therefore is not subject to any 
price risk (i.e. the risk that the Commissioner will suffer loss as a result of adverse 
movements in the price of financial instruments).  


Foreign Exchange Risk 


The Commissioner has no financial asset or liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency. It therefore has no exposure to loss arising as a result of adverse movements 
in exchange rates. 


 


44. Trust Funds 


The aim of the Dyfed Powys Crime Prevention Trust is to promote for the public benefit 
in partnership with the police, the protection of people and property from, and the 
prevention of criminal acts, in particular by: 


- Encouragement of greater public participation in the prevention and solution of 
crime; and 


- Assisting in measures designed to reduce the level of crime; and 


- The provision of education, information and practical assistance on crime 
prevention. 


The Trust is registered with the Charities Commission and a financial summary is 
included below: 


 


Financial year end  Income Spending Net position 


 £ £ £ 


31
st
  Mar 2014 (103,347) 96,955 (6,392) 


31
st
  Mar 2013 (103,218) 110,855 7,637 


It has been determined that the Commissioner does not have control of the Trust and it 
is not a subsidiary of the organisation.  
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Glossary of Terms 
 


Term Definition 


2014/15 This refers to the period covered by these accounts - 1 April 2014 to 31 March 
2015. 


2013/14 This refers to the period covered for comparative purposes by these accounts – 1 
April 2013 to 31 March 2014. 


Accounting policies These are a set of rules and codes of practice the used when preparing the 
accounts. 


Actuarial gains and 
losses 


For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses 
that arise because: 


 Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made in the last 
valuation ;or 


 The actuarial assumptions have changed. 


Amortisation Intangible assets should be amortised on a systematic basis over their economic 
lives. 


Asset revaluation A revaluation of fixed assets is a technique required to accurately record the true 
value of capital assets held in the balance sheet. The purpose of a revaluation is to 
bring into the accounts the fair market value of non-current assets. 


Capital expenditure Expenditure on the acquisition or construction of assets, which have a long-term 
value e.g. land and buildings. 


Capital receipts Income from the sale of non-current assets, which can only be used to finance new 
capital expenditure or repay outstanding debt on assets financed from loans. 


Usable capital receipts are those capital receipts which are not set aside for specific 
purposes but are available to be used for any capital purchases. 


Carrying value The carrying value of an asset is the value of the asset included in the Balance 
Sheet. 


CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, one of the professional 
accountancy bodies in the UK.  CIPFA specialises in the public services and has 
responsibility for setting accounting standards for these services. 


Commissioning The entire cycle of assessing the needs of people in a local area, designing 
services, and then securing them. 


Component accounting Accounting for non-current assets’ individual components separately. 


Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) 


Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in the retail price of 
goods and services – excludes mortgage interest payments, council tax and other 
housing costs. 


Contingent liabilities These exist where: 


 a possible obligation arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the organisation’s control; or 


 a present obligation arises from past events but is not recognised 
because: 


i. it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, or 


ii. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient 
reliability. 


Corporate and 
democratic core costs 


 


These represent the costs of delivering public accountability and representation in 
policy-making and meeting the Commissioner’s statutory reporting obligations. 


Corporation sole A corporation sole is a legal entity consisting of a single ("sole") incorporated office, 
occupied by a single ("sole") man or woman i.e. the Commissioner and Chief 
Constable are both corporations sole under the PRSRA. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fixed_assets

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fair_market_value

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Juristic_person
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Term Definition 


Current assets 


 


Current assets are items that can be readily converted into cash.  


By convention the items are ordered by reference to the ease that such conversion 
into cash can be carried out. 


Current liabilities 


 


Current liabilities are items that are due immediately or in the short – term. 


Current service cost 
(Pensions) 


The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liability expected to 
arise from employee service in the current period. 


Curtailment Changes in liabilities relating respectively to actions that relieve the employer of 
primary responsibility for a pension obligation (e.g. a group of employees being 
transferred to another scheme) or events that reduce the expected years of future 
service of employees or reduce the accrual of defined benefits over their future 
service for some employees (e.g. closing a business unit). 


Defined benefit 
scheme 


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution 
scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the 
contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of 
the scheme. The schemes may be funded or unfunded. 


Defined contribution 
scheme 


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular 
contributions fixed as an amount or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal 
or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have 
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the 
current and prior periods. 


Delegation Is the partnership of authority and responsibility to another person to carry out 
specific activities. The person who delegated the work remains accountable for the 
outcome of the delegated work. 


Depreciation The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the non-current 
asset that have been consumed during the period. Consumption includes the 
wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a non-current asset 
whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either changes 
in technology or demand for the goods and services produced by the asset. 


Fair value The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s 
length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the 
purchase of the asset. 


Finance lease A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
non-current asset to the lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be 
presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum 
lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to substantially all of the 
fair value of the leased asset. 


Financial instrument Any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 


A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract that derives its value from 
changes in underlying assets or indices. 


FRS Financial Reporting Standards, as agreed by the UK accountancy profession and 
the Accounting Standards Board.  These include Statements of Standard 
Accounting Practice (SSAPs). 


Group accounts The financial statements of the group i.e. the two corporations sole, presented as a 
single economic entity. 


Impairment A reduction in the value of a non-current asset, below its carrying amount in the 
balance sheet. 


Interest cost 
(Pensions) 


For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period in the 
present value of the scheme liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to 
settlement. 
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Term Definition 


Merger accounting Merger accounting should be applied where there is a transfer of functions in full 
from the responsibility of one authority to another. Where merger accounting 
applies it is assumed that the merger took place at the beginning of the accounting 
period. 


National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) 


The non-domestic rates, or business rates, collected by local councils are the 
means by which businesses and others who occupy non-domestic property make a 
contribution towards the cost of local services. The rates are pooled by central 
government and redistributed to local councils and Commissioner according to a 
formula. 


Net book value The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheet i.e. their 
historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for 
depreciation. 


Non-current assets These are items such as land, buildings, vehicles and major items of equipment, 
which give benefit over more than one year. 


Past service cost For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme 
liabilities related to employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as 
a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits. 


Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility 
Act (PRSRA) 


An Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom which transferred the control of 
police forces from police authorities to elected Police and Crime Commissioners 


Provisions A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A provision is recognised if 
the following criteria are fulfilled: 


 an entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 


 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation; 


 a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation 


Prudential borrowing  Borrowing by local authorities without government financial support, but in 
accordance with the CIPFA prudential code of local authority borrowing  


PWLB 


 


This is the Public Works Loan Board, which is an organisation financed by the 
Government.  It lends money to Commissioners on set terms so that they can buy 
capital items. 


Reserves Balances that represent resources set aside for purposes such as general 
contingencies and cash flow management.  Earmarked reserves are those set 
aside for specific policy purposes. 


Retail Price Index (RPI) Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in the retail price of a 
basket of goods and services, including mortgage costs, council tax and other 
household costs. 


Revenue Budget The estimate of annual income and expenditure requirements, which sets out the 
financial implications of policies and the basis of the annual precept to be levied on 
collection funds. 


Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) 


A general government grant in support of local authority expenditure (including 
Commissioners) and fixed each year in relation to spending levels. 


Senior Employee An employee whose salary is more than £150,000 per year, or one whose salary is 
at least £60,000 per year (calculated pro rata for a part-time employee) and who is 
the designated head of paid service and a statutory chief officer. Typically the 
Commissioner’s Chief Executive and statutory Chief Officers. 


Single entity accounts The individual accounts of each corporation sole. 


 


 


 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Act_of_Parliament

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parliament_of_the_United_Kingdom

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Police_and_Crime_Commissioner




image10.emf
Adroddiad


Adroddiad


 
 


1 


 


     
 


 
POLICING BOARD REPORT 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 
                             


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


  
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 


PURPOSE: JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE SCRUTINY  


Title: Annual Treasury Outturn Report for 2014/15 and review of 2015/16 


activity to date 


Executive Summary:  


 
2014/15 


 
During the financial year 2014/15, the treasury management function complied 
with its Treasury Management Policy Statement and treasury management 


practices. 
 


None of the prudential indicators have been breached and a prudent approach 
has been taken in relation to investment activity with priority being given to 
security and liquidity over yield. 


 
2015/16 


 
Treasury management activities to date in 2015/16 continue to be performed in 
line with the current Treasury Management Strategy.  The treasury management 


function, in line with advice from its treasury management advisors Arlingclose, 
has begun to further diversify its investments between creditworthy 


counterparties. 
 


During 2015/16 we have found that the current Treasury Management Strategy 
is restrictive and does not allow us to make the most of the investment 
opportunities open to us and that are approved by Arlingclose.  Therefore two 


changes to our current Investment Strategy are proposed, to take immediate 
effect. 


 


Recommendation: 
 
The Joint Audit Committee to consider and comment on the Treasury Outturn 


Report for 2014/15, mid-year report for 2015/16 and proposed changes to 
Treasury Management Strategy.   


 
The PCC to receive this report and approve the changes to Treasury Management 


Strategy for 2015/16. 


Timing:  Routine 


Category of Decision / Business Area Impact: Statutory Requirement - 


Finance 


ITEM 11 







 
 


2 


 


 


   


 
 


Report of Chief Finance Officer of the PCC to the Joint Audit 
Committee 


 


Annual Treasury Outturn Report for 2014/15 and midyear review 
of 2015/16 


 
1. Purpose of Report 


 


This report outlines for 2014/15: 
 the performance of the treasury management function; 


 the effects of decisions taken and transactions executed in 
the past year; and  


 instances of non-compliance with the organisation’s Treasury 


Management Policy Statement and treasury management 
practices. 


 
This report also provides a high level review of 2015/16 treasury 
management activities to date. 


 
2. Background 


 


The Commissioner’s treasury management activity is underpinned 
by CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”). 
 


This report fulfils the Commissioner’s legal obligation under the 
Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code 


and the Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance. 
 


The Commissioner has invested substantial sums of money and is 
therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested 
funds and the effect of changing interest rates.  The successful 


identification, monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to 
the Commissioner’s treasury management strategy.  


 
3. External Context – Economic Background and Investment 


Rates in 2014/15 


 


The robust pace of GDP growth of 3% in 2014 was underpinned by 
a buoyant services sector.  Resurgent house prices, improved 
consumer confidence and healthy retain sales added to the positive 


outlook for the UK economy given the important role of the 
consumer in economic activity. 


 
Annual CPI inflation fell to zero for the year to March 2015, down 
from 1.6% a year earlier.  Bank of England Governor Mark Carney 
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wrote to the Chancellor in February explaining that the Bank 


expected CPI to temporarily turn negative but rebound around the 
end of 2015. 


 
Unemployment fell to 5.7% in January 2015, down from 7.2% a 
year earlier. 


 
The Bank of England maintained interest rates at 0.5%.  The 


Monetary Policy Committee’s stance is that the economic headwinds 
for the UK economy and the legacy of the financial crisis means 
that increases in the Bank Rate would be gradual and limited, and 


below average historical levels. 
 


4. The Borrowing Requirement and Debt Management 


There was no new borrowing in 2014/15.  The table below 


summarises the movement in borrowing during 2014/15: 
 


 Balance on  
01/04/2014                            


£000 


Debt 
Maturing             


£000 


Debt 
prematurely 
repaid £000 


Balance on 
31/03/15                


£000 


Total PWLB 
borrowing 


2,731 (132) 0 2,599 


 
Capital expenditure was funded via internal resources and 


earmarked capital reserves.  
 
The use of internal resources in lieu of borrowing was judged to be 


the most cost effective means of funding £0.52m of capital 
expenditure. This has, for the time being, lowered overall treasury 


risk by reducing both external debt and temporary investments. 
 


5. Investment Activity in 2014/15 


 
Both CIPFA and Welsh Government’s guidance require the 
Commissioner to invest prudently and to have regard for the 


security and liquidity of investments before seeking the optimum 
yield. 


 
Whilst the current Treasury Management Strategy allows 


investments to be made in any bank,  organisation or securities 


whose lowest published long-term credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s 


and Standard & Poor’s is A-, historically, investments have been 


made with a limited number of institutions (namely Lloyds Bank, 


Barclays Bank, Nationwide, Bank of Scotland and the Debt 


Management Office).  However, in line with the advice of 


Arlingclose, during the second half of 2014/15 we started investing 


in a greater range of institutions including non UK banks.  The 


advice of Arlingclose is closely adhered to when deciding who to 


invest funds with whilst always bearing in mind the need to choose 


security and liquidity above yield.   
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In addition, the Treasury Management Strategy allows alternative 


investment options such as treasury bills and certificates of deposit.  


Historically, no such investments were made.  Some of these 


alternative investment options required the opening of a safe 


custodian account and therefore such an account was opened with 


King & Shaxson during 2014/15.  We invested in our first Certificate 


of Deposit (CD) on 11th December 2014 with Standard Chartered 


and made three further investments in CDs during 2014/15.   


 
 


Short term investments £’000 


Balance on 1/04/14 37,039 


Investments Made 228,000 


Maturities (224,977) 


Balance on 31/03/15 40,062 


 
 2013/14 


£’000 


2014/15 


£’000 


Difference 


Average investment made 4,571 3,500 -23% 


Average number of days of 
each investment 


33.64 58.22 +73% 


Average daily total 
investment 


£30,447 £37,660 +24% 


Average rate of interest 0.31% 0.37% +20% 


 


Security of capital remained the Commissioner’s main investment 
objective. This was maintained by following the counterparty policy 


set out in Treasury Management Policy Statement for 2014/15.  
This resulted in investments only being made with institutions 
defined as “high credit quality” - those having a long-term credit 


rating of (A-) or higher.  Investments with UK and foreign banks 
and building societies were primarily fixed-rate term deposits.  


 
Our treasury management advisors, Arlingclose, complete a 
quarterly investment benchmarking report based on data supplied 


by its clients.  The results of the quarter 4 2014/15 exercise are 
summarised below: 


 
 


Measure Dyfed 
Powys 


31/03/14 


Dyfed 
Powys 


31/03/15 


Client 
Average 


31/03/14 


Client 
Average 


31/03/15 


Average Rate 
of Investments 


0.33% 0.53% 0.74% 0.68% 


 
The investments made by the Commissioner during quarter 4 of 


2014/15 compare more favourably with Arlingclose’s client average 
than that of quarter 4 2013/14.  This is due to a conscious decision 


being made to reduce the amount of funds placed with the Debt 
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Management Office (DMO), which only offers a 0.25% return, and 


to invest more with other institutions that offer higher returns but 
without compromising the security of sums invested.  


 
Had Dyfed Powys performed in line with Arlingclose’s client average 
for quarter 4 2014/15, an additional £56,500 of investment income 


would have been received for the year. 
 


6. Investment Activity in 2015/16 


 
The advice from our Treasury Management Advisors, Arlingclose, is 


that “diversification of investments between creditworthy 


counterparties to mitigate bail-in risk is extremely important”. 


 


Therefore, in line with that advice and our activities during the 


second half of 2014/15, we now invest in a larger range of 


institutions that previously.  We also continue to invest in CDs 


always bearing in mind the need to choose security and liquidity 


above yield.   


 


On the matter of mitigating the risk of bail-in our advisers go on to 


say that given the practicalities of day to day cash management, it 


is unlikely that clients will be able to avoid making any unsecured 


investments in banks and building societies.  Money Market Funds 


provide an instant access alternative, but since they mostly invest 


in unsecured certificates of deposit issued by banks, the only risk 


reduction is through diversification. Government MMFs, which 


mostly invest in treasury bills and repurchase agreements (repos) 


are a low risk solution with consequent returns after fees typically 


being very low. 


 


There are two principal ways to make secured investments in banks 


and building societies – covered bonds and repos. In both cases, 


the bank provides collateral to a third party that will return 


substantially all of the value of the investment back to the investor, 


even if the bank goes insolvent. Covered bonds and repos are also 


exempt from bail-in, and since we expect large banks to be bailed-


in rather than placed into insolvency, these instruments present 


very little credit risk. Covered bonds can be easily bought from a 


broker and held in a custody account; they are also a feature of 


several AAA-rated cash plus and short bond funds. Arlingclose are 


currently taking a pilot group of clients through the legal and 


administrative steps necessary to invest in repo, and expect to 


extend this to all clients later this year.  


 


For medium and long term investments, Arlingclose advise 


diversifying away from banks, either into sectors that still enjoy 
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government support, such as supranational banks, local authorities 


and housing associations, or into non-financial corporates. 


Companies can’t be bailed-in, but can still go insolvent, so 


diversification remains important. Luckily, there a large number of 


corporate bonds available to buy to build an internally managed 


portfolio, while external fund management is a viable alternative 


requiring less internal resource. 


 


Our Treasury Management Strategy does not currently allow us to 


invest in covered bonds and repos.  We are currently investigating 


whether there is a need for us to do so in the future. 


 


A summary of current investments is included in Appendix A 


RESTRICTED. 


 


7. Credit developments and credit risk management 


 


The European Parliament approved the EU Bank Recovery and 


Resolution Directive (BRRD) on April 15, 2014.  Taking the view 


that potential extraordinary government support available to banks' 


senior unsecured bondholders will likely diminish, over 2014-15 


Moody’s revised the Outlook of several UK and EU banks from 


Stable to Negative (note, this is not the same as a rating review 


negative) and S&P placed the ratings of UK and German banks on 


Credit Watch with negative implications, following these countries’ 


early adoption of the bail-in regime in the BRRD.  


 


S&P also revised the Outlook for major Canadian banks to negative 


following the government’s announcement of a potential bail-in 


policy framework.  


 


The Bank of England published its approach to bank resolution 


which gave an indication of how the reduction of a failing bank’s 


liabilities might work in practice. The Bank of England will act if, in 


its opinion, a bank is failing, or is likely to fail, and there is not 


likely to be a successful private sector solution such as a takeover 


or share issue; a bank does not need to be technically insolvent 


(with liabilities exceeding assets) before regulatory intervention 


such as a bail-in takes place.   


 


The combined effect of the BRRD and the UK’s Deposit Guarantee 


Scheme Directive (DGSD) is to promote deposits of individuals and 


SMEs above those of public authorities, large corporates and 


financial institutions.   


 


In December the Bank’s Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) 


stress tested eight UK financial institutions to assess their resilience 


to a very severe housing market shock and to a sharp rise in 


interest rates and address the risks to the UK’s financial stability.  
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Institutions which ‘passed’ the tests but would be at risk in the 


event of a ‘severe economic downturn’ were Lloyds Banking Group 


and Royal Bank of Scotland. Lloyds Banking Group, [whose 


constituent banks are on the Authority’s lending list], is taking 


measures to augment capital and the PRA does not require the 


group to submit a revised capital plan.  RBS, which is not on the 


Authority’s lending list for investments, has updated plans to issue 


additional Tier 1 capital. The Co-operative Bank failed the test. 


 


The European Central Bank also published the results of the Asset 


Quality Review (AQR) and stress tests, based on December 2013 


data. 25 European banks failed the test, falling short of the required 


threshold capital by approximately €25bn (£20bn) in total – none of 


the failed banks featured on the Authority’s lending list.  


 


In October following sharp movements in market signals driven by 


deteriorating global growth prospects, especially in the Eurozone, 


Arlingclose advised a reduction in investment duration limits for 


unsecured bank and building society investments to counter the 


risk of another full-blown Eurozone crisis. Durations for new 


unsecured investments with banks and building societies were 


reduced.  Duration for new unsecured investments with some UK 


institutions was further reduced to 100 days in February 2015.   


 
The outlawing of bail-outs, the introduction of bail-ins, and the 


preference being given to large numbers of depositors other than 
local authorities means that the risks of making unsecured deposits 


rose relative to other investment options.  Arlingclose  therefore 
increasingly favours secured investment options or diversified 
alternatives such as covered bonds, non-bank investments and 


pooled funds over unsecured bank and building society deposits as 
discussed above under section 6. 


 
The treasury management function assessed counterparty credit 
quality by regularly monitoring: 


 credit ratings;  
 credit default swaps;  


 GDP of the country in which the institution operates; and 
 the country’s net debt as a percentage of GDP and share 


price.  


 
The minimum long-term counterparty credit rating determined 


acceptable by the Commissioner for the 2014/15 treasury strategy 
was A- across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and Moody’s. 


 
 
Counterparty credit quality has strengthened / been maintained / 


weakened as demonstrated by the Credit Score analysis 
summarised below: 
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Date Value 
Weighted 
Average 


Credit 
Risk 


Score 


*Value 
Weighted 
Average 


Credit 
Rating 


**Time 
Weighted 
Average 


Credit 
Risk 


Score 


Time 
Weighted 
Average 


Credit 
Rating 


Average 
Life 
(days) 


31/03/2014 4.01 AA- 3.19 AA 12 


30/06/2014 3.67 AA- 4.25 AA- 31 


30/09/2014 4.25 AA- 4.78 A+ 94 


31/12/2014 5.20 A+ 5.14 A+ 54 


31/03/2015 5.45 A+ 4.89 A+ 53 


 
An explanation of the credit score analysis is illustrated below: 


 


Long-Term 


Credit Rating 


Score 


AAA 1 


AA+ 2 


AA 3 


AA- 4 


A+ 5 


A 6 


A- 7 


BBB+ 8 


BBB 9 


BBB- 10 


 


*The value weighted average reflects the credit quality of 
investments according to the size of the deposit.  
 


**The time weighted average reflects the credit quality of 
investment according to the maturity of the deposit. 


 
 


Liquidity Management 


 
In keeping with the Welsh Government’s guidance on investment, 


the Commissioner achieved a sufficient level of liquidity averaging 
£4m through the use of call accounts. 


  


Yield 
 


The low rates of return on short-dated money market investments 
reflect prevailing market conditions and the Commissioner’s 
objective of optimising returns commensurate with the principles of 


security and liquidity. 
 


8. Update on Investments with Icelandic Banks 


 
Early in October 2008, the Icelandic Banks Landsbanki and Glitnit 


collapsed and the UK subsidiaries of the banks, Heritable and 
Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander (KSF) went into administration. 
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The Former Police Authority had £2m deposited across two of these 


institutions in accordance with the Annual Investment Strategy. The 
current situation with regards to recovery of the sums deposited 


varies between each institution. 
 KSF – Dyfed Powys has now recovered 97.63% of its 


investment; 


 Heritable – Dyfed Powys has recovered 100% of its 


investment. 


It is likely that a further distribution for KSF will be received during 
the 2015/16 financial year. 


 
9. Compliance 


 


In compliance with the Code, in 2014/15 the treasury management 
function can confirm that: 
 


 it complied with its Treasury Management Policy Statement 
and treasury management practices; and 


 
 none of the prudential indicators have been breached and a 


prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment 


activity with priority being given to security and liquidity over 
yield. 


 
10. Staff Training 


 


The training needs of staff involved in treasury management are 
assessed as part of the annual appraisal process and also when 
staff responsibilities change. 


 
During 2014/15 staff involved in treasury management attended 


training courses, seminars and conferences provided by Arlingclose, 
our treasury management advisors. 
 


Quarterly client meetings with Arlingclose were also attended by 
key staff.  In these meetings, Arlingclose provide an update on the 


general economic environment and investment advice. 
 


11. Investment Strategy 


 
Our current investment strategy allows for the following specified 


and non-specified investments in 2015/16 (see Appendix C for the 
full Treasury Management Strategy): 
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 Investment 


type 


Specified Non-


Specified 


Maximum 


investment 


period 


Counter-


party 


investment 


limit 


1 Banks and other 


organisation and 


securities whose 


lowest published 


long-term credit 


rating from Fitch, 


Moody’s and 


Standard & 


Poor’s is A- 


  364 days £4 million  


2 Term deposits 


with other UK 


local authorities 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  364 days £4 million  


3 UK Central 


Government e.g 


Debt 


Management 


Office 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  364 days 100% of 


overall 


investments 


4 UK Central 


Government e.g. 


Government 


Bonds 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  5 years £10 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


5 UK Building 


Societies without 


credit ratings – 


but assessed by 


Arlingclose 


  100 days £1 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


6 Money market 


funds and other 


pooled funds 


  n/a 5% of total 


investment 


per MMF 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


7 Any other 


organisation, 


subject to an 


external credit 


assessment and 


specific advice 


from the 


Treasury 


Management 


Advisor 


  364 days £1 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


 
However, this strategy is limiting our investment options and the 


following changes to the strategy are proposed (shown in blue bold 
italics): 
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 Investment 


type 


Specified Non-


Specified 


Maximum 


investment 


period 


Counter-


party 


investment 


limit 


1 Banks and other 


organisation and 


securities whose 


lowest published 


long-term credit 


rating from Fitch, 


Moody’s and 


Standard & 


Poor’s is A- 


 










364 days 


 


 


 


 


5 years 


£4m 


 


 


 


 


£4m  


2 Term deposits 


with other UK 


local authorities 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  364 days £4 million  


3 UK Central 


Government e.g 


Debt 


Management 


Office 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  364 days 100% of 


overall 


investments 


4 UK Central 


Government e.g. 


Government 


Bonds 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  5 years £10 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


5 UK Building 


Societies without 


credit ratings – 


but assessed by 


Arlingclose 


  100 days £1 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval)** 


6 Money market 


funds and other 


pooled funds 


  n/a £4m per 


fund 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


7 Any other 


organisation, 


subject to an 


external credit 


assessment and 


specific advice 


from the 


Treasury 


Management 


Advisor 


  364 days £1 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


 
 


These changes have been recommended to us by our Treasury 
Management Advisers as they will allow us to make the most of the 
investment opportunities that are currently available.  
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12. Resource Implications 
 


Implication Detail  


Finance As detailed above  


Staff N/A 


Assets N/A 


Partners N/A 


Timescales N/A 


Leadership N/A 


 


13. Impact Considerations 
 


Implication Impact 


Considered 
(Yes/No) 


Impact Identified  


Legal Yes Statutory duty to produce 


document 


Contribution to 
Police and Crime 
Plan 


Yes Priority 6: Spending wisely – 


this includes good management 


of financial resources 


Risk Analysis Yes Included within main body of 


report 


Equality Yes None 


Human Rights Yes None 


Children & Young 
People 


Yes None 


Environmental and 
Sustainability 


Yes None 


National Park  Yes None 


Media Yes None 


 
14. Appendices 


 
Appendix A – Summary of current investments 


Appendix B – Prudential Indicators 
Appendix C – Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 


 
15. Background / Supporting papers 


 
 Local Government Act 2003, 
 CIPFA TM Code, 


 Prudential Code, 
 Dyfed Powys Investment Strategy and Policy 2014/15, 
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16. Contact details 


 
Author(s): Jayne Woods and Kevin Lewis 


Email: Jayne.woods@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk  
kevin.lewis@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk 


Telephone: x23805 
 
17.  Public Access to Information 


 
Information in this form is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOI 


Act) including the exemptions set out within the Act and other relevant 


legislation. Where the exemptions or other restrictions are applicable, this form 


will be edited prior to being made available on the OPCC website within 5 


working days of consideration by the Policing Board. 


 
18. Officer Approval 


 


Chief Finance Officer  


I have been consulted about the proposal and confirm that financial and legal 


advice have been taken into account in the preparation of this report. I am 


satisfied that this is an appropriate request to be submitted to the Policing Board 


 


Signature 


 


Date 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 



mailto:Jayne.woods@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk

mailto:kevin.lewis@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk
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Appendix B – Prudential Indicators 


(a) Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 


The Commissioner’s cumulative maximum external borrowing requirement for 
2014/15 to 2016/17 is shown in the table below: 


 


Capital Financing 


Requirement 


31/03/2015 


Approved 


£000 


31/03/2015 


Actual 


£000 


31/03/2016 


Estimate 


£000 


31/03/17 


Estimate 


£000 


Total CFR 10,332 10,332 10,292 10,451 


 
Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to ensure that 


debt is only used for capital purposes in the medium term, debt should not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus 
the estimates of any additional CFR for the current and next two financial years. 


This is a key indicator of prudence.  The table below summarises the current 
position: 


 


Debt 


31/03/2015 


Approved 


£000 


31/03/2015 


Actual 


£000 


31/03/2016 


Estimate 


£000 


31/03/17 


Estimate 


£000 


Borrowing 2,599 3,599 2,455 2,298 


PFI liabilities  2,504 2,504 2,463 2,415 


Total Debt 5,103 5,103 4,918 4,713 


Borrowing in excess 


of CFR? 
No No No No 


 


*Additional internal (rather than external) Borrowing of £0.520m utilised in line 
with Commissioner’s priority to maximise use of reserves for the benefit of 


policing. £0.132m of external borrowing also repaid in 2014/15. 
 
Total debt is expected to remain below the CFR during the forecast period.   


 
 


(b) Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  


The Operational Boundary for External Debt is based on the Commissioner’s 
estimate of most likely, i.e. prudent but not worst case, scenario for external 


debt. This is based on the Commissioner’s estimate of capital expenditure, the 
capital financing requirement and cash flow requirements and is a key 


management tool for in-year monitoring.  Other long-term liabilities comprise 
finance lease, Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and other liabilities that are not 
borrowing but form part of the Authority’s debt. 


 
The Authorised Limit for External Debt is the affordable borrowing limit 


determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003.  It is the 
maximum amount of debt that the Commissioner can legally owe.  The 
authorised limit provides headroom over and above the operational boundary for 


unusual cash movements. 
 







The Chief Finance Officer confirms that there were no breaches to the Authorised 
Limit and the Operational Boundary during 2014/15 and no new borrowing was 


undertaken in 2014/15.   
 
 Operational 


Boundary 


(Approved) 


31/03/2015         


£000 


Authorised Limit 


(Approved) 


31/03/2015           


£000 


Actual External 


Debt 


31/03/2015            


£000 


Short-term Borrowing 1,000 3,233 0 


Other Long-term Liabilities 19,637 20,600 2,599 


Total 20,637 23,833 2,599 


 


(c) Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable 
Interest Rate Exposure  


This indicator is set to control the Commissioner’s exposure to interest rate risk.  
The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as 
the amount of net principal borrowed.    


 
 Approved Limits for 


2014/15 


Principal borrowed 


£000  


Maximum during 


2014/15 


Principal borrowed 


£000  


Upper Limit for Fixed Rate 


Exposure 
20,600 0 


Compliance with Limits: Yes   


Upper Limit for Variable Rate 


Exposure 
3,233 0 


Compliance with Limits: Yes   


 
(d) Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  


This indicator is provided to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing 
to be renegotiated during times of uncertainty over interest rates.  


  


Maturity Structure of 


Fixed Rate Borrowing 


Upper 


Limit 


% 


Lower 


Limit 


% 


Actual Fixed 


Rate 


Borrowing at 


31/03/2015 


£ 


% Fixed 


Rate 


Borrowing  


at 


31/03/2015 


Compliance 


with Set 


Limits? 


under 12 months 10 0 143,867 5 Yes 


12 months and within 24 


months 
10 0 157,561 5 Yes 


24 months and within 5 years 50 0 568,581 25 Yes 


5 years and within 10 years 50 0 1,371,390 50 Yes 


10 years and above 100 0 357,835 15 Yes 


Total   2,599,234   


 
 
 







(e) Capital Expenditure 


This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure 


remains within sustainable limits.   


 
Capital Expenditure 31/03/2015 


Approved 


£000 


31/03/2015 


Actual 


£000 


31/03/2016 


Estimate 


£000 


31/03/17 


Estimate 


£000 


Total 13,605 3,023 9,373 9,411 


  


Capital expenditure has been and will be financed or funded as follows: 
 
Capital Financing 31/03/2015 


Approved 


£000 


31/03/2015 


Actual 


£000 


31/03/2016 


Estimate 


£000 


31/03/17 


Estimate 


£000 


Capital receipts 750 168 1,500 500 


Government Grants 1,357 1,351 1,002 679 


Reserves/Other sources 10,864 1,504 5,933 7,290 


Revenue contributions 114 0 418 422 


Total Financing 13,085 3,023 8,853 8,891 


Internal borrowing 520 0 520 520 


Total Funding 520 0 520 520 


Total Financing and 


Funding 
13,605 3,023 9,373 9,411 


  
 


(f) Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 


This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of 


existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the 
revenue budget required to meet financing costs, net of investment income. 


 
Ratio of Financing 


Costs to Net Revenue 


Stream 


31/03/2015 


Approved 


% 


31/03/2015 


Actual 


% 


31/03/2016 


Estimate 


% 


31/03/17 


Estimate 


% 


Total 0.78 0.57 1.08 1.09 


 


 
(g) Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 


This indicator demonstrates that the Authority adopted the principles of best 
practice. 


 
The Commissioner has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 


Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2011 


Edition 


 
 







(h) Upper Limit for Total Principal Sums Invested Over 364 Days 


The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may 


arise as a result of the Authority having to seek early repayment of the sums 
invested. 


 


 


 31/03/2015 


Approved 


£m 


31/03/2015 


Actual 


£m 


31/03/2016 


Estimate 


£m 


31/03/17 


Estimate 


£m 


Upper Limit for Total 


Principal Sums Invested 


for over 364 Days 


4 0 4 10 
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PURPOSE: JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE SCRUTINY  


Title: Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 


Executive Summary:  
 


The Home Office Financial management Code of Practice states that the PCC is 
directly responsible for loans, investments and for borrowing money.  The Chief 
Finance Officer of the PCC should decide what investments are to be made locally 


and approve any borrowing.  Decisions on Capital Financing and Borrowing also 
form part of the PCC’s responsibility. 


 
Through locally agreed financial regulations and a Corporate Governance 
Framework the daily management of loans and investments in compliance with 


the approved polices are undertaken by the Police Force CFO’s staff. 
 


All loans and investments should be arranged in line with best practice as 
embodied in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management and all 
borrowing undertaken should comply with the CIPFA prudential Code for Capital 


Finance in Local Authorities. 
 


The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of Practice for 
Treasury Management in Public Services requires the determination of the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) on an annual basis.  The 


TMSS also includes the Annual Investment Strategy that is a requirement of the 
Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance. 


 
This document sets out the policies and procedures the PCC has in place for 
meeting these statutory requirements for the 2015/16 year. 


 


Recommendation: 
 


For consideration and comment by the JAC.  For approval by the Commissioner. 


Timing:  Prior to start of 2015/16 financial year 


Category of Decision / Business Area Impact:  Finance 


ITEM 7 
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Report of Chief Finance Officer of the PCC to the Joint Audit 
Committee 


 
Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 


 
1. Purpose of Report 


 


The Chartered Institute of Public Finance ad Accountancy’s Treasury 
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2011 Edition 


(the CIPFA Code) requires the Commissioner to approve a treasury 
management strategy before the start of each financial year. 
 


In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised Guidance 
on Local Authority Investments in March 2010 that requires the 


Authority to approve an investment strategy before the start of 
each financial year. 
 


This report fulfils the Commissioner’s obligation under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and 


the WG Guidance. 
 


2. Treasury Management 


 


CIPFA have defined Treasury Management as “the management of 


the organisation’s investments and cash flows, it’s banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 


performance consistent with those risks.” 


 


No Treasury Management activity is without risk; however the 
management of those risks is the key driver that the organisation 
utilises in determining investment decisions. 


The main risks to the organisation’s treasury activities are set out in 
the next table: 
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Treasury 
Management 
Risks 


Description Risk mitigation 


Credit and 
Counter-party 


The risk that an 
investment will not be 


repaid 


Investing in institutions 
that have good credit 


ratings 


Liquidity risk The risk that cash will 


not be available to 
meet creditor and 


other payment 
requirements 


Frequent analysis of 


organisations future 
cashflow requirements 


prior to investment 
decisions being made 


Inflation risk The possibility that the 
value of investments 
will decrease as 


inflation shrinks the 
purchasing power of a 


currency 


Limits will be set to 
over the  number of 
longer-term 


investments that are 
placed 


Interest rate risk Risk that fluctuations in 


interest rates create an 
unexpected or 
unbudgeted burden on 


the organisations 
finances 


The Budget set for 


investment income is a 
realistic estimate of 
likely receipts during 


the year based on 
advice received on 


future interest rates 


Market risk Risk that value of 


investments may 
decline over a given 
time period which 


would adversely affect 
the organisations 


ability to invest monies 


Sufficient scope is 


included within the 
strategy to ensure that 
alternative investment 


tools are available 


 


The PCC currently receives advice on Treasury Management from 
“Arlingclose Ltd.” Their clients come from all tiers of UK local 
authority and from other public sector bodies. They attend quarterly 


meetings to consider treasury management performance and 
strategy as well as providing weekly bulletins on key economic 


indicators and trends. Up to date information on counterparty risk 
and credit rating are also provided. 


 


3. Credit outlook and Interest Rate Forecast 
 


The continued global economic recovery has led to a general 
improvement in credit conditions since last year.  This is evidenced 
by a fall in the credit default swap spreads of banks and companies 


around the world.  However, due to legislative changes – the 
outlawing of bail-outs, the introduction of bail-ins and the 


preference being given to large numbers of depositors rather than 
large organisations means that the risks of making unsecured 
deposits have risen relative to other investment options.  Our 


treasury management advisors Arlingclose therefore increasingly 
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favour secured investment options or diversified alternatives such 


as covered bonds, repos, non-bank investments and pooled funds 
over unsecured bank and building society deposits. 


 
Arlingclose forecasts the first rise in official interest rates in August 
2015 and a gradual pace of increases thereafter, with the average 


for 2015/16 being around 0.75%.  Arlingclose believes the 
normalised level of the Bank Rate post-crisis to range between 


2.5% and 3.5%.   
 


4. Treasury Management Policy Statement 


 
The PCC acknowledges that effective treasury management 


supports the achievement of his business and service objectives.  
The PCC is therefore committed to the principles of achieving value 
for money in treasury management, and to employing suitable 


comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the 
context of effective risk management. 


 
The organisation’s borrowing will be affordable, sustainable and 


prudent and consideration will be given to the management of 
interest rate risk and refinancing risk.  The source from which the 
borrowing is taken and the type of borrowing should allow the PCC 


transparency and control over the debt. 
 


This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 
The Code has identified twelve areas where statements of Treasury 


Management Practices (TMP’s) should be developed to implement 
the full requirements of the Code.  These TMPs form part of the 


PCC’s policy and these are detailed in Appendix A. 
 


5. Borrowing Strategy 


 
The PCC currently holds £2.7m of external loans (all with the Public 


Works Loan Board), a decrease of £0.1m on the previous year, as a 
result of historic capital financing decisions.  The PCC does not 
expect to borrow externally in 2015/16.  The PCC may however, 


pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does not exceed 
the authorised limit for borrowing. 


 
The PCC’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs 


and achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are 
required.  The flexibility to renegotiate loans, should the PCC’s long-


term plans change, is a secondary objective. 
 
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are: 


 
 Public Works Loan Board; 


 UK Local Authorities; 
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 Any other bank or building society authorised by the 


Prudential Regulation Authority to operate in the UK. 
 


Previously, all long-term borrowing has been raised from the Public 
Work Loans Board, but the PCC investigates other sources of 
finance, such as Local Authority loans and bank loans, that may be 


available at more favourable rates. 
 


The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by 
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) while usable reserves and 
working capital are the underlying resources available for 


investment. The current strategy is to maintain borrowing and 
investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as 


internal borrowing. All borrowing will need CFO PCC approval. 


 


6. Investment Strategy 


 


Under the Legislative Requirements, the PCC needs to 


approve the Treasury Management Policy & Annual 
Investment Strategy and the PCC’s Chief Financial Officer 


(CFO) should implement and monitor treasury management 
policies and procedures in line with the CIPFA code and 
other professional guidance.  


 


Dyfed Powys holds significant invested funds, representing income 


received in advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  


In accordance with investment guidance issued by the Welsh 


Government and best practice, the PCC’s primary objective in 
relation to investments remains the security of capital.  The liquidity 
or accessibility of the PCC’s investments followed by the yield 


earned on investments remain important but are secondary 
considerations.  


The organisation and its advisors remain on a heightened state of 
alert for signs of credit or market distress that might adversely 


affect the organisation. 


Investments are categorised as “specified” or “non-specified” within 
the investment guidance issued by the Welsh Government. 


Specified investments are sterling denominated investments with a 
maximum maturity of one year. They also meet the “high credit 


quality” as determined by the PCC and are not deemed capital 
expenditure investments under Statute. Non specified investments 
are, effectively, everything else. 


Following the advice of his treasury management advisors, the PCC 
intends to utilise the following specified and non-specified 


investments in 2015/16: 
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Table 1: Specified and Non-Specified Investments 


 Investment 


type 


Specified Non-


Specified 


Maximum 


investment 


period 


Counter-


party 


investment 


limit 


1 Banks and other 


organisation and 


securities whose 


lowest published 


long-term credit 


rating from Fitch, 


Moody’s and 


Standard & 


Poor’s is A- 


  364 days £4 million*  


2 Term deposits 


with other UK 


local authorities 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  364 days £4 million  


3 UK Central 


Government e.g 


Debt 


Management 


Office 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  364 days 100% of 


overall 


investments 


4 UK Central 


Government e.g. 


Government 


Bonds 


(irrespective of 


credit rating) 


  5 years £10 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


5 UK Building 


Societies without 


credit ratings – 


but assessed by 


Arlingclose 


  100 days £1 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval)** 


6 Money market 


funds and other 


pooled funds 


  n/a 5% of total 


investment 


per MMF 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


7 Any other 


organisation, 


subject to an 


external credit 


assessment and 


specific advice 


from the 


Treasury 


Management 


Advisor 


  364 days £1 million 


(CFO PCC 


Approval) 


 *Counter-party investment limit was reduced in 2014/15 to minimise 
exposure to “bail-in” risk, 


 **Additional counterparty in 2014/15. Government support for failing banks 
was being removed hence the potential for default was more likely. 
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Investments in Building Societies are a way of increasing the number of 


counterparties. Our Treasury Management advisors have assessed the 
financial strength of these institutions through a balance sheet analysis and 


have identified fourteen unrated building societies. Investment should be 
limited to 20% in unrated societies. 


Counterparty limits have been set based on the estimated cash- 
flow position at the 31st March 2015. Investment balances will be 
reviewed on a quarterly basis and the counterparty limit of 


investment types 1 and 2 will be amended to 10% of investment 
balances if necessary.  
 


The above counterparty limits are maximum limits. Actual 
duration limits for individual counterparties may vary but 


will not exceed these limits. All investments made should be 
in line with relevant guidance received from our treasury 


management advisors. 


 


Liquidity Management – Dyfed Powys completes an annual cash 
flow forecast which estimates the monthly cash flow position. This 
will be utilised to determine the maximum period for which funds 


may prudently be committed. This forecast is compiled on a 
pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and payments 


over-estimated to minimise the risk of being forced to borrow on 
unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. All 


investments of over a year will require CFO PCC approval in 
advance. 


 


Risk Management - The organisation considers security, liquidity 
and yield, in that order, when making investment decisions. 


Credit ratings remain an important element of assessing credit risk. 
But they are not a sole feature in the organisation’s assessment of 
counterparty credit risk. 


The organisation also considers alternative assessments of credit 
strength, and information on corporate developments of and 


marked sentiment towards counterparties. The following key tools 
are used to assess credit risk: 


 Published credit ratings of the financial institution (minimum 


A- or equivalent) and its sovereign (minimum AA+ or 


equivalent for non-UK sovereigns); 


 Sovereign support mechanisms, 


 Credit default swaps (where quoted); 


 Share prices (where available); 


 Economic fundamentals, such as a country’s net debt as a 


percentage of it’s GDP); 


 Corporate Developments, news, articles, markets sentiment 


and momentum; 


 Subjective overlay. 
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In order to diversify the counterparty list, Arlingclose consider the 


use of comparable non-UK banks to be appropriate. These include 
banks within the following sovereign states, Australia, Canada, 


Finland, France, Germany, Netherlands, Norway, Sweden, USA. It is 
recommended that these are included in the strategy subject to the 
credit limits and limits outlined in the table above. Any lending to 


overseas banks must be approved in advance by the CFO PCC. 


Any institution will be suspended or removed should any of the 


factors identified above give rise to concern. Specifically credit 
ratings are monitored by the organisation on a weekly basis. 
Arlingclose provides advice on ratings changes and appropriate 


action to be taken on a daily basis. 


 


Organisation’s Banker – the organisation banks with Barclays 
Bank PLC. At the current time, it does meet the organisation’s 
minimum credit criteria. Even if the credit rating falls below the 


Organisation’s minimum criteria Barclays Bank PLC will continue to 
be used for short term liquidity requirements (overnight and 


weekend investments) and business continuity arrangements.  


 


7. Prudential Indicators 


The PCC measures and manages its exposures to treasury 


management risks using the following indicators.  Non-Treasury 


Indicators are also included in the treasury document. 


 


Prudential Indicator for Interest Rate Exposures 


 


The purpose of this limit is to control the exposure to interest rate 
risk. The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate 
exposures expressed in £m will be: 


 2015/16 


£m 


2016/17 


£m 


2017/18 


£m 


2018/19 


£m 


Upper limit on fixed 
interest rate 


exposure 


20.600 20.600 20.600 20.600 


Upper limit on 


variable interest rate 
exposure 


3.203 3.202 3.000 3.000 


 


Maturity structures of Borrowing 


This indicator is set to control the exposure to refinancing risk. The 
upper limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will 
be: 
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 Upper 
(%) 


Lower 
(%) 


Under 12 months 10 0 


12 months and within 24 months 10 0 


24 months and within 5 years 50 0 


5 years and within 10 years 50 0 


10 years and above 100 0 


 


Prudential Indicator for total principal sums invested over 


364 days 


 


The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of 
loss that may arise as a result of the organisation having to seek 


early repayment of the sums invested. 


Where the organisation invests or plans to invest for periods longer 


than 364 days, an upper limit will be set for each forward financial 
year period for the maturing of such investments.  


 


Upper limit for 
total principal 


sums invested 
over 364 days 


2015/16 
Estimate      


£m 


2016/17 
Estimate      


£m 


2017/18 
Estimate       


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate      


£m 


 4 4 10 10 


 


8. Policy on use of Financial Derivatives 


The CIPFA code requires organisations to clearly detail their policy 
on the use of derivatives in the annual strategy. 


In the absence of any legislative power, the organisation’s policy is 


not to enter into standalone financial derivatives such as swaps, 
forwards, futures and options. Embedded derivatives will not be 


subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be 
managed in line with the overall risk management strategy. 


 


9. Training 


CIPFA’s Code of Practice requires the Chief Financial Officer to 
ensure that all members tasked with treasury management 


responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury management 
function, receive appropriate training relevant to their needs and 


understand fully their roles and responsibilities. Further details of 
these are included within the Treasury Management Practices. 
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10. Balanced budget requirement 


The PCC has complied with the provisions of S32 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 to set a balanced budget. 


 


11. Resource Implications 
 


Implication Detail  


Finance As detailed above  


Staff N/A 


Assets N/A 


Partners N/A 


Timescales N/A 


Leadership N/A 


 


 
12. Impact Considerations 
 


Implication Impact 


Considered 
(Yes/No) 


Impact Identified  


Legal Yes None 


Contribution to 
Police and Crime 


Plan 


Yes Priority 6: Spending wisely – 


this includes good management 


of financial resources 


Risk Analysis Yes None 


Equality Yes None 


Human Rights Yes None 


Children & Young 
People 


Yes None 


Environmental and 
Sustainability 


Yes None 


National Park  Yes None 


Media Yes None 


 
13. Appendices 


Appendix A – Treasury Management Practices 
Appendix B – Prudential Indicators and MRP Statement 


 
14. Background / Supporting papers 
 


15. Contact details 
Author(s):        Jayne Woods  


Email: Jayne.woods@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk   
Telephone:        x23806 



mailto:Jayne.woods@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk
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16.  Public Access to Information 
 


Information in this form is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOI 


Act) including the exemptions set out within the Act and other relevant 


legislation. Where the exemptions or other restrictions are applicable, this form 


will be edited prior to being made available on the OPCC website within 5 


working days of consideration by the Policing Board. 


 


17. Officer Approval 
 


Chief Finance Officer  


I have been consulted about the proposal and confirm that financial and legal 


advice have been taken into account in the preparation of this report. I am 


satisfied that this an appropriate request to be submitted to the Policing Board 


 


Signature:  


 


Date: 10/03/15 
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APPENDIX A - Treasury Management Practices 


A1.  Risk Management 


 General statement 


The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the PCC will design, implement 
and monitor all arrangements for the identification, management 


and control of treasury management risk, will report at least 
annually on the adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a 


matter of urgency, the circumstances of any actual or likely 
difficulty in achieving the PCC’s objectives in this respect, all in 
accordance with the procedures set out in A6 Reporting 


requirements and management information arrangements.  


In respect of each of the following risks, the arrangements which 


seek to ensure compliance with these objectives are set out below:-            


A1.1 Credit and Counterparty Risk Management  


Definition of Credit and Counterparty Risk– The risk of 


failure by a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations 
to the organisation under an investment, borrowing, capital, 
project or partnership financing, particularly as a result of the 


counterparty’s diminished creditworthiness, and the resulting 
detrimental effect on the organisation’s capital or current 


(revenue) resources. 


Action 


“Dyfed-Powys regards a key objective of its treasury 


management activities to be the security of the principal 
sums it invests.  Accordingly, it will ensure that its counter-


party lists and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards 
organisations with which funds may be deposited, and will 
limit its investment activities to the instruments, methods 


and techniques referred to in A4 Approved instruments, 
methods and techniques.  It also recognises the need to 


have, and will therefore maintain, a formal counter-party 
policy in respect of those institutions from which it may 


borrow, or with whom it may enter into other financing 
arrangements.”  


Counterparties are detailed within the Treasury Management 


Strategy and Policy.  


         A1.2  Liquidity Risk Management 


Definition of Liquidity Risk – The risk that cash will not be 
available when it is needed, that ineffective management of 
liquidity creates additional unbudgeted costs and that the 


organisation’s business / service objectives will be thereby 
compromised. 


Action 
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It will be the function of the CFO (CC) through the treasury 


management Staff employed by the Chief Constable to 
ensure that it has adequate though not excessive cash 


resources, borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby 
facilities to enable it at all times to have the level of funds 
available to it which are necessary for the achievement of its 


business / service objectives.  


They will ensure that at all times there will be a surplus of 


cash available which can be called upon (£3m) through its 
investments in cash on call accounts, which would be 
available at any time. 


Robust weekly, monthly and annual cash flow forecasting 
processes are in place in line with Financial Regulations and 


Financial Control Procedures. 
  


A1.3 Interest Rate Risk Management 


Definition of Interest Rate Risk – The risk that 
fluctuations in the levels of interest rates create an 


unexpected or unbudgeted burden on the organisation’s 
finances, against which the organisation has failed to protect 
itself adequately. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will manage its exposure to fluctuations in 


interest rates with a view to containing its interest costs, or 
securing its interest revenues, in accordance with the 


amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended 
in accordance with A6 Reporting requirements and 
management information arrangements. 


It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved 
financing and investment instruments, methods and 


techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs 
and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient 
degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, 


potentially advantageous changes in the level or structure of 
interest rates. This should be subject to the consideration 


and, if required, approval of any policy or budgetary 
implications. 


The PCC will only undertake borrowing from approved 


sources such as the PWLB, organisations such as the 
European Investment Bank and from commercial banks who 


are on the PCC’s list of authorised institutions, thereby 
minimising legal and regulatory risk. All investment of over 1 
year will need prior approval by the CFO PCC. 


A1.4   Exchange rate risk management 


Definition of Exchange Rate Risk – The risk that 
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates create and unexpected 


or unbudgeted burden on the organisation’s finances, against 
which the organisation has failed to protect itself adequately. 
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Action 


Currently Dyfed Powys only invest in sterling products, hence 
there is no exchange rate risk. 


A1.5 Refinancing Risk Management 


Definition of Refinancing Risk – The risk that maturing 
borrowings, capital, project  or partnership financings cannot 


be refinanced on terms that reflect the provisions made by 
the organisation for those refinancing, both capital and 
current (revenue) and / or that the terms are inconsistent 


with prevailing market conditions at the time. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that its borrowing, private financing 
and partnership arrangements are negotiated, structured and 
documented, and the maturity profile of the monies so raised 


are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for 
renewal or refinancing if required, which are competitive and 


as favourable to the PCC as can reasonably be achieved in 
the light of market conditions prevailing at the time. 


It will actively manage its relationships with its counter-


parties in these   transactions in such a manner as to secure 
this objective, and will avoid over reliance on any one source 


of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above.” 


 


A1.6 Legal and Regulatory Risk 


Definition of Legal and Regulatory risk – The risk that 
the organisation itself, or an organisation with which it is 
dealing in its treasury management activities, fails to act in 


accordance with its legal powers or regulatory requirements, 
and that the organisations suffers losses accordingly. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that all of its treasury management 
activities comply with its statutory powers and regulatory 


requirements.  It will demonstrate such compliance, if 
required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such 


activities.  In framing its credit and counter-party policy 
under A1 Credit and counter-party risk management, it will 
ensure that there is evidence of counter-parties’ powers, 


authority and compliance in respect of the transactions they 
may effect with the PCC, particularly with regard to duty of 


care and fees charged. 


Dyfed Powys recognises that future legislative or regulatory 
changes may impact on its treasury management activities 


and, so far as is reasonably able to do so, will seek to 
minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the PCC. 


A1.7 Fraud, error and corruption contingency management 
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Definition of Fraud, error and corruption contingency 


management – The risk that an organisation fails to identify 
the circumstances in which it may be exposes to the risk of 


loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in 
its treasury management dealings, and fails to employ 
suitable systems and procedures and maintain effective 


contingency management arrangements to these ends. It 
includes the area of risk commonly referred to as an 


operational risk. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that it has identified the 


circumstances which may expose it to the risk of loss through 
fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its treasury 


management dealings.  Accordingly, it will employ suitable 
systems and procedures, and will maintain effective 
contingency management arrangements to these ends. 


Internal Audit will regularly review Treasury Management 
function and report to the Joint Audit Committee. 


A clear, well defined reporting structure for fraud etc. is in 
place in the event of a systems breakdown. The insurance 


policy incorporates cover for fraud, error and corruption. This 
is documented within the Anti-fraud and Corruption policy 
and included within Financial Control Procedure A7.2 “Dealing 


with Suspected Fraud and / or Corruption.” 


A1.8 Market Risk Management 


Definition of Market risk – The risk that through adverse 


fluctuations in the value of the principal sums an organisation 
borrows and invests, its stated treasury management policies 
and objectives are compromised, against which effects it has 


failed to protect itself adequately. 
 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will seek to ensure that its stated treasury 
management policies and objectives will not be compromised 


by adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal 
sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect itself 
from the effects of such fluctuations.  


It will only place investments with institutions that are 
included on the most recent counter-party lending list 


approved by Arlingclose. 


A2. Performance Measurement 


Dyfed Powys is committed to the pursuit of value for money in its 


treasury management activities and to the use of performance 
methodology in support of that aim, within the framework set out in 
its treasury management policy statement. 


Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject 
of on-going analysis of the value it adds in support of the 


organisation’s stated business or service objectives. It will be the 
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subject of regular examination of alternative methods of service 


delivery, of the availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy 
incentives, and of the scope for other potential improvements. The 


performance of the treasury management function will be measured 
by using the criteria set out below:- 


The performance measures / benchmarks for treasury management 


will include the following:  


 


 Performance Measure 


1 Achieving the budgeted investment income 


2 Ensuring cash balance cover of 31 days 


3 Ensuring that investments are only placed with 
institutions which comply with the annual Treasury 
Management Strategy. 


4 Ensuring approved counter-party limits are adhered to 
(refer to TMP’s 1/ 5) 


5 Expected levels of Investments per month compared to 
actual level of investment 


6 Average rate of return of investments per month 
compared to target rate 


 


A3. Decision Making and analysis 


Dyfed Powys will maintain full records of its treasury management 
decisions and of the processes and practices applied in reaching 


those decisions, both for the purposes of learning from the past, 
and for demonstrating that reasonable steps were taken to ensure 


that all issues relevant to those decisions were taken into account 
at the time. 


Decisions regarding funding, borrowing, lending and new 
instruments and techniques will only be made if they comply with 
the Treasury Management Policy and Strategy. All decisions will be 


open to independent scrutiny. 


Reporting of decisions made in respect of quarterly/annual reports 


detailed in TMP6 will be recorded to the Police & Crime 
Commissioner.  


 


A4. Approved instruments, methods and techniques 


Dyfed Powys will undertake its treasury management activities by 


employing only those instruments, methods and techniques 
specified in the Financial Regulations and Financial Control 
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Procedures and within the limits and parameters defined in A1 Risk 


Management.  


The Financial Regulations Section 3.6 gives instruction on Treasury 


Management and Banking arrangements and the Financial Control 
Procedures detailed below specify instruments, methods and 
techniques approved. 


Procedure 
Number 


Procedure Title 


A3.1 Barclays Business master II  


A3.2 Cash Flow Forecasting 


A3.3 Borrowing  


A3.4 Bank Reconciliation 


Both regulations and procedures are available on the force intranet. 


 


A5.   Organisation, Clarity and Segregation of Responsibilities and 


Dealing Arrangements 


Dyfed-Powys considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective 


control and monitoring of its treasury management activities, for 
the reduction of the risk of fraud or error, and for the pursuit of 


optimum performance, that these activities are structured and 
managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is at all times 
a clarity of treasury management responsibilities. 


The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction 
between those charged with setting treasury management policies 


and those charged with implementing and controlling these policies, 
particularly with regard to the execution and transmission of funds, 
the recording and administering of treasury management decisions, 


and the audit and review of the treasury management function.  


If and when Dyfed Powys intends, as a result of lack of resources or 


other circumstances, to depart from these principles, the CFO CC 
will ensure that the reasons are properly reported to the CFO PCC 
in accordance with A6 Reporting requirements and management 


information arrangements, and the implications properly considered 
and evaluated. 


The CFO CC will ensure that there are clear written statements of 
the responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury management, 
and the arrangements for absence cover.  The CFO CC will also 


ensure that at all times those engaged in treasury management will 
follow the policies and procedures set out and report any deviance 


from these to the CFO PCC. 


The CFO CC will ensure that there is proper documentation for all 
deals and transactions and that procedures exist for the effective 
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transmission of funds and provide evidence of this where required 


to the CFO PCC.   


A6. Reporting Requirements and Management Information 


Arrangements 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that regular reports are prepared and 


considered on the implementation of its treasury management 
policies; on the effects of decisions taken and transactions executed 


in pursuit of those policies; on the implications of changes, 
particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market 
or other factors affecting its treasury management activities; and 


on the performance of the treasury management function. 


It is suggested that the following reporting process be presented by 


the PCC CFO:- 


 Annual Reporting Requirements before the start of the year: 


 Review of the Treasury Management policy statement 


and strategy, 


 Review of the Treasury Management Practices, 


 Prudential Indicators. 


 Mid-year reporting requirements 


 Treasury Management Activities undertaken, 


 Variations (if any) from agreed policies / practices, 


 Performance report, 


 Performance against Treasury Management and 


Prudential Indicators. 


 Annual reporting requirements after year end: 


 Performance of Treasury Management Function, 


 Report on risk implications of decisions taken and 


transactions executed, 


 Report on any circumstances of non-compliance with 


the Treasury management Police Statement and TMP’s 


A7. Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements 


The Chief Financial Officer PCC will prepare and the PCC will 


approve and if necessary from time to time will amend the annual 
budget for the Treasury Management function, together with 
associated income. The matters to be included in the budget will be 


at minimum those required by statute or regulation, together with 
such information as will demonstrate compliance with A1 Risk 


Management, TMP2 Performance measurement and A4 Approved 
instruments, methods and techniques. The CFO will exercise 
effective controls over this budget and will report upon and 







 
 


19 


 


recommend any changes required in accordance with A6 Reporting 


requirements and management information arrangements. 


Dyfed-Powys will account for its treasury management activities, for 


decisions made and transactions executed, in accordance with 
appropriate accounting practices and standards, and with statutory 
and regulatory requirements in force for the time being and in 


particular the CIPFA Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance 
Notes for Treasury Management in Public Services issued in 2011. 


The CFO, being a CIPFA member, will act in accordance with the 
PCC’s policy statement and TMPs and the CIPFA: Standard of 
Professional Practice on Treasury Management. 


The PCC will ensure that its auditors, and those charged with 
regulatory review, have access to all information and papers 


supporting the activities of the treasury management function as 
are necessary for the proper fulfilment of their roles, and that such 
information and papers demonstrate compliance with external and 


internal policies and approved practices.   


Treasury Management procedures and processes will be audited in 


accordance with the internal audit risk based audit strategy. 


Auditors will as part of their responsibilities in auditing the 


Statement of Accounts, obtain independent verification from 
counterparties of investments held by the PCC. 
 


A8. Cash and Cash Flow Management 


Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all 
monies in the hand of Dyfed Powys will be under the control of the 
PCC, and will be aggregated for cash flow and investment 


management purposes. Cash flow projections will be prepared on a 
regular basis, and the CFO PCC and CFO CC will ensure that these 


are adequate for the purposes of monitoring compliance with 
A1Liquidity risk management.  


A9.   Money laundering 


Dyfed Powys is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject 
of an attempt to involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of 
money. Accordingly, it will maintain procedures for verifying and 


recording the identify of counter-parties and reporting suspicions, 
and will ensure that staff involved in this are fully trained.  


Only counterparties approved by the Treasury Management 
consultants will be utilised. Terms and conditions are agreed between 
the counterparty and the PCC prior to the transfer of funds. 


The Proceeds of Crime Act 2020 (POCA) and the related Money 
Laundering Regulations 2007 have also extended the Wales Audit 


Office auditors responsibilities. The Auditor General and his staff 
and contractors are required to report to the Serious and Organised 
Crime Agency (SOCA) where they suspect, as a result of 


information gained during the course of their work, that there may 
have been criminal acts that involve financial gain. 
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If any staff involved in Treasury Management have suspicions of 


money laundering then this should be brought to the attention of the 
CFO PCC and CFO CC. 


A10. Training and Qualifications 


Dyfed Powys recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff 
involved in the treasury management function are fully equipped to 


undertake the duties and responsibilities allocated to them. The 
PCC will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are both capable 
and experience and will provide training for staff to enable them to 


acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge 
and skills. The CFO PCC will recommend and implement the 


necessary arrangements. 


The CFO PCC will ensure that all staff tasked with treasury 
management responsibilities, including those responsible for 


scrutiny, have access to training relevant to their needs and those 
responsibilities. 


Those charged with governance recognise their individual 
responsibility to ensure that they have the necessary skills to 
complete their role effectively. 


Staff who undertake Treasury management duties attend relevant 
training events provided by Arlingclose and attend a quarterly 


strategy meeting. Staff also attend any relevant training events 
that are held by CIPFA. 


Weekly bulletin e-mails are sent out by Arlingclose which provide 


advice on any economic developments and suggested revisions to 
counterparty limits. 


A11. Use of External Service Providers 


Dyfed-Powys recognises that responsibility for treasury 
management decisions remains with the PCC at all times. Dyfed-


Powys Powys recognises the potential value of employing external 
providers of treasury management services, in order to acquire 
access to specialist skills and resources.  When it employs such 


service providers, it will ensure it does so for reasons which will 
have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and benefits.  


It will also ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed 
and documented, and subjected to regular review.  And it will 


ensure, where feasible and necessary, that a spread of service 
providers is used, to avoid over reliance on one or a small number 


of companies.   Where services are subject to formal tender or re-
tender arrangements, legislative requirements will always be 
observed.  The monitoring of such arrangements rests with the CFO 


PCC. 


 Dyfed Powys has a contract with Arlingclose for the provision of 


advice/assistance as follows: 


 Strategic advice 


 Capital finance advice 
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 Treasury Management Policy and Strategy 


 Interest Rate Forecasting ad Economic Advice 


 Investment Policy Advice 


 Debt Advice 


 Counterparty Assistance 


 Seminars and training 


 Website and client meetings. 


The initial contract was for the period 1st July 2008 to 30th June 


2010.  This is now subject to review annually. 


A12. Corporate Governance 


Dyfed-Powys has adopted and has implemented the key 


recommendations of the CIPFA Code of Practice.  This is considered 
vital to the achievement of proper corporate governance in treasury 
management, and the CFO PCC and CFO CC will monitor and, if and 


when necessary, report upon the effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 


The Code recommends that public service organisations state their 
commitment to embracing the principles of corporate governance in 
their Treasury Management activities, notably openness and 


transparency. 


Dyfed Powys is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate 


governance throughout its businesses and services, and to 
establishing the principles and practices by which this can be 
achieved. Therefore, the treasury management function and its 


activities will be undertaken with openness and transparency, 
honesty, integrity and accountability reflected in Dyfed Powys’s 


standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Financial Control 
Procedures. 


The organisation’s Treasury Management policies and practices will 


be published on the internet. 


The CFO PCC has primacy over Treasury Management functions and 


will ensure that adequate separation of duties exist between staff 
charged with undertaking Treasury Management Functions. 
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Appendix B - Prudential Indicators and MRP Statement 


The Local Government Act 2003 requires the PCC to have regard to 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 


Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
Prudential Code) when determining how much money it can afford 


to borrow. The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, 
within a clear framework, that the capital investment plans of local 
authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that 


treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good 
professional practice.  


To demonstrate that the PCC has fulfilled these objectives, the 
Prudential Code sets out the following indicators that must be set 
and monitored each year. 


B1.  Estimates of Capital Expenditure 


The PCC has approved capital expenditure and financing as 
summarised below:- 


 
Capital 
Expenditure and 


Financing 


2015/16 
Estimate 


£m 


2016/17 
Estimate 


£m 


2017/18 
estimate 


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate 


£m 


Total Expenditure 9.373 9.411 6.768 2.392 


     


Government Grants -1.002 -0.679 -0.915 -0.789 


Borrowing -0.520 -0.520 -1.000 -1.000 


Capital Receipts -1.500 -0.500 -0.200 0 


NPAS Capital Credit -0.114 -0.114 -0.068 -0.023 


Contribution from 
Revenue Reserves 


-0.418 -0.422 -0.431 -0.439 


Capital Reserve -5.819 -7.176 -4.154 -0.141  


Total Financing -9.373 -9.411 -6.768 -2.392 


 


B2. Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement 


The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by 
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) while usable reserves and 
working capital are the underlying resources available for 


investment. The current strategy is to maintain borrowing and 
investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as 


internal borrowing. 


As at 1st April 2014 the PCC had an opening capital financing 
requirement of £10.153million (including PFI) against total long 


term assets recorded on the balance sheet of £78.683million. 


In relation to the capital expenditure plans outlined in the capital 


strategy, the PCC will need to borrow £3.040 million over the period 
2015/16 to 2018/19. The PCC must also make annual repayments 
from the revenue budget for interest and a repayment of principal 


in accordance with the MRP policy in Appendix B. 
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Capital 


Financing 
Requirement 


2015/16  


Estimate 
£m 


2016/17 


Estimate 
£m 


2017/18 


Estimate 
£m 


2018/19 


Estimate 
£m 


Opening 


Capital 
Financing 


Requirement 
(Excluding 


PFI) 


7.614 7.829 8.036 8.715 


Less: Annual 
Minimum 


repayment 
from revenue 


(4% op CFR) 


-0.305 -0.313 -0.321 -0.349 


Add: New 


Borrowing 


0.520 0.520 1.000 1.000 


Closing CFR 7.829 8.036 8.715 9.366 


Add: PFI 2.463 2.415 2.359 2.295 


Total 10.292 10.451 11.074 11.661 
 
 


 


B3.  Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 


In order to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for 
a capital purpose, the PCC will ensure that debt does not, except in 
the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in 


the preceding year plus an estimates of any additional capital 
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. 


This is a key indicator of prudence. All borrowing decisions will be 
made by the PCC advised by the CFO PCC. 


 


Debt 31.03.16 


Estimate 
£m 


31.03.17 


Estimate 
£m 


31.03.18 


Estimate 
£m 


31.03.19 


Estimate 
£m 


Borrowing 2.455 2.298 2.125 1.936 


PFI liabilities 2.463 2.415 2.359 2.295 


Total Debt 4.918 4.713 4.484 4.231 
 


Total debt is expected to remain below the CFR during the 
forecast period. 
 


B4. Operational Boundary for External Debt 


The operational boundary is based on the PCC’s estimate of 
most likely i.e. prudent, not worst case, scenario for external 


debt. It links directly to the PCC’s estimates of capital 
expenditure, the capital financing requirement and cash flow 


requirements and is a key management tool for in-year 
monitoring. Private Finance Initiative also forms part of the 


PCC’s debt. The limits set are shown in the Table below: 
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Operational 
Boundary 


2015/16  
Estimate 


£m 


2016/17 
Estimate 


£m 


2017/18 
Estimate 


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate 


£m 


Borrowing 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 


Other long-
term liabilities 


19.637 19.637 19.637 19.637 


Total Debt 20.637 20.637 20.637 20.637 


 


B5. Authorised limit for External Debt 


 


The authorised limit is the affordable borrowing limit 
determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 


2003. It is the maximum amount of debt that the PCC can 
legally owe. The authorised limit provides headroom over and 


above the operational boundary for unusual cash movements. 
The limits set are shown in the Table below: 
 
 


Authorise


d Limit 


2015/16  


Estimate 
£m 


2016/17 


Estimate 
£m 


2017/18 


Estimate 
£m 


2018/19 


Estimate 
£m 


Borrowing 3.203 3.202 3.000 3.000 


Other long-


term 
liabilities 


20.600 20.600 20.600 20.600 


Total Debt 23.803 23.802 23.600 23.600 


 
B6. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 


 


This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue 
implications of existing and proposed capital expenditure by 


identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to 
meet financing costs, net of investment income. This indicator 


shows maximum financing costs (based on the authorised 
limit of long-term liabilities above) in the context of the entire 


budget. This is scheduled to reduce from 2016/17 onwards. 
 
Authorised 
Limit 


2015/16 
Estimate 


£m 


2016/17 
Estimate 


£m 


2017/18 
Estimate 


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate 


£m 


Financing Cost 1.006 0.995 0.959 0.943 


Net Budget 93.332 91.247 91.488 92.007 


Total Debt 1.08% 1.09% 1.05% 1.03% 
 


 


B7. Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions 
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This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of 


capital investment decisions on Council Tax levels. The 
incremental impact is the year on year difference between the 


financing cost of the authorised limit of long-term liabilities 


expressed as an increase (or decrease) in council tax payable.  
The change in the council tax is as measured against the 


average band D council tax payable of £200.07 in 2015/16. 
 
Incremental Impact of 


Capital Investment Decisions 


2016/17 


Estimate 


2017/18 


Estimate 


2018/19 


Estimate  


Incremental Cost £m -0.011  -0.036  -0.016  


Council Tax Base 217,241  219,414 221,608 


Band D increase £ -0.05 -0.16 -0.07 


 


 
B8. Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 


2014/15 
 


Where the PCC finances capital expenditure by debt, it must 


put aside resources to repay that debt in later years. The 
amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of 


debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) although 
there has been no statutory minimum since 2008. The Local 


Government Act 2003 requires the PCC to have regard to the 
Welsh Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue 


Provision. 
 


The broad aim of the WG guidance is to ensure that debt is 


repaid that is either reasonably commensurate with that over 
which the capital expenditure provides benefits or, in the case 


of borrowing supported by Government Revenue Support 
Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in 


the determination of that grant. 
 


The WG guidance requires the PCC to approve an annual MRP 
statement each year, and recommends a number of options 


for calculating a prudent amount of MRP. 
 


The following statement only incorporates options 
recommended in the guidance: 
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ANNUAL MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP) STATEMENT 


The following policy has been set by the Authority in relation to MRP for 
2015/16. 


Supported Borrowing - Capital Financing Requirement Method 


MRP is equal to 4% of the supported Capital Financing Requirement 


(CFR) at the end of the preceding financial year. For 2014/15 this is 
estimated to be £305,000. 


Prudential Borrowing -  Depreciation Method 


MRP is to be equal to the provision required in accordance with 
depreciation accounting in respect of the asset on which expenditure has 


been financed by prudential borrowing or unsupported credit 
arrangements. 


(a) MRP will continue to be made annually until the cumulative amount 


of such provision is equal to the expenditure originally financed. 


(b) On disposal of the asset, the amount of the capital receipt will not be 


taken to the revenue account and the authority will comply with the 
normal requirements of the 2003 Act on the use of capital receipts. 


(c) Where the percentage of the expenditure on the asset financed by 
prudential borrowing or unsupported credit arrangements is less than 
100%, MRP will be equal to the same percentage of the provision 


required under depreciation accounting. 


Finance Leases and PFI 


In the case of finance leases and on balance-sheet PFI contracts, the 
MRP requirement will be regarded as met by a charge equal to the 
element of the rent/charge that goes to write down the balance sheet 


liability. 
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Corporate Governance Group 
 


MINUTES  


 


1st  September, 2015   


ACPO, Police Headquarters  


 


Attendees: Edwin Harries (Chair)  Director of Finance 


  Carl Langley    Deputy Chief Constable    


  Helen Morgan Howard  Chief of Staff, OPCC 


 


1. Apologies for Absence 


The following apologies were received: 
 


Jayne Woods                    Chief Financial Officer, OPCC 


Adrian Williams                    Director of Resources   


 Samantha Gainard                    Director of Legal and Compliance  


 Alasdair Kenwright / Gawain Evans      Chair of the Joint Audit Committee 


 


 


2. Disclosure of any other Business Items 


None Declared. 


 


 


3. Previous Minutes dated 9th June, 2015  


The minutes of the last meeting held on the 9th June, 2015 were agreed.  
 


In relation to the actions outstanding  


1. Approximately half referrals to the Public Service Bureau are channelled through the 


FCC with half being channelled in directly 
 


2. Discretionary Payments – it was noted that Jayne Woods was actively progressing this 


matter 
 


 


4. Corporate Governance Statements PCC and PCC 


 


The updated Corporate Governance Statements for the PCC and CC were tabled at the 


meeting. These had already been considered and updated as a result of feedback from the 


Joint Audit Committee in June 2015. The updates took account of the improvements sought 


and highlighted by Members of the JAC in relation to Business Continuity and other priority 


one Internal Audit recommendations. The changes were supported and it was noted that 


work was in hand to progress these. 
 


 


 


4. Review of Current Issues that may have an Impact on Governance Arrangements more 


widely.   


A general discussion was held on the following issues:- 
   


 Risk  


- The Corporate Risk Register and Dynamic Risk Register are in place.   


- The operational content of the risk register had been improved and the Risk 


Register that went to COG was generally regarded as being an improvement and 


reflective of the intuitive position 







- In relation to the PCC Risk Register it was noted that there needed to be some 


cross over in terms of some risks between PCC and CC for example in relation to 


Estates to ensure appropriate risk ownership.  


- It was noted that new risks had been added in relation to the formula funding 


review and for MOJ income. It was noted that PCC elections was already 


incorporated. 
 


 Internal Audit 


- The following draft audit reports had been received. Strategic Planning, Mobile 


Phones, HR – Absence arrangements and Payment of overtime and additional 


allowances. 
 


 HMIC 


- No further update – As previously noted 
 


 Operational Issues 


- No further updates - Operationally, structures are in place and well established and 


MOs to deal with any emerging terrorist threats.   
 


 Ethics 


- The delivery plan was agreed and the vision mission and values for the Force were 


signed off. The Ethics Group is being formed to hold the CC and COG to account 


for delivery and to review the main decisions 
 


 COG 


- The new Governance/Reporting Framework ensures that COG receives regular 


update reports on key strategic Projects.    
 


 External Issues 


- Discretionary Payments 
 


 Financial Matters 


- The current uncertainty of financial circumstances was acknowledged.  


- Formula Funding Consultation and CSR – not known until December 2015  
 


 Joint Audit Committee 


The following issues were raised:-  


- Business Continuity – a new timetable had been established 


- Discretionary payments were raised 
 


 Complaints 


- No further update- this was updated at the last PAB  
 


 


5. Monitoring of On-going Tasks 


EH provided an update on the progress of current tasks. 
 


1. Corporate Governance Framework 


This has been formally adopted.  Item completed. There are some items of update 


required at the next point of Review 


2. Risk 


The risk process is in place and this action was complete.     


3. Partnership Working 


Discussions on collaboration and the Capita Report will be provided at the next 


meeting in terms of Governance  


4. Public First Programme   


Any Governance lessons are learned arising from the Post Implementation Review 


5. Discretionary Payment 


As noted above. 


 


 


 







6. Review of Updated Core Principles 


 


Ed Harries referred to the guidance on Governance including the CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering 


Good Governance in Local Government’ Framework which sets out 6 core principles for 


Corporate Governance. A matrix was circulated which set out the arrangements in place 


under each of these six areas. These were reviewed 
 


1. Vision and Purpose: 


No Further Update 
 


2. Roles and Responsibilities within the Corporate Governance Framework: 


No Further Update  
 


3. Demonstrating the Value of Good Governance and upholding high standards of 


conduct.   


No Further Update 
 


4. Taking informed and transparent decisions and effective scrutiny on the management 


of risk. 


It was noted that the role of the Ethics Group in Reviewing Key decision would 


strengthen this further 
 


5. Developing capacity and capability of PCC officers and the force to be effective in 


Corporate Governance (training issue).   


Through Corporate Governance Group, WAO and JAC 
 


6. Engaging with local people and stakeholders to ensure a robust accountability.  As 


above. 


No Further update – other than the election being noted. 


 


It was noted that CIPFA was consulting on providing an update to the CIPFA/ Solace 


document at present. 


 


 


7. Any Other Business 


a) WAO Return – Arrangements for Prevention of Fraud 


A draft response had been circulated. This would be finalised and go to the JAC. 
 


 


 


8. Date of Next meeting  


The next meeting will be held on Tuesday, 10th November 2015 at 11am. 
 


 


AGREED ACTIONS 


a) WAO Return – Arrangements for Prevention of Fraud 


A draft response had been circulated. This would be finalised and go 


to the JAC. 


 


Ed Harries 
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